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22,000,000 SHARES OF COMMON STOCK 

IASG 
Integrated Alarm Services Group , Inc 

We are selling 22,000,000 shares of our common stock. We have granted the underwriters an option to 
purchase up to an additional 3,300,000 shares of our common stock at the public offering price to cover over­
allotments, if any. 

This is the initial public offering of our common stock. Our conunon stock has been approved for quotation 
on the NASDAQ National Market under the symbol "IASG." 

Investing in our common stock involves risks. Please see "Risk Factors" beginuing.ou page 6. 

Public offering price ........... . .. .. .... . .. . . .. .. .. . 
Underwriting discounts and commissions . .• .. . ..... ..... 
Proceeds, before expenses, to us(l) .. . ...... . .. .. ..... . 

Per 
Share 

$ 9.25 
$0.6475 
$8.6025 

Total 

$203,500,000 
$ 14,245,000 
$189,255,000 

(1) Before deduction of our other expenses related to this offering, estimated at $1,600,000. 

Neither the Securities and Exchange Commission nor any state securities commission has approved or 
disapproved. of these securities or determined if this prospectus is accurate or complete. Any 
representation to th.e contrary is a criminal offense. 

Concurrently with this offering, 792,793 shares of common stock have-been registered under the Securities 
Act of 1933, as amended, on behalf of certain holders of convertible promissory notes, pursuant to a selling 
shareholder prospectus included within tbe Registration Statement of which this prospectus forms a part. The 
selling shareholders' shares are not part of this underwritten offering. The selling shareholders' shares may not 
be sold prior to 270 days from the effective date of the Registration Statement, without the prior written consent 
of Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc. The selling shareholders' shares are issuable upon conversion of an 
aggregate of $5.5 million of our promissory notes. · 

The underwriters expect to deliver tbe shares to purchasers on or about July 29, 2003. 

FRIEDMAN BILLINGS RAMSEY 
STIFEL, NICOLAUS & COMPANY 

· Incorporated 

WELLS FARGO SECURITIES, LLC 

The date of this Prospectus is July 23, 2003. 

EXHIBIT 

------- -------- -- -· -· - -- -. .. -:- . : :-=::-:-:·.·-,· -~---~~~=------

GERSAV 0038319 

Div Ex 373 -1

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-CFH   Document 761   Filed 07/08/14   Page 1 of 35



.. ~·:···-...:::...:·· ·:·· ·· : . 

TABLE OF-CONTENTS 

Prospectus Summary . ..... . ....... . _ ...... . . . .... . .... . .. .. .. ... . . . . . . ....... .. ... . . .. . . 
Risk Factors ... . . . . . . ....... . .... . .. . .. . .. .. .... . . .. . . . . ... . ......... . . . ... . . . . .. . ... . 
Special Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements . . ... . . . ... . ... ; .. . .... . ..... . . . ..... . . . 
Use of Proceeds ... . . ... .... . . ... . _ . . _ .. .... _ ... .. . .. ............ . ... ... ... . _ . .... _ . . . 
Dividend Policy .... .. .. . .. . . . .... . . . . ___ .. . . ___ . _ . .. . . _ ... .. ............. __ . . . .. _ .. . . 
.Capitalization . ....... . .... , . . ........ . . . ...... . . _ . ... . .... . .. . .. . .. _ .... . . . . .... . ... . 
Dilution .. . ..... .. ..... . . . . .. ...... . . . ... _ .... .. . . ... . ... _ . _ . . ... ___ . . _ . . _ . . .. . _ .. . . . _ 
Selected Fmancial Data ... .. . . ... .. . ...... ... .... ..... ..... . . .... . . ........ .. .. .. .... ... . .. . .. 
Pro Forma Combined Financial Information ........ ... . . .. . . ... . .... __ ... .. _ .......... . ... . 
Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations . ... . .... . 
Business ..... : .... . . . .. . . .. . . . . .. . . .... . . . ..... ... . . ... . .. . . . .. . . . . . . .. . . . .. . .. . . .. . . 
Management .................. . ... .. .. .. ......... .. .. ... .. . . . . _ . . _ . _____ _ .. _ . __ . _ . ___ _ 
Certain Relationships and Related Transactions . ... ........ . ............... .. ..... . ... . . . ... . 
Principal Stockholders .. ........ . .. . : . . .... · . . . ... . .. . . .... .. .. . ....... ... .. . . _ . _ . . .. . .. . 
~tion of Capital Stock .. .. .... . .... . ... . ........ . . .. . .. .... .. . ..... . ...... .... . . . . 
Description of Other Securities . .. -. . . ... . ... . . . . . .... ..... . ... . ....... . ...... . ..... . . ... . . 
Shares Eligible for Future Sale .. .. . . . .. .. ... . . .. . .. ... . . ... · . . . . ..... . . ... . .. . .. . .... .. . . 
Underwriting . .. . ... . . . . .. . . . . .. .. . .. ... ... . . . ....... ..... .. .. . _. _ ... . . . .. .... .. .. .. _. ___ . 
Concurrent Registration of Common Stock .. . . ... . ..... . . . .... . .. . ....... : ....... . ... . ... . 
Legal Matters .............. . ... . . .... : .. . . . . . ..... . ... ............ . . .. . .. .. .. . ........ . 
Experts ... . .. .. . .. . . ...... . . .... . . . . .. .. ... . .. . . .... . .. ... ... . .... . ... .. .. . ... ..... .. . . 
Where You Can Find More Information . . ... . . .. . . . . . . . . . ... . . : . . .. . ... . . . . . ... . . .. .. . .. . 
Index to KC Acquisition Fmancial Statements .... : .. .. . . ..... ... . . .. ... . .. .. . ... . .. ....... . 
Report of Independent Accountants for KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries . . .. .. . . . . . . . . 
Fmancial Statements for KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries ...... .. . . . . .. . .. . .. . .... . 
Index to IASI Fmancial Statements .... . ..... . ... .. ... .. . , . .. ..... . . .... ..... .... ..... .. . 
Report of Independent Accountants for IASI and Mfiliates . ... ...... . . .. . . .. ... .. .. .. . . .... . . . 
Combined Financial Statements for IASI and Affiliates . . . . . . ... .. . . . .. . . . ........ . .. . ...... . 
Report of Independent Accountants for Criticom International Corporation · .. .. . .. ..... .. ..... . . . 
Fmancial Statements for Criticom International Corporation . . ........... . ·: ......... .... . . . . . . . 

The trademark or trade names referred to in this prospectus are the property of their respective owners. 

Page 

1 
6 

11 
12 
14 
14 
15 
16 
17 
25 
46 
58 
64 
68 
69 
70 
72 
73 
75 
75 
75 
75 

F-2 
F-3 
F-4 

F-42 
F-43 
F-44 
F-64 
F-65 

Until August 17, 2003 (25 days after commencement of this offering), all dealers that effect transactions 
in these securities, whether or not participating in this offering, may be required to deliver a prospectus. This 
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Prospectus Summary 

The following summary is qualified in its entirety by reference to the more detailed information and 
combined financial statements appe,aring elsewhere in this prospectus. In this prospectus, "we". "us". and 
"our" refer to Integrated Alarm Services Group. Inc. and its predecessor, KC Acquisition Corporation lnc .• 
in addition to our wholly-owned subsidiaries, .which include lntegraJed Alann Services, Inc., which we refer 
to as /AS/, and Criticom lnterna!ional Corpora!ion, unless the context requires otherwise. Please see the 
chart on page 2 of this prosp!ctus for identification of each of our subsidiaries. Pro forma information in this 
prospectus gives effect to the' acquisition of Criticom in September 2002 and lAST and its affililltes in Jarw.ary 
2003. Unless otherwise indicated, all share amounts assume the consummation of a one for two reverse stock 
split effected in April 2003 and no exercise of the over-allotment option or the conversion of the convertible. 
debentures. 

BpS !NESS 

INTEGRA TED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. 
We provide an integrated solution to independent security alarm dealers, which we refer to as "Dealers," 

to assist them in competing in the residential and commercial security alann market. Our services include. 
wholesale alann monitoring and financing solutions, including purchasing Dealers' alann monitoring contracts 
for our own portfolio and providing loans to Dealers collateralized by alann monitoring contracts. We also 
provide support for our Dealers including billing, collection, marketing and access to equipment discount 
programs. We believe our package of services allows Dealers to compete more effectively against self­
monitoring national security alann companies by giving them access to .technical sophistication, financing, 
back office and other services that they would not otherwise have, while allowing them to remain the local 

· and visible contact with their customer, the end-user of the alarm. 

We believe we are the largest wholesale alarm monitoring comp~y in the United States, as measured by 
the number of wholesale alarm accounts we monitor. Wholesale alarm monitoiing providers enable Dealers · 
to outsource the monitoring of residential or c~mmercial accounts while continuing to hold the underlying 
alann monitoring contract with the end-user. We monitor approximately 500,000 alarm systems on behalf of 
approximately 5,000 Dealers. Our alarm monitoring service is provided from three state-of-the-art, redundant 
alarm monitoring centers located in New Jersey, Minnesota and California. We are also a significant provider 
of capital to Dealers. Since 1993, we have provided financing to Dealers in the fonn of loans or alarm 
monitoring contraci purchases of approximately $350 million in th~ aggregate. In addition to our .wholesale 
business, we currently hold and monitor approximately 39,000 alarm monitoring contraCts in our own 
portfolio. We also hold over 8,000 contracts as collateral against loans we have made to Dealers. Our a1artiJ. 
monitoring contract acquisition and financing programs and monitoring services complement one another and 
drive growth in other areas of our business. 

We generally require the Dealers we provide financing to, or acquire contracts from, to use our 
monitoring services for all of the alarm monitoring contracts they continue to own. We typically also require 
that these Di::al.ers use our billing and collection services, enabling us to gain an additional level of control 
over the reliability of the alarm monitoring contracts' cash flows. 1bis places us in a unique position to 
minimize alann monitoring contract attrition because we can control the quality of the monitoring, billing and 
collection. 

For the year ended December 31, ·2002 and the quarter ended March 31, 2003, we had a pro forma net 
loss of $19,326,860 and $12,315,600, respectively and a pro forma as adjusted net loss of $11,025,182 and 
$10,263,430, respectively. The pro forma i,nformation gives effect to the acquisition of Criticom in September 
2002 and IASI and its affiliates in January 2003. The pro forma as adjusted information was calculated after 
giving effect to the sale of 22,000,000 shares of common stock in this offering at an initial public offering 
price of $9.25 per share and the repayment of $80.1 million of debt. For the year ended December 31, 2002 
and the quarter ended March 31, 2003, we had pro forma revenue of $42,641,694 and $9,749,254, 
respectively. At March 31, 2003, we had a pro forma as adjusted accumulated deficit of $33,758,965 . . There 
can be no assurance that we will achieve profitability. For the year ended Dec.ember 31, 2002. we derived 
approximately 58% of our pro forma revenues from the proVision of monitoring services for third parties. 
including GPS monitoring, 37% from the monitoring fees on alarm monitoring contracts that we hold in our 
own portfolio and 5% from alarm contract financing and other related services. See "Management's Discussion 
and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations." 
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We were formed as King Central, Inc. in 1985 and subsequently changed our name to KC A uisition 
Corporation. Virtually. all of our monitoring services are pe~?~ed by KC Acquisition, now know'; as 
Integrated Alarm SeiVlces Group, Inc. We also conduct actiVIties through subsidiaries_ includ· Criticom, 
a wholesale monitoring comiJ8:1Iy which we acquired _in _September 2002: and ~~ which we ac~~ired in 
January 2003, and through which we conduct the maJonty of our financmg activtties. Prior to its acquisition, 
Criti~m was p~cipally own:d by Curtis quady, an ~xecutive Vice President. IASI was previously owned 
by T1mothy McGmn, our Cha.innan and Chief ExecUtive Officer, Thomas Few, Sr., our Vice Chainnan, 
President and Chief Operating Officer, and David Smith, a Director. 

In May 2000, we acquired Monital Signal Corporation, a wholesale monitoring company, which was 
owned by two non-affiliated entities. We conduct a portion of our wholesale monitoring business through our 
Monital subsidiary. In January 2003, we acquired Morlyn Financial Group, LLC. Morlyn provides alarm 
contract acquisition and lending services related to the financing portion of our business. Morlyn was owned 
by Messrs. McGinn, Few, Sr. and Smith. Prior to the acquisition of IASI, Messrs. McGinn and Sinith 
controlled 41 trusts which were principally created to acquire alarm monitoring contracts. Approximately 62% 
of the trust certificates of the 41 trusts were exchanged for promissory notes of IASI and will be repaid with 
proceeds from the offering. Approximately 38% of the trust certificates were not exchanged and will also be 
repaid out of the proceeds of the offering. An additional $9.5 million is bank debt relating to these contract 
acquisitions and will also be repaid out of the proceeds of the offering. Messrs. McGinn and Smith were 
residual beneficiaries of these trusts but have contributed their residual benefits in the trusts to us. Palisades 
Group, LLC, Payne Security Group, U..C and Guarc:Iian Group, LLC, were acquired by us in January 2003 
and are now our wholly-owned subsidiaries. Palisades, Payne and Guardian were owned by Messrs. McGinn, 
Smith and Few. Palisades, Payne and Guardian were formed to hold alarm monitoring contracts. For a more 
detailed description of our history, see "Business- History".ln the aggregate 64.7% of the $80.1 million in 
debt being repaid out of the net proceeds of this offering was incurred by entities that were affiliated. with us 
prior to our acquisition of such entities. 

Our corporate structure is illustrated below: 

Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc. (DeL) 

I 
_l 100"/o ]99.2%(1) I 100% I 100% I 100% l 100% I 100% 

Criticom Monital Signal Integlated Alann Marlyn Fmancial Payne Security Guardian Palisades 
International Coip. (1) Services, Inc. Group,LLC Group,U.C Grnup,U.C Group,LLC 

COip. 

(1) 0.8% of Monital is owned by the former shareholders of Griptight Holdings, Inc., a non-affiliated entity 
and a former owner of Monital shares. 

For a chart outlining the ownership of each of these entities prior to our acquisition, see "Certain 
Relationships and Related Transactions". 

Our Industry 

The security alarm industry is characterized by a large number of privately owned companies involved in 
security alarm sales, leasing, installation, repair and monitoring. In 2001, approximately 10,000 such Dealers 
were active in the United States. Based on information from Security Distributing and Marketing magazine 
("SDM"), approximately 75% of this marlcet is served by smaller companies not included in the 100 largest 
companies. The top 100 companies include large self-monitoring national providers such as ADT, a 
subsidiary of Tyco International, Inc., and Brinks Home Security, Inc., a·subsidiary of The Brink's Company. 

The Freedonia Group, Inc., an independent business research company, estimated the 2001 residential 
security alarm monitoring market to be $6.5 billion and forecasts that the market will grow to $8.2 billion by 
2006 and $10.3 billion by 2011. The Freedonia Group also estimates that 18% of all homes in North America 
currently have alarm systems and expects that number to _exceed 20% by 2006. 

Our target market is the portion of the market served by the roughly 10,000 Dealers outside of the top 
100 companies, or approximately 75% of the overall alarm monitoring market. 
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GROWTH INITIATIVES 

Acquisition of Alann Moni/Qring Controcts 

We intend to expand our acquisition of aiann monitoring contracts. We believe that we will be able to 
acquire additional alann monitoring contracts on terms which will provide us with incremental cash flow and 
earnings. Our strategy is to acquire approximately 80,000 additional alarm monitoring contracts in 2003. We 
currently have letters of intent to acquire approximately 17,000 retail customer contracts, enter into dealer 
loans with 4,000 contracts as collateral and purchase wholesale dealer relationsbips for monitoring 32,500 
alarms. Our ability to acquire. additional contracts with the requisite economics is dependent upon market 
forces which will determine pricing as well as the availability and cost of capitaL The impact of the acquired 
contracts on revenue and profitability will be :iffected by the attrition rates of acquired portfolios. as well as 
the .Y.ariable expenses relating to such acquisitions including billing, collection and servicing .. 

Building Additional Wholesale Monitoring Rel4tionships with Dealers 

We intend to expand the number of our Dealer relationships through acquisitions of other wholesale 
alarm monitoring companies and internally generated growth. The opportunities to acquire other.wholesale 
al.ann monitoring companies will be dependent upon the pricing expectations of sellers of such businesses as 
well as the availability and cost of capital The impact to profitability of any such acquisition will be 
dependent upon our ability to efficiently integrate the acquired business and cost structure into our existing 
platfonns. 

Cross-Selling Opportunities 

We will target opportunities to provide financing solutions to the Dealers who use our monitoring and/or 
administrative services. We also plan to expand the services which we provide to our Dealers' end-users. 
Effectivt? marketing and servicing are essential iri order to realize cross-sale benefits. The cost of effectively 

. marketing new products and services to end~users through Dealers may be greater than anticipated, which 
could negatively affect profitability. · 

New Businers Opportunilies 

We plan to leverage our existing infrastructure to expand in emerging applications such as global 
positioning systems, asset tracking, personal emergency response services and telemedicine. We have entered 
into contracts to morii.tor global positioning systems to provide asset tracking services, which in certain 
instances include the installation of emergency buttons in vehicles. In addition, we have begun to provide 
personal emergency response services to many of our existing traditional alann monitoring customers for 
emergency or mediCal alert services. we· believe that these emerging applications provide additional 
opportunities to leverage our existing infiastructure and increase revenues. The timing and economic impact 
of introducing new services to undeveloped market segments is difficult to forecast. These activities 

. accounted for approximately 6.4% of our revenues in 2002. 

3 

I 

I 
I 
:j 

i 
f 

GERSAV 0038324 

Div Ex 373 -6

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-CFH   Document 761   Filed 07/08/14   Page 6 of 35



·: . .. . · · . 
--- --- ~ ~ ._ ._,; __________ ., . __ .: .. 

-.:...·-~- ----- - .. __ 

Our Principal Offices 

Our principal offices are located at One Capital Center, 99 Pine Street, 3rd Floor, Albany, New York 
12207 and our telephone number is (518) 426-1515. Our WorW Wide Web address is www.KingCentral.com. · 
Information contained on our Internet site is not incorporated by reference into this prospectus and you 
should not consider information contained on our Internet site to be a part of this prospectus. 

The Offering 

Common stock offered by us: .. ·. . . . . . 22,000,000 shares · 

Common stock to be outstanding after 
this offering: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 23,590,911 shares (l) 

Use of proceeds: . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . We expect that we will ~eceive net proceeds of approximately 
$187.7million in this offering. We intend to use $80.1 million of 
the net proceeds to repay debt ($7 .5 million of which will be paid 
to affiliated parties) and $104.6 million to purchase portfolios of 
alarm monitoring contracts. Of the $80.1 million to be repaid, 
approximately 64.7% of such debt was incurred by entities 
affiliated with us prior to our acquisition of such entities in 
January 2003. The remainder will be used for working capital 
purposes. See "Use of Proceeds." 

NASDAQ symbol: IASG 

(1) Does not include: 
• Shares issuable upon exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment option, 
• Up to 792,793 shares that may be issued upon the conversion of our convertible promissory notes, 

which shares are being registered coilcurently with this offering, · 
• 150,000 shares issuable upon exercise of options that may be issued under our 2003 Stock Option 

Plan, 
• 1,900,000 shares issuable upon exercise of options to be granted to certain shareholders concurrent 

with this offering (the "Shareholder Options"), see "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions," 
• 48,000 shares issuable upon exercise of options to be granted concurrent with this offering to our non­

executive directors (the "Director Options"), see "Management-Director Compensation" or 
• Up to 68,182 shares that may be issued to the former owners of Criticom upon the achievement of 

certain performance criteria based on 2003 results of operations. 

4 

GERSAV 0038325 

Div Ex 373 -7

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-CFH   Document 761   Filed 07/08/14   Page 7 of 35



-·---··- ... ·-- ~..::.....--. ---·~ -----· 

SUMMARY FINANCIAL DATA 

. The following summary combined financial data has been derived from the IASG (successor to KC Acquisition) 
audited combined financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 and from the unaudited 
combined financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2002 and unaudited consolidated financial 
statements for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and the related notes appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. The 
following data should be read in conjunction with the "Manag~ment's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition 
and Results of Operations" and our combined financial statements and related notes elsewhere in this prospectus. 

The following pro forma financial data combine the historical combined financial statements IASG, IASI, and 
affiliates (41 trusts and three limited liability compauies) and Criticom. The pro forma financial data give effect to our 
acquisition of IASI and affiliates and Criticom through mergers using the purchase method of accounting. The pro forma 
financial data also give effect to the conversion of IASG from an S corporation to a C corporation for federal income tax 
purposes. See "Unaudited Pro Forma Combined Financial Information." The pro forma as adjusted financial data also 
give effect to the sale of the 22,000,000 shares of common stock offered by this prospectus at an initial public offering 
pi:ice of $9.25 per share and the repayment of $80.1 million. of debt See "Use of Proceeds." 

Year ended Three months ended Year ended Three mooths ended 
December 31, Mardi 31, December 31, 2002 March 31, 2003 

Statement of 
operations data:(l) 

2000 2001 2002 2002 
Pro Forma ProForma 

.2003 ·Pro Forma As Adjusted Pro Forma As Adjusted 

Revenue· ........... . s 18,n4,517 $20,569,037 $23,495,607 s 5,378,197 s 8,753,637 $ 42,641,694 $ 42,641,694 s 9,749,254 $ 9,749,254 
Total operating 

expenses, inclusive of 
cost of revenoe .... 

Income (loss) from 
operations .••..•.. 

Other (expense), net .. 

Loss befo~e benefit 

19,455,562 

(681,045) 
(3,824,867) 

(4,505,912) 

19,691,838 24,267,532 

877,199 .(771,925) 
(3,914,509) (5,556,730) 

(3,037,310) (6,328,655) 

5,564,015 12,479,075 44,500,492 44,500,492 13,859,618 13,859,618 

(185,818) (3,725,438) (1,858,798) (1,858,798) (4,110,364) (4,110,364) 
(1,473,706) (3,719,874) (17 ,848,062) (9,274,384) (4,703,7n) (2,580,602) 

(1,659,524) (7,445,312) (19,706,860) (ll,J33,18Z) (8,814,136) (6,690,966) · from income taxes .. 
Benefit (expense) from 

income taxes ..... . 4,793,725 703,784 681,443 89,789 (3,417 ,28.8) 380,000 108,000 (3,501,464) (3,572,464) 

Net (loss) income . • . . S 287,813 S (2,333,526) $ (5,647,212) $(1,569,735) $(10,862,600) $(19,326,860) $(11,025,18Z) $(12,315,600) $(10,263,430) 

Basic and diluted net 
income (loss) per 
shai-c . . . . • . . . . . . . S 0.52 $ (4.21) S (9.53) S (2.83) $ (8.44) S (12.15) $ (0.92) S (7.74) $ (0.86) 

Sbares used computing 
basic and diluted net 
income (loss) per 
common shOie (2)(3) 553,808 553,808 592,785 553,808 1,287,389 1,590,911 11,963,344 1,590,911 11,963,344 

Other financial data: 
Cash provided by (used 

in) operating 
activities . . . . . . . . . . (1,331,125) 1.012,251 2,691,844 (265,593) (3,486,593) 

Cash used in investing 
activities . . . . . . . . . . (11,086,367) (1,705,428) (g,863,018) (5,256,920) 8,260,291 

Cash provided by 
financing activities . . 12,851,242 765,875 5,389,221 4,668,579 . 1,573,444 

As or Mardi 31, 2003 

Balance sheet data: 
Cash, cash equivalents and shon-term investments ..............•..... 
Total assets ........•..........•.•...••...•.•••.•.••.....•..•... 
Long-term debt. ................................................ . 
Capital lease obligations ........................................•. 
Tolal slOCkholders' equity (deficit) ................................. . 
Worldng capital (deficit) ....................... . ................. . 

Actual 

$ 9,789.224 
146,584,626 
165,379,437 

470,193 
(32,330,327) 
(16,405,732) 

Pro Forma 
As Adjusted 

$120,237,137 
252,712,579 
83,446,104 

470,193 
155,730,959 
102,477,203 

(1) Results of operations for acquired companies are included from the date of acquisitioiL As a result comparability of periods 
presented has been affected by our acquisitions. For more information about our acquisition histor:j, see "Business, n 
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of. Fmancial Condition and Results of Operationsn and Notes 10 and 14 to our combined 
financial statements included elsewhere in this Prospectus. 

(2) On January 8, 2003, the Company's Board of Directorn approved a 6,033 for one common stock split, as a result, share data has 
been retroactively restated for all periods presented. 

(3) On Aprill7, 2003, the Company's Board of Directors approved a one for rwo reverse common stock split, as a result, share data 
has been retroaCtively restated for all periods presented. 
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RISK FACTORS 

In addition to til£ other infonnation set forth in this Prospectus, prospective investors should consider 
carefully til£ following factors. 

Risks Related To Our Business 

We have li.istorically incurred losses and we may not achieve profitability. On a pro forma basis 
we incurred a net loss of $19.3 million in 2002 and $12.3 million for the qUarter ended March 31, 2003. At 
March 31, 2003, we had, on a· pro forma as adjusted basis, an accumulated deficit of $33.8 million. We 
intend to continue to make significant investments in wholesale monitoring, alarm monitoring contract 
acquisition and financing, marketing, services and sales operations. Associated expenses could precede any 
revenues generated by the increased spending. As a result, we may continue to experience losses and negative 
cash flow from operations in future quarters. There can be no assura:ilce when and if we will become 
profitable. H we do become profitable, we may not be able to sustain or increase our profitability. 

Significant attrition of Dealers or non-renewal of end-user alarm monitoring contracts could 
materially adversely effect our resu.lts of operations. We experience attrition of Dealer customer 
relationships and alann monitoring contracts as a result of seveial factors including relocation of end-users, 
adverse financial and economic conditions and competition frOm other alann service companies. In addition, 
we may lose or experience non-renewal of certain alann monitoring contracts of Dealers, particularly 
acquired Dealer customer relationships and alann monitoring contracts, if we do not service thos_e alarm 
monitoring contracts adequately or do not successfully integrate new alarm monitoring contracts into our 
operations. A significant increase in attrition or the non-renewal of alann monitoring contracts could have a 
material adverse effect on our revenues and earnings. 

We engaged Standard & Poor's Corporate Value Consulting to perform attrition analyses of certain 
identified customer relationship groups. As a result of the study, we identified our historic end-user attrition 
rates to be 17.2% and 15.4% for the years ending December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively~ In 2000, the 
majority of the alann monitoring contracts we acquired were by foreclosure from Dealers to whom we had 
made loans. As a result, our attrition rate was adversely affected in 2000, with carryover into 2001. The 
Standard & Poor's study presents data for accounts acquired by bulk purchase, which represents the majority 
of our end-user alarm monitoring contracts, which suggests that the maximum expected amortizable life of . 
alarm monitoring contracts pUrchased in bulk is approximately 18 years. The maximum expected life is defined 
as that period in which the very last contract in a homogeneous pool would attrit. Annual attrition would cause 
the surviving population in the pool to diminish in each year from the date of acquisition. The Standard & 
Poor's study further suggests that the historic weighted average life for our residential security alarm contracts 
has ranged from 4 to 8 years. 

To the extent that actual attrition exceeds our expectations, our revenues, profitability, cashflow and 
earnings would be adversely effected. 

We intend to-employ, for prospective contracts purchased in bulk subsequent to January 31, 2003, an 
amortization methodology which is the total of the charges calculated by a straight line, 18 year life; together 
with charges incurred as a result of actual account attrition. · 

For previously acquired contracts, purchased in bulk, we will employ an amortization methodology 
which uses 150% declining balance over a life of 8 years. 

Attrition for acquired Dealer customer relationships and alarm monitoring contracts may be greater in 
the future than the attrition rate assumed or historically incurred by us. In addition, because some Dealer 
customer relationships and acquired alarm monitoring contracts are prepaid on an annual, semi-annual·or 
quarterly basis, attrition may not .become evident for some time after an acquisition is consummated. 

We face significant competition in the security alarm industry, which could make it more difficult 
for us to succeed in seeuring relationships with Dealers and reduce the number of alarm monitoring 
contracts we are able to acquire. We are dependent on entering into· and maintaining relationships with . 
Dealers who will either sell their alarm monitoring contracts directly to us, borrow from us, or enter into 
~!~ann monitoring · contracts for us to proVide monitoring services for the alarm monitoring contracts retained 
by them. While we do not typically compete directly with many of the larger companies in the industry 
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because we do not sen and install security systems, we are nonetheless impacted by the competitive challenge 
these entrants J'IeSent to Dealers. 

There is the potential that larger companies in the industiy may generate alarm monitoring contracts 
offering "zero down" on equipment purchases and installation. The independent Dealer may have to offer the 
same "zero down" deal in order to effectively compete. Since the end-users attracted to "zeitHiown" 
promotions are often of lower credit standing and thereby are more likely to default, we will only purchase 
these contracts if they have been outstanding for periods longer than 12 months and exhibit aCceptable 
payment patterns as wen as acq:prable responses to quality control calls, thus potentially limiting the 
available alarm monitoring contracts which meet our due diligence standards. · 

We also compete with several companies that have alarm monitoring contract acquisition and loan 
programs for Dealers and some of those competitors may be larger and better capitalized than we are. Some 
of these companies may be able to pay higher multiples of recuuing monthly revenue for the portfolios they 
acquire than we can. We may be required to offer higher prices for. such acquisitions than we have in the 
past, thus making these acquisitions less financially advantageous. There is. also the potential for other entities 
such as banks or finance companies to become. more active as a source of competition for the Dealer finance 
portions of our business. 

We may not be able to obtain all of the benefits of the security alarm monitoring contracts we 
purchase. A principal element of our business strategy is to acquire portfolios of alarm monitoring 
contracts. Acquisitions of end-user alarm monitoring contracts involve a number of risks, including the 
possibility that we will not be able to realize the recurring mon:thly revenue stream we contemplated at the 
time of acquisition because of higher than expected attrition ~tes or fraud. Although we complete an 
extensive due diligence process prior to acquiring alann monitoring contracts and obtain representations and 
warranties from the seller, we may not be able to detect fraud on the part of the seller, including the 
possibility that the seller has misrepresented the historical attrition rates of the s.old contracts or has sold or 
pledged the contracts to a· third party. If the sale of alarm monitoring contracts involves fraud or the . 
representations and warranties are otherwise inaccurate, we may not be able to recover from the seller 
damages in the amount sufficient to fully compensate us for any resulting losses. In such event, we may incur 
significant costs in litigating ownership or breach of acquisition contract terms. 

We may pursue acquisitions of alarm monitoring call centers that by their nature present risks and 
may not be successful. An element of our business strategy is to acquire additional alarm monitoring call 
centers. The following are some of the risks associated with these acquisitions: 

• We may be unable to achieve anticipated revenues, earnings or cash flow because of bigher than 
expected attrition rates or other reasons. 

e We may be unable to integrate acquired can centers successfully and realize anticipated economic, . 
operational and other benefits in a timely manner. If we are unable to integrate acquired call centers 
successfully, we could incur substantial costs and delays or other operational, technical or financial 
problems. 

• If we are not successful in integrating acquired call centers, we could have increased attrition of end­
users becapse of service-related problems. 

• Acquisitions could disrupt our ongoing business, distract management. divert resources and make it 
difficult to maintain our current business standards, controls and procedures. 

We also face competition in identifying and purchasing suitable alarm monitoring call centers. We would 
be competing with other firms, many of which have greater financial and other resources than we do. Should 
this competition increase, it will be more difficult to acquire additional alarm monitoring call centers. 

Our ability to continue to grow our business is dependent upon our ability to obtain additional 
financing. We intend to continue to pursue growth through the acquisition of end-user alarm monitoring 
contracts and wholesale monitoring businesses. We will be required to seek additional funding from third 
party lenders and/or from the possible sale of additional securities, which may lead to higher leverage or the 
dilution of then existing stockholders. Any inability to .obtain funding through third party financing is likely 
to adversely effect our ability to continue or increase our acquisition activities. Third party funding may not 
be available to us on attractive terms or at all. 
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Our debt obUgations burden our cashftow and could hinder our ability to obtain additional 
financing. Just prior to the offering; we expect to bave an aggregate of $161.5 million in indebtedness 
inclusive of prepayment fees and net of debt service reserve fimds on that debt which will be repaid with the 
net proceeds from this offering. Immediately following the offering, . we expect to have an aggregate of 
approximately $81.4 million in indebtedness, assuming the repayment of $80.1 million of debt. We may incur 
additional indebtedness . as we acquire additional wholesale monitoring businesses and alarm monitoring 
contracts. We expect that this additional debt will be serviced by the cash flows on the alarm monitoring 
contracts and wholesale monitoring businesses we acquire. Our ability to continue to service our indebtedness 
will be subject to various business, financial and other factors, many of which are beyond our control. In 
October 2002, the Company renegotiated approximately $26,380,000 of promissory notes payable to a bank. 
A balloon payment of approximately $11,125,000 originally due in March 2003 was extended to June 2004. 
Absent the offering proceeds, this debt may need to be again extended. At times we have been in default of 
various debt covenants and have been required to obtain bank waivers (most recently we obtained bank 
waivers on May 9, 2003, May 14, 2003 and June 19, 2003) of such defaults. In the event that we experienCe 
defaults in the future, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain bank waivers. If the waivers of 
May 9, 2003, May 14, 2003 and June 19, 2003 had not been obtained; approximately $17,600,000, 
$8,719,000 and $23,139,000, respectively, of long-term bank debt would have been reclassified as a current 
liability. Our debt obligations may have important consequences to holders of our common stock, includi.tig 
our ability to obtain additional financing in the future for working capital, acquisitions of alarm monitoring 
contract portfolios and monitoring call centers, capital expenditures, general corporate purposes or other 
purposes. Should our access to capital be impaired, we may be more vulnerable to a downturn in our business 
or the economy generally, and our ability. to grow or compete against other less leveraged companies may be 
adversely effected. · 

Rising interest rates could negatively effect our profitab!Uty. The interest rate of our financing is 
. generally tied to prevailing market rates. In the event that interest rates rise, the spread between our cost of 
ca]'rital and the amount that we can charge Dealers who borrow from us may decrease, which will negatively 
effect our profitability. 

We could face Uability for our failure to respond adequately to alarm activations. The nature of 
the services we provide potentially exposes us to risks of liability for employee acts or omissions or system 
failures. In an attempt to reduce this risk, our alarm monitoring agreements and other agreements pursuant to 
which we sell our products and services contain provisions limiting liability to end-users and Dealers . 
However, in the event of litigation with respect to such matters, there can be no assurance that these 
limitations will continue to be enforced. In addition, the costs of such litigation could have an adverse effect 
on us. 

We may face additional costs and potential liability as a result of "false alarm" ordinances. 
Significant concern has arisen in certain municipalities about the high incidence of false alarms. This concern 
could cause a decrease in the likelihood or timeliness of police response to alarm activations and thereby 
decrease the propensity of consumers to purchase or maintain alarm monitoring services. 

A number of local governmental authorities have considered or adopted various measures aimed at 
reducing the number of false alarms. Such measures include subjecting alarm monitoring companies to fines 
or penalties for transmitting false alarms, licensing individual alarm systems and the revocation of such 
licenses following a specified number of false alarms, imposing fines on alarm end-users for false alarms, 
imposing limitations on the number of times the police will respond to alarms at a particular location after a 
specified number of false alarms . and requiring sufficient further verification of an alarm signal before the 
police will respond. Enactment of such measures could increase our costs and thus adversely effect our future 
results of operations. 

Future government or other organization regulations and standards could have an adverse effect 
on our operations. Our operations are subject to a variety of laws, regulations and licensing requirements 
of federal, state and local authorities. In certain jurisdictions, we are required to obtain licenses or permits, to 
comply with standards governing employee selection and training and to meet certain standards in the 
conduct of our business. The loss of such licenses, or lhe imposition of conditions to the granting or retention 
of such licenses, could have an adverse effect on us. We believe that we are in material compliance with 
applicable laws and lieensing requirements. In the event that these laws, regulations and/or licensing 
requirements change, it could require us to modify our operations or to utilize resources .to maintain 
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compliance with such rules and regulations. There can be no assurance as to what new regulations will be 
enacted and what effect they may have on us. 

The loss of our Underwriters Laboratories listing could negatively impact our competitive 
position. All of our monitoring call centers are Underwriters Laboratories® ("UL") listed. To obtain and 
maintain a UL listing, an a1ann monitoring call center must be located in a building meeting UL's structural 
requirements, have back-up and uninterruptible power supply, have secure telephone lines and maintain 

· redundant computer systems. UL conducts periodic reviews of monitoring call centers to ensure compliance 
with their regulations. Non-compliance could result in a suspension of our UL listing. The loss of our UL 
listing could negatively impact our competitive position. 

We rely on technology which may become obsolete. Our monitoring services depend upon the 
technology (hardware and software) of security alarm systems. We may be required to upgrade or implement. 
new technology which could require significant capital expenditures. There can be no assurance that we will 
be able to successfully implement new technologies or adapt existing technologies to changing market 
demands. If we are unable to adapt in a timely manner in response to ·changing market conditions or 
customer requirements, such inability could adversely effect our business. 

In the event that adequate insurance is not available or our insurance is not deemed to cover a 
claim we could face liability. We carry insurance of various types, including general liability and en'Qrs 
and omissions insurance. Our loss experience and that of other security service companies may effect the 
availability and cost of such insurance. Certain of our insurance policies and the laws of some states may 
l.imi.t or prohibit insurance coverage for punitive or certain other types of damages, or liability arising from 
gross negligence. To the extent that insurance was not available, ora particular claim was.not covered or 
exceeded our coverage, we could be exposed to material costs. 

. . 
Our current stockholders may exercise significant influence over us following this offering. Before 

this offering, our directors, executive officers and prin~pal stockholders beneficially owned approximately· 
95% of the outstanding shares of our common stock. Following this offering, they will beneficially own .· 
approximately 6.4% ()four outstanding shares, or approximately 5.6% if the over-allotment option is 
exercised in full, and as a result, may have significant influence over our company. 

Any conflict of interest between us and various affiliates of our senior management could hurt our 
business or prospects. There is a possibility that confiicts of interest will arise between some affiliates of 
our senior management and us in various areas relating to our past and ongoing relationships. Potential 
factors that _may create a conflict of interest include: · 

Approximately 64.7% of the $80.1 million in net proceeds being used to repay indebtedness was 
incurred by entities affiliated with us prior to our acquisition of such entities in January 2003. To the extent 
that such entities were responsible for such indebtedness prior to their acquisition by us, the prior qwners of 
these entities benefit by the repayment of such amounts out of the net proceeds of this offering . 

. We lease our executive offices in Albany, New York from Pine Street Associates, LLC, an entity 50% 
owned by Y1mothy M. McGinn. our Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and David L. Smith, one of our 
Directors. We lease 4,520 square feet and pay a monthly rent of $4,326. The lease expires in 2007. We may 
enter into leases for additional space at this location as our business grows. Any such action will be approved 
by a majority of the independent and disinterested members of our Board of Directors, in accordance with 
our policy regarding transactions with affiliates. 

Timothy M. McGinn, our CEO, is a Director of McGinn, Smith & Cp., Inc., and David L. Smith, one of 
our Directors, is President and a Director of McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. For the period January 1. 2000 to 
January 31, 2003, McGinn; Smith & Co:, Inc. has acted as either a placement agent or investment banker in 
connection with various financings, as well as an investment banker in connection with ceitain acquisitions. 
McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc., an NASD registered broker dealer, received commissions and/or investment 
banking fees of $4.5 million for acting in such capacity. McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc., is acting as an 
underwriter in this offering. Subject tO our policy on interested party transactions, McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. 
may in the future act as an un(lerwriter to us. Our policy provides that any future transactions with affiliates, 
including without limitation, our officers, directors or principal stockholders will be on terms no less 
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favomble than we could have obtained from unaffiliated third parties. Any such transactions will be approved 
by a majority of the independent and disinterested members of our board of directors. 

McGinn Smith is acting as an underwriter in this offering. To the extent that principals of McGinn Smith 
are shareholders of ours, they may have additional interest in the suceessful completion of tb.e offering that a 
traditional underwriter would not have. However, Friedman, Billings, Ramsey is acting as managing 
underwriter of the offering and is performing the role of a qualified independent underwriter which we 
believe will mitigate any potential conflicts arising from McGinn Smith's role as an underwriter. 

We are dependent upon our senior management. The success of our business is. largely dependent 
upon the active participation of our executive officers, who have extensive experience in the industry. As a 
result, we have entered into employment agreements with .each of our executive officers. The loss of the 
services . of one or more of such officers for any reason may have an adverse effect on our business. 

Investors will experience immediate and substantial dilution of the common stock's net tangible 
book value. If you purchase our common stock in this offering, the net tangible book value of your 
common stock will experience immediate and substantial dilution from the initial public offering price. We 
estimate that this dilution will be approximately $(7.74) per share, or approximately $(170.3) million. See 
"Dilution." 

Stockholders should not expect dividends. We do not intend to pay any cash dividends in the 
foreseeable future. 

Risks Related To The Offering 

Our common stock price may fall upon the future sale of additional shares of our common 
stock. Future sales of our common stock in the public market, or even the possibility of such sales, may 
materially and adversely effect the market price of our common stock. There were 1,590,911 shares of 
common stock outstanding before this offering. All of such shares are "restricted securities" within the 
meaning of Rule 144 of the Securities Act of 1933. All of these restricted shares of our common stock will 
become eligible for resale under Rule 144 one year after issuance, subjec't to volume and manner of sale 
limitations, provided that we are current in our filing requirements under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 
for at least 90 days prior to the proposed date of sale, and will be _eligible for resale without restrictions two 
years after their date of issue, except foe shares owned by. our affiliates which will remain subject to the 
volume and manner of sale limitations. Of the 1,590,911 shares, 553,808 were issued more than two years 
ago and are held by our affiliates, 155,911 were issued in September 2002 and 881,192 were.issued in 
January 2003. Of the shares issued in' September 2002 and January 2003, 962,836 are owned by our affiliates. 
In addition, 792,793 shares of common stock have been registered for sale in connection with the possible 
conversion of the Convertible Notes which shares, if converted, would be immediately eligible for sale 
subject to the underwriter's 270 day lock-up. 

Our common stock price could be volatile. The stock market has from time to. time experienced 
extreme price and volume fluctuations that have been unrelated to the operating performance of particular 
companies. The market price of our common stock may be significantly effected by quarterly variations in 
our operating results, changes in financial estimates by securities analysts or failures by us to meet such 
estimates, litigation involving us, general trends in the security alarm industry, actions by governmental 
agencies, national economic and stock market conditions, industry reports and other factors, many of which 
are beyond our control. 

Certain antitakeover effects in Delaware law and our charter documents could prevent a potential 
opportunity that might benefit stockholders. Certain provisions of Delaware law could delay or prevent a 
change in control of us, discourage acquisition proposals or diminish the opportunities for a stockholder to 
participate in tender offers, including tender offers at a price above the then current ·mark:et value of our 
common stock or over a stockholder's cost basis in our common stock. In addition, our Board of Directors, 
without further stockholder approval, may issue preferred stock, which could have the effect of delaying, 
deferring or preventing a change in control of us. the issuance of preferred stock could also adversely effect 
the voting power of the holders of common stock, including the loss of voting control to others. 
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SPECIAL NOTE REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 

This prospectus contains forward-looking statements. The forward-looking statements involve a number 
of risks and uncertainties. A number of factors could cause our actual results, performance, achievements or · 
industry results to be materially different from ·any future results, performance or achievements expressed or 
implied by these forward-looking statements. These factors include, but are not limited to: 

general economic and business conditions; 

our business strategy for expanding our presence in our industry; 

anticipated trends in our financial condition and resUlts of operations; 

the impact of competition and technological change; 

existing and future regulations effecting our business; and 

other risk factors set forth under "Risk Factors" in this prospectus. 

You can identify forward-looking statements geneially by the use of forward-looking terminology such 
as "believes," "expects," "may," "will," "intends," "plans," "should," "could," "seeks," "pro forma," 
"anticipates," "estimates," "continues," or other variations thereof, including their usc in the negative, or by 
discussions of strategies, opportunities, plans or intentions. You may find these forward-lool.ciug statements 
under the captions "Prospectus Summary," "~k Factors," "Use of Proceeds," "Management's Discussion 
and Analysis ofFinancial Condition and Results of Operations," and "BIISiness," as well as under other 
captions elsewhere in this prospectus. These forward-looking statements necessarily depend upon a~umptions 
and estimates that may prove to be incorrecl 

Although we believe that the assumptions and estimates reflected· in the forward-looking statements 
contained in this prospectus are reasonable; we cannot guarantee that we will achieve our plans, intentions or 
expectations. The forward-looking statements involve known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other 
factors that may cause actual results to differ in significant ways from any future results expressed or implied 
by the forward-looking statements. 
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USE OF PROCEEDS 

We expect that we will receive net proceeds from this offering of approximately $187.7 million, or 
approximately $216.0 million if the underwriters exercise their over-allotment option in full. Such estimates 
are based on an initial public offering price of $9.25 per share. ·The amounts listed below include balances as 
of July 2, 2003·and take into account prepayment fees. 

We intend to use the net proceeds of this offering as follows: 

• Repayment of promissory notes issued upon exchange of trust certificates_ of seven 
trusts, due in June and July 2005, bearing interest at 12% per annum. The seven 
trusts were originally controlled by affiliates of ours. The trusts were formed for 
the purpose of acquiring monitoring contracts. The note holders are comprised of 
non-affiliated investors. All of such indebtedness was incurred by IASI. 

• Repayment of bank debt, due through May I, 2005, bearing interest at various 
rates from 8:0% to 12.5%·per annwn. The debt is due to Key Bank, N.A. and was 
incurred for the purpose of acquiring central stations, wholesale monitoring 
contracts, and for worldng capital. All of such .indebtedness was incurred by KC 
Acquisition. · 

• Repayment of subordinated debt, due on dates rangirig from April!, 2005 to 
April 1, 2007, bearing interest at rates ranging from 10.10% to 12.50% per annum. 
The subordinated debt is from a collection -of investment trusts created for the 
purchase of monitoring contracts, and were originally controlled by affiliates of 
ours. The debt is payable to non-affiliated investors. All of such indebtedness was 
incurred by IASL 

• Repayment of subordinated debt, due on June 1, 2006, bearing interest at 12.5% · 
per ~urn. This debt is from an investment trust controlled by an affiliate of ours. 
The trust was fonned for the purpose of acquiring monitoring contracts. The. debt 
is payable to non-affiliated accredited investors. All of such indebtedness was 
incurred by IASL 

• Repayment of promissory notes to Lynn A. Smith, the wife of one of our 
directors, bearing interest at 6.25% and 12% per annum, and due in March 2004 
and January 2004, respectively. One of the notes ($3.0million) is debt incurred by 
KC Acquisition, and the other ($3.0 million) is debt incurred by IASI prior to its 
acquisition in January. A portion ($2.0 million) of the proceeds of the $3.0 million 
indebtedness incurred by IASI was loaned by IASI to KC Acquisition. 

• Repayment of debt, due on December 1, 2005, bearing interest at a variable 
interest rate, which is currently 6.75%. This debt is due to Security Leasing 
Partners, L.P., au unaffiliated third-party, and was created for the purpose of 
acquiring monitoring contracts. This indebtedness was incurred by IASI. 

• Repayment of debt to ·various lenders, due on dates ranging from May l, 2003 to 
April 1, 2006, bearing interest at rates ranging from 8.0% to 12.0% per annum. 
The debt is due to Key Bank, N.A, BSB Bancorp, and 15 investment trusts not 
exchanged for promissory notes of IASI. In the aggxegate 38% of the 41 trusts' 
certificates were not exchanged for promissory notes. The investment trusts were 
created for the purchase . of monitoring contracts, and were originally controlled by 
affiliates of ours, The debt is payable to non-affiliated investors. All of such 
indebtedness was incurred by IASL 

• Repayment of debt to M&S Partners, an entity controlled by Messrs. Smith and 
McGinn. This indebtedness was assumed from M&S Partners by IASL 

12 
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$ 25.2 million 

S 24.7 million 

$ 9.2 million 

$ 6.2 million 

$ 6.0 million 

$ 3.7 million 

$ 3.6 million 

$ 0.9 million 
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• Repayment of debt to Royal Thought,s, LLC, due in January, 2004, bearing 
interest of 9.0% per annum. Curt Quady, an Executive Vice President and his 
family own a majority of Royal Thoughts. This · indebtedness was inCUJred by KC 
Acquisition in connection with the acquisition of the 5.3% interest in Royal 
Thoughts. 

Total repayment of debt: 

PrQceeds intended for purchases -of alaxm monitoring contracts .. This represents the 
estimated cash portion of the net proceeds-that management believes it will 
expend to acquire additional alaxm momtoring con~ts. Tile cost of the alaxm 
monitoring contracts to be acquiied_ will be detennjned by anns length 
negotiations between management and the owners of such contracts. None of 

. such contracts is owned by any of our nftllintes. 

Working capital and general corporate purposes 

Total Uses: 

$ 0.6 million 

$ 80.1 million 

$104.6 milliou 

$ 3.0 million 

$187.7 million 

All of the debt to be repaid from the proceeds of this offering is related to the purchase of alaxm 
monitoring contracts, central stations, Dealer relationships or Wa!; utilized for working capital. Other than 
Royal Thoughts, Lynn A .. Smith, and M&s Partners, none of the holders of our debt to be· repaid from the 
proceeds of this offering is an affiliate of _ours or related to one of our affiliates. In total, 64.7% of the debt to 
be repaid with this offering was' incurred by entities that were affiliated with us prior to their acquisition in 
January. Management will have broad discretion in the application of the net proceeds nllocnted to working 
capital and other general corporate purposes. 

·13 
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DIVIDEND POUCY 

We currently expect to retain all of our future eamings, if any, to supPort the development of our 
business and do not anticipate paying any cash or non-cash dividends in the foreseeable future. 

CAPITALIZATION 

The following table sets forth our cash and capitalization as of Maxch 31, 2003 on (i) an actual basis, 
IASG (successor to KC Acquisition) and (ii) on a pro forma as adjusted basis to reflect the sale of 22,000,000 
shares of our common stock at an offering price of $9.25 per share and the application of the proceeds 
therefrom to repay $80.1 million of debt. You should read this table in conjunction with "Use of Proceeds," 
"Management's Discussion and Analysis of }<mancial Condition and Results of Operations" and our financial 
statements and related notes included in this prospectus. 

Cash and cash equivalents ..... . ... . . . . .. , . ...... ........ .... . 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents ........................ , . . . 

Total cash ....... . ............ .. ............ .. : . ........... . 

Short tenn--Related Party ........ . ......... ... . ... .......... . . . 
Short tenD-Unrelated ......... . . ... .... .. ......... .... ... ... . 

Total Short term debt ... . . .... .. . .. . ... ....... ............ .. . 

Long term-Related Party ........ . .............. .. ............ . 
Long term-Unrelated ....................... . ............ : .. . 

Total Long term ·debt . .- .......... .. ..... . · . . ................ . . . 

Totlil Debt ... ...... ...... ... .......... . •. . ..... . .......... 

Stockholders' equ1ty: 
Common stock ($0.001 par value; authorized 100,000,000 shares, 

1,590,911 shares issued actual and 23,590,911 shares issued pro 
forma as adjusted) (1) ...... . .......... ..... ............ . . 

Paid-in capital ... . .. . . ... . . . ......... . ..... . . . ... . .... ... . 
Ac::cumulated deficit ... ... . . .. ............. . . .. ............ . 

Total stockholders' equity (deficit) ............................. . 

Total capitalization ...... · ..... .. ... . ......................... . 

(1) Does not include: 
• Shares issuable upon exercise of the underwriters' over-allotment option, 

As of March 31, 2003 

Actual 

$ 6,789,224 
3,992,913 

$ 10,782,137 

$ 1,683,853 
15,273,182 

16,957,035 

12,395,240 
136,027,162 

148,422,402 

165,379,437 . 

1,591 

(32,331,918) 

(32,330,327) 

$133,049,110 

Pro forma 
as adjusted 

$ll7,237,137 
1,100,000 

$ll8,337,137 

$ 76L862 
7,760,151 

8,522,013 

5,810,240 
69,113,851 

74,924,091 

83,446,104 

23,591 
l89,4Q6,333 
(33,758,965) 

155,730,959 . 

$239,177,063 

• Up to 792,793 shares that may be issued upon the conversion of our convertible promissory notes, which 
shares are being registered concurent1y with this offering, · 

• 150,000 shares issuable upon exercise of options that may be issued under our 2003 Stock Option Plan, 
• 1,900,000 shares issuable upon exercise of the Shareholder Options to be granted concurrent with this 

offering, see "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions," 
• 48,000 shares issuable upon exercise of the Director Options to be granted concurrent with this offering, 

see "Management-Director Compensation." or 
• Up to 68,182 shares that may be issued to the former owners of Criticom upon the achievement of certain 

performance criteria based on 2003 results of operations. · 

·::. :·-:- .·· . -~ ·.·- ··- ~-· .... -.. - ··-·-· ----·-~----------- --...,.-.,...---
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DILUfiON 

The historical net tangible deficit of IASG {successor to KC Acquisition) on March 31, 2003. was 
approximately ${153,848,337), or $(96.70) per share of common stock basCd on the number of shares of 
common stock outstanding. Historical net tangible book value per share is equal to .the amount of our total 
tanilble ~ets, which excludes goodwill. retail customer contracts. Dealer relationships and debt issuance 
costs less total liabilities, divided by the number of shares of common stock. Pro forma net tangible book 
value per share represents the amount of our total pro forma tangible assets less total liabilities divided by the 
pro forma number of shares of common stock outstanding. Dilution in pro forma net tangible book value per 
share represents the difference between the amount per share paid by purchasers of shares of common stock 
in this offering and the net tangible book value per share of our common stock afterwards. After giving effect 
to the sale of 22,000,000 shares of common stock offered by this prospectus at an iliitial public offering price 
of $9.25 per share, assuming the underwriters' o~er-allotment option is not exercised, and after deducting the 
underwriting discount and offering expenses, our pro forma net tangible book value at March 31, 2003, would 
have been approximately $35,639,996 or $1.51 per share. This represents an immediate dilution to investors 
of $(7.74) per share to new investors purchasing shares ofcoiiliiion stock in this offering. The following table 

. illustrates this dilution on a per share basis: 

Initial public offering price per share .................... . . $9.25 
Net tangible deficit value per share as of March 31, 2003 . .. . . . $(96.70) . 
Increase in pro forma net tangible book value per share 

attributable to investing in this offering . . . . . . . . . . . . . .... . 98.21 . 

Pro forma net tangible book value_ per share after this offering . . 

Dilution per share to new investors . . ..... ... . . . . .. . .. ... . . 

The following table sets forth, as of March :'11, :iO<n, on a pro fonna hasis, the number of shares of 
common stock purchased; the total consideration paid and the average price per sh~ paid by existing and 
new stockholders, before deducting underwriting discounts and commissions and our offering expenses 
payable: 

Shares purchased Total consideration 

Number Percent Number Percent 

Existing stockholders ....... . . ..... .. ·. · .. .. . 1,590,911 6.74% $ 2,125,000 1.03% 
New investors . ........ . .. .. .. . . . . . .. . . .. .. 22,000,000 93.26% $203,500,000 98.97% 

-- = 
Total .. ... ... . .. ...... ...... ... . . .. ... .. 23,590,911 100.00% $205,625,000 100.00% -- --

The foregoing discussion does not include 1,900,000 shares issuable upon exercise of the Shareholder 
Options, 48,000 shares issuable upon exercise of options granted to our non-executive Directors, 3,300,000 

. shaccs issuable upon cll.en:ise uf lhe over-allotment option, 1.50,000 options that may be issued U!lUt:r our . 
2003 Stock Option Plan, 792,793 shares issuable upon conversion of the Convertible Notes or up to 68,182 
shares that may be issued to the former owners -of Criticom upon the achievement of certain performance 
criteria. 

15 
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SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA 
The followllig selected combined (except for the three months ended and as of March 31, 2003 which is 

consolidated) financil!l data as of DeCember 31, 1998, March 31, 2002 and March 31, 2003 and for the year 
ended December 31, 1998 and for the three months ended March 31, 2002 and 2003 has been derived from . 
the IASG unimdited ~ancial statements. The following selected combined financial data as of December 31, 
2001 and 2002 and for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 have been derived from the IASG 
audited combined .fii:lancial statements, and the related notes, appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. The 
selected combined financial data as of December 31, 1999 and 2000 and for the year ended December 31, 
1999 has been derived from the IASG audited combined financial statements and the rel.aied notes for such 
periods. The following data should be read in conjunction with the "Management's Discussion and Analysis 
of Fmancial Condition and Results of Operations" and our combined financial statements and related notes 
appearing elsewhere in this prospectus. 

Three months ended March 31, 
Year ended December 31, (unaudited) 

1998 1999 2000 2001 l002 2002 2003 
Statement of operations data (1): 
Revenue . . ••. .. ..... ...... . . . .. ... $ 10,596,348 $12,72 I ,583 $ 18,774,517 $20,569,037 $ 23,495,607 s 5,378,197 $ 8,753,637 
Total operating· expenses, inclusive of 

cost of revenue .... . . ... • .. . . .... 8,736.968 13,337,323 19,455,562 19,691,838 24,267,532 5,564,015 12,479,075 

Income (loss) from operatioos . .. . .... 1,859,380 (615,740} (681,045) 877,199 (771,925) (185,818) (3,725,438) 
Other (expense), net ..... . . . •.•.•... (3,558.972) (2,475,054) (3,824,867) (3,914,509) (5,556,730) (1,473,706) (3,719,874) 

Loss befon: (provision) benefit for 
income taxes ........ . ...•. • ..•.. (l,699,S92) (3,090,794) (4,505,912) (3,037.310) (6,328,655) (1,659,524) (7,445,312) 

(Provision) benefit for income taxes .. (13,975) 4,793,725 703,784 681,443 89,789 (3,417 ,288) 

Net (loss) income . . .. . .. . .... . . .. ·.· s (1,713,567) $(3,090,794) $ 287,813 s {2,333,526) $ (5,647 ,212) s (1,569,735) s (I 0,862,600) 

Basic and diloucd ncl (loss) ine;ome per 
shan: ... . . .. . ... . . . . .....•.•. . . $ (3.09) $ (5.58) $ 0.52 $ (4.21) $ (9.53) $ (2.83) $ (8.44) 

Shares used computing basic and 
diluted net (loss). income per 
c:onunon share (2) (4) ... ..... .... 553,808 553,808 553,808 553,808 592,785 553,808 1,287,389 

Pro rorma income tax 1!1 give effect 
as if a C corporation (3): 

Loss before benefit from income taxes $ (4,505,912) $(3,037,310) $ (6,328,655) $ (1,659,524) $ (7,445,312) 
Bc:ncfil from income taxes ... .. . .... 1,519,990 955,569 2,871,573 662,438 199,200 

Net loss .. . . , . . . .. . . .. .. ... .. . ... . s (2,985, 922) $(2,081,741) s (3,457,082) $ (997,086) s (7,246,112) 

Net loss per share ......... . . ... . . .. $ (5.39) $ (3.76) $ (5.83) $ (1.80) $ . (5.63) 

Balaace sheet data: 
Cash, cash equivalents and short-tenn 

inves1lllcnts ··· ··· ·· · ······· · · ·· s 1,107,718 s 717,586 $ 1,151,337 $ 1,224,035 $ 3,442,082 s 370,102 s 9,789,224 
Total assets 23,264,759 24,350,032 38,113,543 36,830,768 45,627,797 40,726,719 146,584,626 
Long-term debt : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : : 17,908,964 22,319,837 35,599,770 37,122,449 45,061,363 41,998,577 165,379,437 
Capital lease obligali011$ . ......... . . 380,254 258,021 145,355 32,549 507.858 470,193 
Total stockholders' (deficit) . . . .... . .. (3.935,072) (7 ,025,866) (7.067,197) (9,345,667) (11,562,881) (11.390.809) (32,330,327) 
Working capital (deficit) . ... . . ...•.. (1,913,5 19) (3,975,589) (5,240,872) (7,798,161) (8,076,758) (19,887,153) (16,405,732) 

Other financial data: 
Cash provided by (used in) operuing 

2,691,844 (265,593) activities · ········· · ········ ··· 2,281.447 (32,010) (1.331.125) 1.012.251 (3,486,593) 
Cash provided by (used in) investing 

activities · ·· · ··· · ·· · ·· ·· · · · ·· · · (15,457.268) . (3,878,468) (11,086,367) (1,705,428) (8,863,018) (5,256,920) 8,260,291 
Cash provided (used in) financing 

5,389,221 4,668,579 1,573,444 . activities ······ ······· ·· ····· ·· 13,809,146 3,520,347 12,851,242 765,875 

(1) Results of operations for acquired companies are included from the date of acquisition. As a resu~ comparability of 
periods presented has been effected by our acquisitions. For more infonnation about our acquisition bistocy, sec 
"Business," "Ma!!agement's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations" and Notes 10 
and 14 to our combined fuwtcial statements and certain other pro forma adjustments, more fully described elsewhere 
in this Prospectus. 

(2) On Ja!!wuy 8, 2003, our Board of Directors approved a 6,033-for-one stock split, as a result, share data has been 
retroactively restated far all periods presented. · 

(3) To give effect to the conversion of KC Acquisition from an S corpomtioo to a C corporation for federal income tax 
purposes. The tax provision was prepared as if we had a combined federal and state effective tax rate of 40% and · 
giving effect for permanent differences. 

(4) On April 17, 2003, the Company's Board of Directors approved a one for two reverse conunon stock split, as a result, 
share data has been rettoactively restated for all periods presented. · 

16 
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PRO ·FORMA COMBINED FINANCIAL INFORMATION 

The following unaudited pro forma combined (consolidated after December 31, 2002) financial 
sl.al.ements 1:nmhinP. thP. historie111 financial Statements of IASG (successor to KC Acqui:Jition), IASI and 
affiliates (41 trusts and three limited liability companies) and Criticom. KC Acquisition acquired 100% of the 
outstanding stock of Criticom during September 2002 and recorded the acquisition using the purchase method 

. of accounting. IASG acquired 100% of the outstanding stock of IASI and affiliates on January 31, 2003 and 
recorded the acquisition using the purchase method of accounting. 

We derived the unaudited pro forma balance sheet as of March 31, 2003 from our historical balance 
sheet as of March 31, 2003, as adjusted for the proposed offering (more fully described in Note 1). 

We derived the unaudited pro forma statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2003 
and year ended December 31, 2002 from our financial statements for the three months ended March 31, 2003 
and the year ended December 31, 2002, the combined financial statements of IASI and the trusts and limited 
liability companies for the year ended December 31, 2002 and the month of January 2003 and the financial 
statements of Criticom for the period from January 1, 2002 to September 25, 2002. The historical financial 
statements used in preparing the pro forma financial data are summarized and should be read in conjunction 
with our, IASI's and the trusts' and limited liability companies' and Criticom's complete historical financial 
statements that are included elsewhere in this prospectus. 

The pro forma combined statements of operations for the three months ended March 31, 2003 and for 
the year ended December 31, 2002 gives effect to the acquisitions using the purchase method of accounting 
as if the acquisitions had been consummated on January l, 2002 and January 1, 2003, respectively. 

We are providing .the pro forma combined financial information for illustrative purposes only. The 
companies may have performed differently had they been combined during the periods presented. You should 
not rely on the unaudited pro forma combined financial information as being indicative -of the historical 
results that would have been achieved had the companies actually been combined during the periods 
presented or the future· results that the combined company will experience. The unaudited pro forma 
combined statements of operations do not give effect to any cost savings or operating synergies expected to 
result from the acquisitions or the costs to achieve such cost savings or operating synergies. 

17 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. 

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET 
As or Marcb 31, 2003 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

{unaudited) 

Cash and cash equivalents .•.......... .... .... .. ....•. 
Short -term investments , . . .. . ..•. : .. .•. . ... .... .. . . .. 
Cunent ponion of nates receivable .... .....• ..... , ....• . 
Accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful accounts .. 
Prepaid expenses · ....... .. . . ...••....• . •....... . . .. _ . 
Due from related party .... . .. . .. . ... .. •...•.• •. ..... 

Total cum:ot assets . . . . .. ......... .•.. .... . . • .... 

Notes receivable net of cnrrent portion and reserves ... . ... . 
Property and equipment. net .... ..... ..... ........ .... . . 
Dealer relationships and Customer contracts, net . .......... . 
Goodwill ......•...•...... .. ........ •. .. . ...... . . .. .. 
Debt issuance costs, net ...... . ........ .... ..•...... ... . 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents •...... . .......... . ... 
Other assets .. . . .... .... .. . ... .... : ... .. .... . . .... . ... . 

Total assets .. ........ ... .. . ..... .... ....... : . .. . . 

UABILITiEs AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY (DEFICIT) 
Cum:nt liabilities: . 

IASG 

$ 6,789,224 
3,000,000 
1,294,758 
1,151,162 

87,135 
173,34() 

12,495,619 

4,895,973 
2,503,280 

66,942,286 
50,234,338 

4,341,386 . 
3,992.913 
1,178,831 

$146,584,626 

Offering 
proceeds 

$110,447,913 (I) 

110,447,913 

(1,427 ,047)(2} 
(2,892,913)( 1) 

$106,127.953 

Pro forma 
as . adjusted 

$117,237,137 
3,000,000 
1,294,758 
1,151,162 

87,135 
173,340 

122,943,532 

4,895,973 
2,503,280 

66,942,286 
50,234,338 

2,914,339 
1,100,000 
1,178,831 

$252,712,579 

Current ponion of long-term dett, related party . . .. ... .. . 
Cum:nt portion oflong-tenn debt ...... .. ............. . 

$ 1,683,853 
15,273,182 

145,842 
6,931,199 

312,327 
4,554,948 

$ (921,991)(1) $ 
(7,513,031)(1) 

761,862 
7,760,151 

145,842 
6,931,199 

312,327 
4,554,948 

Cum:nt ponion of capital lease obligations . . . . , ........ . 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ... ........ . . . . . 
Other liabilities . . ......... .. .. .. .... .•.. .... .. .. ... .. 
Cum:nt ponion of deferred revenue .... . ~ . ... .... : . . .. . 

Total cwrent liabilities ....•.•.......... · ...... ... . . 

Long-term liabilities: 
Long-term debt, net of current portion, related party . .. .•. 
Long-rerm debt, net of current portion . .. .......•.... . .. 
Capital lease obligations, net of current ponion ......... . 
Deferred revenue, net of cunent ponion .• ............. . 
Deferred income taxes ..... .. . . ... . ... . ..... . . ... . · ... . 
Due to related party ....... . ............ . ............ . 

Total long-term liabilities ........ . .......... . ... . 

Total liabilities . . . ... · .. ... .. .... . ... ... .... . . · . .. . 

Commitments and contingencies 
Stockholders' equity (deficit): 

Common stock . . . . ........ . .. .. ....... . ..........•.. 
Paid-in capital ... . ..... .. .• .. ....... . ..... . .. ....... 
Accumulated deficit ...... ...•.. ....• ... : ........ ..• . . 

Total stockholders' equity (deficit) .. . ... ..... , .... .. . 

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity ..•...... .. . 

18 

28,901,351 

12,395,240 
136,027,162 

324,351 
389,422 
830,974 
. 46,453 

150,013,602 

178,914,953 

1,591 

(32,331,918) 

(32,330,327) 

$146,584,626 

(8,435,022) 

(6,585,000)(1) 
(66,913,311)(3) 

(73,498,311) 

(81,933,333) 

22,000 (1) 
189,466,333 (4) 

( 1,427 ,047){2) 

-188,061,286 

$106,127,953 

20,466,329 

5,810,240 
69,113,851. 

324,351 
389,422 
830,974 

46,453 

76,515,291 

96,981,620 

23,591 
189,466,333 
(33,758,965) 

155,730,959 

$252,712,579 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. 

Notes to Pro Fonna Consolidated Balance Sheet 
· As of March 31, 2003 · 

(unaudited) 

(l) KC Ac:quisiti.on merged with KC Alarm Services Group, Inc. (a newly formed entity, which subsequently 
changed its name to Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc. ("IASG")) in January 2003. This adjustment 
records the use of the proceeds from the issuance of common stock and the corresponding changes in the 
equity accounts. The pro forma as adjusted columns give effect to the sale by IASG of 22,000,000 shares · 
of common stock at an offering price of $9.25 per share and the application of the pffering proceeds, after­
deducting underwriting discounts, and estimated offering expenses of $1,600,000. Adjusnnents include: 
the reduction of long-term debt, increase in cash and cash equivalents and the issuance of 22,000,000 
shiues of common stock in this offering. 

Proceeds: 
22,000,000 shares at $9.25 ......... . . . ... .. . 
Offering costs (7%+$1,600,000) . ... . .... . · . . . . 

Net proceeds of offering . . ..... . .... .. ... . . . 

Used for: 
Cash and cash equivalents .... . ..... . ..... .. 
Cwrent portion of long-term debt, related party . . 
Long-term debt, net of current portion, related 
party . . . .................... · . .. . . . .... .. . 
Cwrent portion of long-term debt . . .... ..... . 
Long-term debt, net of current portion (note 3} 

Equity accounts: . . 
Par $.001 x 22,000,000 .... ......... .. ..... .. 
Additional paid-in capital .. . ... . ...... . .... .. 

Total ....... . ... .. ... .. .... . ...... .. ... . . 

Cash adjustment 
Cash from offering proceeds . ... . ..... .. .... .. 
Restrictions removed by repayment of debt . . . .. . 

Total cash adjustment .. .. .... .. .... . ...... . 

$ 921,991 

6,585,000 
7,513,031 . 

65,079,978 

$107,555,000 
2,892,913 

$110,447,913 

$203,500,000 
15,845,000 

$187,655,000 

167,555,000 

80,100,000 

$187,655,000 

22,000 . 
187,633,000 see note 4 

$187,655,000 

(2) Elimination of debt issuance costs of $1,427,047 that were a result of the debt that is being paid-off with 
the initial public offering proceeds. These costs will be charged to expense at the time the debt is 
redeemed. However the unamortized portion of the debt issuance costs have been removed from the 
balance sheet and charged to accumulated deficit 

(3) In September 2002, IASG, a pre-existing Delaware company which has been subsequently dissolved, 
issued an aggregate of $5.5 million principal amount of convero'ble notes, which we assumed in January, 
2003. These notes contain a beneficial conversion feature whereby they can be converted to common 
stock at a 25 percent discount from the initial public offering price. The common stock purchased at a 
discounted price ($9.25 x .75 = $6.9375) would have a market value of $7,333,333. The beneficial 
conversion feature will be recorded at the $1,833,333 spread (reduction of long-term debt) and amortized 
straight-line over the three-year life of the ~otes. The resulting interest expense will be $611,111 per year. 
Combined with the repayment of $65,079,978 with the offering proceeds, long-term debt, net of current 
portion will decrease by $66,913,311. 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. 

Notes to Pro Forma Consolidated Balance Sheet 
As of March 31, 2003 

(unaudited) 

(4) Additional paid-in capital was adjusted for lhe following items: 

To record the effect of issuing initial public offering shares .... . ........... . 
To book beneficial conversion feature of debt ................. .. ... . ... . . 

Total adjustment to additional paid-in capital ... . .. .... ... ..... .... . .... . 

20 
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Offering 
proceeds 

note 1 $187,633,000 
note 3 1,833,333 

$189,466,333 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. 

PRO FORMA COMBINED STATEMmiT OF OPERATIONS 
For the Year Ended December 31, 2002 

(unaudited) 
Pro forma Offering Pro forma 

IASG lAS I Criticom adjustments Proforma proceeds as adjusted 

Revenue .•.......•....•.•..•...•.. $23,495,6U7 $ 18,889,140 $5,202,771 $(4,945,8i4)(1) $ 42,641,694 $42,641,694 
Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation 

and amonization) ... · ............. 15,424,912 3,230,179 18,655,091 18,655,091 

8,070,695 18,889,140 1,972,592 23,986,603 23,986,603 

Operating expenses: 
Selling and marketing ......•..•.• 736,866 439,316 1,176,182 1,176,182 
Depreciation and 

amortization ·······-·-········ 5,580,985 8,850,386 234,591 182,904 (2) 14,848,872 14,848,872 
Monitoring expense .............. 1,609,795 (1,358,126)(3) 251,669 251,669 
General an.d administrative ........ 2,524,769 6,129,306 1,241,493 (326,890)(4) 9,568,678 9,568,678 

Total opaating expenses ........ 8,842,620 16,589,487 1,915,406 25,845,401 25,845,401 

Income (loss) from operations ...•.... (771,925) 2,299,653 57,186 (1,858,798) (1,858,798) 
Otber income .....•...........•.... 656,299 92,823 749,122 

(439~489)(6) 
749,122 

Amortization of debt issuance Costs .. 1,619,086 . 2,667,495 4,286,581 3,847,092 
Interest expense, net ................ 4,593,943 11,856,249 211,882 (2,351,471)(5) 14,310,603 (8,134,189)(6) 6,176,414 

(Loss) before income taxes .......... (6,328,655) (12,224,091) (61,873) (19,706,860) (11,133,182) 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes .. (681,443) 301,443 (7) . (380,000) 272,000 (8) (108,000) 

Net loss ...•.......•..•.....•..... $ (5,647 ,212) $(12,224,091) $ (61,873) $(19,326,860) $(11,025,182) 

Net loss per share ..•..••...•....... $ (12.15) $ (0.92) 

Weighted average number of common 
sb>m:S outstanding ................ 1,590,911 (9) 11,963,344 

(1) This adjustment eliminates intercompany revenue for interest, monitoring fees and financial advisory fees, 
and also reclassifies interest fucome of IASI down. to interest expense, net. 

Interest income .......................................•........ 
Interest fucome, related party ................................... . 
Monitoring revenue . , ......................................... . 
Fmancial advisory fees ....................................... · .. . 

Decrease fu revenue .................................•........ 

$1,465,191 
886,280 

1,358,126 
1,236,227 

$4,945,824 

(2) The contract rights for IASI were decreased by $1,142,490 to fair value based on current industry 
benclunarks. Amortization is befug decreased by $122,018 based on the rates currently befug used by the 
various portfolios. Amortization of $304,922 is being recorded on the $6,098,443 fair value of dealer 
relationships acquired by KC Acquisition fu the Criticom merger. The net increase for the year is 
$182,904. 

(3) KC Acquisition has provided central station monitoring services to IASI. This adjustment eliminates the 
offsetting $1,358,126 that IASI has recorded as monitoring expense for the year. 

(4) Executive salaries and benefits have been adjusted to increase compensation to what it would have been if 
new employment agreements had been in effect at the beginning of the period presented. Salaries are 
being increased by $794,484 and benefits by $114,853. Administrative costs are being decreased by 
$1,236,227 to eliminate intercompany financial advisory fees (note 1).IASI paid to KC Acquisition. The 
net impact of these items is a decrease in general and administrative expense of $326,890. 

(5) This adjustment eliminates intercompany interest expense charged to KC Acquisition and Criticom by 
IASI. The amount charged KC Acquisition was $621,155 and for Criticom it was $265,125 for a total of 
$886,280 for the year. Prior to its acquisition, IASI provided financing to dealers as an integral part of its 
business. Although we may continue to provide such fmancing in limited circumstances in the future, it is 
likely to not be a significant component of our business. Therefore, non-related party interest· income of 
IASI totaling $1,465,191 has been reclassified from revenue to interest expense, net. The total interest 
expense (net) adjustment is $2,351,471. 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. 

PRO FORMA COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 
For. the Year Ended December 31, 2002 

(un~udi~ed) 

(6) This adjustment reduces interest expense pertaining to the repayment of $80,100,000 of debt (from the 
offering proceeds) using a weighted average interest rate of 10.9% ($8,745,300) and recognizes a charge 
to earnings for debt convertible at a 25% discount to the initial public offering price. The beneficial 
conversion feanrre results in a value of $1,833,333 amortizable over the three year conversion period or 
interest expense of $611,111 for the year ended December 31, 2002. The · net interest expense reduction is 
$8,134,189. Amortization of debt issuance costs includes both costs for the above debt to be paid-off in 
2003 and one-time charges in 2002 for other debt paid-off before maturity. An adjustment of $439,489 
has been recorded to eliminate the expense on debt being paid-off. 

(7) Income tax benefit has been adjusted to reflect a full valuation allowance against deferred taX assets. The 
remaining income tax benefit of $380,000 repreSents the change in the state deferred tax liability of IASG 
which can not be offset by the state deferred tax asset of IASI due to 'the companies being subject to state 
taxes in different state tax jurisdictions. 

(8) Income tax·benefit has been adjusted to reflect the state deferred tax effect on the reduction of interest 
expense and debt issuance costs pertaining to the repayment of IASG debt. 

(9) There are 23,590,911 shares of common stock issued and outstanding following this offering. For pro 
forma purposes we used the $107,555,000 of excess proceeds from the proposed offering to reduce the 
outstanding shares (purchase treasury shares) for the net loss per share calculation. The number of 
outstanding shares have been reduced to 11,963,344 shares. 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. 

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2003 

(unaudited) 

Revenue .. .. . .. . ·· ··• ·· · · · · ···· · •• · • · · .. . . 
Cost of revenue (excluding deprecialion and 

amortiz;alion . •.. · .•.... . . • . .. .•. •.• . ....• 

operating expenses: 
Selling and madcdi.ag · ..•...•. .... .. .• .. • . 
Deptu:iation and amonization .. . ••. .. .....• 
Monitoring expense . .. . . ..... ... •. . .• • . . . 
Qener81 and adm.inimalive . . ... .•• . . .• .- •. . 

Total operating expcoscs • . .•• , . • ... . ...• 

Loss from operations • . •..... . •• • .• .• . . ..•• 
Otber expense . ... .•. ••. . •.. • • .•. •. . . • . . : . 
Amortization of debt issuance costs . ...... .. . . 
lnteleSt expeniiC, net . .. •• ...• . •.•..... . .• . .. 

Loss before income taxes . . .. . .• . • . •• .. . . ...• 
Provision (benefit) fur income taxes • •••• • •• • • 

Net loss .. •••• .. •• . . • .•• • . ..••.• •• •• •• .. •• 

Net loss per ~ . . . ...•....• . . _. .. . .•... ..• 

Weighted avetage number of common shares 
outstanding . . . . . . . ' .. . ...... .. ...• . . . .. . . 

$ 8,733,637 

3,820,899 

4,932,738 

265,066 
2,870,521 

. 44.707 
3,477,882 

8,658,176 

(3,725,438) 
142,008 
377,()75 

3,200,191 

(7,445,312) 
3,417,288 

$(10,862,600) 

IASI 

$ 1,443,104 

1,445,104 

663,175 
106,230 
800,331 

1.569,736 

(124,632) 

133,714 
1,033,246 

(1,291,392) 

$(1,291,592) 

Pro forma 
adjustments Pro forma 

$(449,486)(1) $ 9,749,254 

(10,305)(2) 
(140,98S)(3) 
(37,901)(4) 

3,820,899 

5,928,333 

265,066 
3,323,390 

9,951 
6,240,312 

10,038,719 

(4,110,364) 
142;008 
511.389 

(I 83,063)(5) 4,050,374 

(8,814,136) 
84,176 (7) 3,301,464 

$(12,315,600) 

$ (7.74) 

1,590,911 

Offering 
proceeds 

Pro forma 
as adjusted 

s 9,749,254 

3,820,899 

3,928,335 

265,066 
3.523,390 

9,951 
6,240,312 

10,038,719 

(4,110,364) 
142,008 

(109,872)(6) . 401,517 
(2.013,297)(6) 2,037,077 

(6,690,966) 
71 ,000 (8) 3,572,464 

$(10,263,430) 

$ (0.86) 

(9) 11,963,344 

{1) This adjustment eliminates interco~pany revenue for interest, monitoring fees and fmancial advisory fees, 
and. aLsO reclassifies interest income of IASI down to interest expense, net 

Interest income .. . . . . . .... . . . ... . . ... . .. . . . . .. . . .. . . ... .. . ..... . . 
Interest income, related party .. ... ... . .• . . . ... . . ..•. . . ... . . . . .. . . .• 
Monitoring revenue .. .. ... . .. .. ...... .' ..... .. . . .... ... ... . .. . .... . 
Fmancial advisory fees . . .' ... . .. .. . .... .. ... .... .. . . .. ... ..... ... . 

·Decrease in revenue ...... .. ..... . . .... .. ..... ... .. ... .. . ... . . . . 

$115,703 
67,360 

140,985 
125,438 

$449,486 

(2) The conttact rights for IASI were decreased by $3,142.490 to fair value based on current industry 
benchmarks. Amortization is being decreased by $10,305 for January 2003 based on the rates currently 
being used by the various ponfolios. 

(3) IASG has provided central station monitoring services to IASL This adjustment eliminates the offsetting 
$140,985 that IASI has recorded as monitoring expense for January 2003. 

{4) Executive salaries and benefits have been adjusted to increase compensation to what it would have been if 
new employment agreements had been in effect at the beginning of the period presented. Salaries are 
being increased by $77,058 and benefits by $10,479. Administrative costS are being decreased by 
$125,438 to eliminate intercompany financial advisory fees {note 1) IASI paid to IASG. The net impact of 
these items is a decrease in general and administrative expense of $37,901. 

{5) This adjustment eliminates intercompany interest expense charged to IASG and Criticom by IASI. The 
amount charged IASG was $39,853 and for Criticom it was $27 ,5f17 for a total of $67,360 for the month 
of January 2003. Prior to its acquisition, IASI provided financing to dealers as an integr::l. part of its 
business. Although we may continue to provide such financing in limited circumstances in the future, it is 
likely to not be a significant component of our business. Therefore, non-related party interest income of 
IASI totaling $115,703 has been reclassified from revenue to interest expense, net The total interest 
expense (net) adjustment is $18~,063. 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. 

PRO FORMA CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 
For the Three Months Ended March 31, 2003 

(unaudited) 

(6) This adjustment reduces interest expense pertaining to the repayment-Qf $80,100,000 of debt (from the 
offering proceeds) using a weighted average interest rate of 10.9% ($2,166,075) and recognizes a charge 
to earnings for debt convertible at a 25% discount to the initial public offering price. The beneficial 
conversion feature results in a value of $1,833,333 amortizable over the three year conversion period or 
interest expense of $152,778 for the three months ended March 31, 2003. The net interest expense 
reduction is $2,013,297. Amortization of debt issuance costs includes both costs for the above debt to be 
paid-off in 2003 and one-time charges in 2002 for other debt paid-off before maturity. An adjustment of 
$109,872 has been recorded to eliminate the expense on debt being paid-off. 

(7) Income tax expense has been adjusted to reflect a full valuation allowance against deferred tax assets. The 
remaining income tax expense of $3,501,464 represents the change in the state deferred tax liability of 
IASG of $(72,566) which can not be offset by the state deferred tax asset of IASI due to the companies 
being subject to state taxes in different state tax jurisdictions and the impact of the change in tax status on 
January I, 2003 of $3,574,030. 

(8) Income tax expense has been adjusted to reflect the state deferred tax effect on the reduction. of interest 
expense and debt issuance costs pertaining to the repayment of IASG debt . 

(9) There are 23,590,911 shares of common stock issued and outstanding following this offering. For pro 
forma purposes we used the $107,555,000 of excess proceeds from the proposed offering to reduce the 
outstanding shares (purchase treasury shares) for the net loss per share calculation .. The number of 
outstanding shares have been reduced to 11,963,344 shares . 
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSiON AND ANALYSiS OF 
FINANCIAL CONDmON AND RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 

The following discllSsion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read 
together with the financial statements and the related notes included in another part of this prospectllS. This 
discussion contains forward-looking statements that irrvolve risks and uncenainties. 

Overview 

We provide an integrated solution to independent security alarm Dealers, to assist them in competing in 
the residential and commercial security alarm marlcet. Our services include wholesale alarm monitoring and 
financing solutions, including purchasing Dealers' a1.ami monitoring contracts for our own portfolio and 
providing loans to Dealer,; collateralized by those alarm monitoring contracts. We also provide support for 
our Dealers including billing, collection, marketing and access to equipment discount programs. We believe 
our package of services allows Dealers to compete against self-monitoring national providers in the security 
alarm market by giving them access to technical sophistication, financing, back office and other services that 
they would not otherwise have, while allowing them to remain the local and visible contact with their 
customer, the end-user of the . alarm. 

We believe we are the largest wholesale alarm monitoring company in the United States, monitoring 
approximately 500,000 alann systems on behalf of approximately 5,000 Dealers. Our alarm monito_ring 
service is provided through three state-of-the-art alann monitoring centers located in New Jersey, Minnesota 
and California. Our operators respond to approximately 335,000 alarm activations per month. We are also one 
of the largest providers of capital to Dealers. Since 1993, we have provided financing to the alarm industry in 
the form of loans or the purchase of alarm monitoring contracts of approximately $350 million in the 
aggregate. We currently hold and monitor approximately 39,000 alarm monitoring contracts in our own 
portfolio. 

Our revenues are derived primarily from providing alarm monitoring services to Dealers for the benefit 
of the end-user of the alarm system. We typically enter into. contracts with our Dealers to provide alarm 
monitoring services for periods ranging from one to five years. The majority of monitoring con!facts entered 
into by end-users ·with our Dealers generally permit cancellation with notice of 30-60 days before the end of 
the original, or any renewal, contract term. Some alarm monitoring contracts with Dealers have longer, more 
definitive terms. However, essentially all alarm monitoring contracts may be broken for non-performance. Our 
alarm monitoring contracts with Dealers may require the Dealer to place its entire portfolio of end~user alarm 
monitoring contracts in our monitoring facilities. Our revenues will fluctuate . based upon changes in the net 
number of end-user alarm monitoring con~ts and the timing of connections and disconnections that any one 
Dealer has with us. Our revenues will also fluctuate based upon the number of Dealers that are added or lost 
during any particular period. We may gain or lose Dealers based upon the quality, range or price of the 
serviceS we provide relative to what is provided by our competitors and the effectiveness of our sales and 
marketing efforts. Our revenues may also be affected by the application of various pricing strategies we may 
choose to use with our Dealers. 

In addition to our organic revenue growth, our revenues may increase· because of any acquisitions of 
wholesale alarm monitoring businesses (i.e. call centers or central stations) we may make during any 
particular period. Our recurring monthly revenues d~ved from acquired businesses are also subject to the 
standard risks associated with any acquisition· and subsequent integration. We may suffer attrition because of 
differences in, among other things, the application of policies and procedures, or disruption caused by any 
conversion or conSolidation activity. 

The cost of services is primarily a function of labor, telecommunication, data processing and technical 
support costs. Labor costs are driven in part by the n\unber and productivity of operators, supervisors and 
management within our call centers that provide alarm monitoring services on behalf of. our Dealer · 
customers. Labor costs are also a function of the quality ·of our data processing, customer service and qwility 
management functions. Labor costs also reflect the number of technical staff required to maintain and develop 
our state-of-the-art monitoring systems. Telecommunication costs reflect, among other things, the number of 
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signals processed, the time required to proeess any particular signal, .the number and type of lines, the design 
and functionality of our telecommunications network and the negotiated rate with our chosen 
telecommunication providers. We are constantly evaluating how to improve the quality of our services while 
lowering the cost of providing those services. We estimate that we presently have sufficient capacity to 
provide alann monitoring services to approximately 750,000 end-users. 

Our operating expenses are primarily comprised of general and administrative, selling and marketing and 
depreciation and amortization expenses. General and administrative expenses are comprised primarily of 
officer salaries, rent and professional fees. fluctuations in general and administrative expenses generally 
reflect net increases in staff associated with acquisitions, changes in professional fees primarily associated 
with acquisition activity and audits of our books and records and merit·compensation increases. Selling and 
marketing expenses. are primarily driven by the size of our saies force, commissions based upon successful 
selling activities, travel and advertising. Depreciation and amortization expenses are primarily a function of 
the acquisition of Dealer relationships . 

Streamiining of Operations ... We have c~pleted the consolidation of two alarm monitoring facilities to 
improve operating efficiencies. During 2001, we commenced the process of consolidating our Van Nuys, 
California alarm monitoring facility into our alarm moriitoring facility in Santa Fe Springs, California and 
consolidating our Hackensack, N'ew Jersey alarm monitoring facility into our alarm monitoring facility in 
Manasquan, New Jersey. The consolidations were completed in August 2002. The Manasquan facility now 
monitors approximately 270,000 accounts. The Santa Fe Springs facility now monitors approximately 155,000 
accounts. We have identified approximately $2.2 million in annlial.ized expense reductions that we have 
realized from the consolidations. 1be major expense categories where we have realized sav,ings include 
telecommunications, operator salaries and rent expenses. The savings are related to the acquisitions of 
Monital, Custom Design. Security and RTC Alarm Monitoring Services. 

Acquisitions. In January 2003, we acquired all of the capital stock of Integrated Alarm Services, Inc. 
and affiliates in exchange for an aggregate of 864,192 shares of our common stock of which 525,452 shares 
were issued to minority interests for an estimated total fair value of $11,559,944. The acquisition was 
accounted for under the purchase method of accounting. 

Prior to the acquisition of Integrated Alarm Services, Inc., Messrs. McGinn and Smith c"ontrolled 41 
trusts and three limited liability companies which were principally created to acquire alarm monitoring 
contracts. Approximately 62% of the trust certificates of the 41 ·trusts were exchanged for promissory notes of 
Integrated Alarm Services, Inc. and will be repaid with proceeds from the offering. Approximately 38% of 
the trust certificates were not exchanged and will also be Tepaid out of the proceeds of the offering. An 
additional $9.5 million is bank debt relating to these contract acquisitions and will also be repaid with 
proceeds from the offering. Messrs. McGinn and Smith were residual beneficiaries of these trusts but have 
contributed their residual benefits in the trusts to us. The three limited liability companies, Palisades Group, 
LLC, Payne Security Group, LLC and Guardi~ Group, LLC were acquired by us in January 2003 and are 
now our wholly owned subsidiaries. 

On September 26, 2002, we acquired 100% of Criticom, a Minnesota based alarin monitoring call center 
that supports digital alarm monitoring as well as GPS technology, for approximately $4.3 million, net of cash 
acquired of $0.6 million. The total consideration consisted of $1.0 million in cash and 155,911 shares of our 
common stock as well as a note totaling $0.7 million. The shareholders of Criticom may receive up to 68,182 
additional shares based upon the future performance of Criticom. The purchase of Criticpm added 
approximately 400 Dealer relationships that service 80,000 end-user alarm monitoring contracts with 
approximately $0.4 million in recurring monthly revenue. 

In con.D.ection with the Criticom transaction, IASG also acquired a 5;03% interest in Royal Thoughts, 
LLC, a Minnesota limited liability company engaged in the development of new monitoring applications and· 
monitoring technologies for emerging markets. In connection with our investment in Royal Thoughts, we 
obtained a right of first refusal to monitor signals that stem from Royal Thoughts' intellectual property and 
designs. 
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fn January 2002, we acquired certain assets of RTC Alarm, a wholesale security system alann. 
monitoring business located in Roseville, California. The total purchase price was $5.1 million, which 
included Dealer relationships ($4.4 million), accoWlts receivable ($0.2 million) and property & equipment 
($0.5 million). The purchase was financed with debt totaling $5.8 million, which funded the purchase price, 
along with providing a $0.425 million working capital infusion for us, $0.1 million in restricted cash and 
financing fees totaling $0.175 million. The acquisition initially added 270 Dealers to our Dealer count. As of 
January 2003, 225 Dealers remain. We intend to pursue a cause of action against the seller for certain 
contractual misrepresentations regarding the attrition rates related to certain Dealer· alarm monitoring contracts 
included in the purchase price. 

fn October 2001, we acquired certain assets of Custom Design, a wholesale security alarm monitoring 
business located in Sarasota, Florida for $1.2 million, which included Dealer relationships ($1.0 million); 
accowtts receivable ($0.1 million)· and property & equipment ($0.1 million). This acquisition was financed 
with debt totaling $1.425 million. The sellers received $1.2 million; while we retained the balance for 
working capital ($0.1 million), financing fees ($0.075 million) and an· attrition res~rve fund ($0.05 million). 
The Custom Design acquisition initially added 94 Dealers to our Dealer count. As of January 2003, 76 
Dealers remain. 

A related party placed the debt incurred for the RTC Alarm and the Custom Design acquisitions and 
assumed in the acquisition of Criticom. The results of operations are included in our financial statements from 
the date of acquisition. 

On May 11, 2000, we acquired 99% of the common stock: of Griptight Holdings, Inc., a cmporation 
whose sole asset was 80% of the stock of Monital Signal Corporation, a wholesale alann monitoring business 
located in Manasquan, New Jersey. At the same time, we acquired the remaining 20% of the stock in Monital 
from an wtrelated party. The purchase price was $10.7 million, net of cash acquired of $0.8 million. 
Fmancing costs of $0.3 million, and all other closing costs were financed with debt.of $14.1 million. In 
addition, a related entity owned by certain of our siockholders paid $1.4 million of long-term debt, and 
$1.9 million of retail end-user alarm monitoring contracts were transferred to that related entity. This resulted 
in a dividend distribution of $0.3 million and a compensa~on charge of $0.2 million. With .the acquisition .of 
Monital, we acquired an additional 1,002 Dealers to our Deaier count. As of January 2003, 878 Dealers 
remain. 

When determining the amount to be paid for an acquisition, management builds a 10% to 15% attrition 
assumption into its initial purchase price. This enables us to reduce the impact of unforeseen 3ttrition while 
we integrate the contracts into our portfolio. We have found that attrition rates Become more predictable 
following the first year. · 

. Note regarding information presented. The information provided below for " Operations" is derived 
from the financial statements of IASG for the respective periods, except that the information provided below 
Wlder "Results of Operations-Integrated Alann Services, Inc." is derived only from the financial statements 
of IASI for the respective periods. The info1111ation provided below for "Liquidity and Capital Resources" is 
derived from the financial statements of IASG and IASI for the respective periods. 

Operations 

fn December 2001, we commenced a consolidation process of our monitoring facilities and a systems 
conversion for a material percentage of our Dealer and end-user baSe. The disruption caused by these 
activities negatively impacted our revenues and profitability. We have completed the consolidation of our 
central stations. Key expenses such as payroll and telephone line costs have been· reduced. We believe our · 
costs per. subscriber will decline as additional subscriber accowtts are added. 

Our recurring monthly revenue may include amounts billable to customers or Dealers With past due 
balanceS which we believe are collectible. We seek to presqve die revenue stream associated with each end­
user alarm monitoring contract, primarily to maximize our return on the investment we made to generate each 
alarm monitoring contract or Dealer relationship. As a result, we actively worlc to collect amounts owed to lis 
and to retain the end-user at the same time. In some instances, we may allow more than six months to collect 
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past due amounts, while evaluating the ongoing customer or Dealer relationship. After we have made every 
reasonable effort to collect past due balances, we will disconnect the customer and inc,lude the loss in attrition 
calculations. 

Customer creation and marketing. Our current customer acquisition strategy relies on both internally 
generated sales and acquiring Dealer relationships and alarm moiiitoring contract rights to monitor secwity 
systems. We currently have a salaried and ~ommissioned sales force that operates in four regions covering the 
48 contiguous states. The internal sales program generated in the wholesale segment 88,598, 99,106, 84,616, 
and 15,715 new monitoring contracts in 2000, 2001 and 2002 and for the three months ended March 31, 
2003, respectively. · 

Attrition. End-user attrition has. a direct impact on our results of.operations since it affects our 
revenues, amortization expense and cash flow. We define attrition in the wholesale alarm monitoring business 
as the number of end-user accounts lost, expressed as a percentage, for a given period. In some instances, we 
use estimates to derive attrition data. We monitor end-user attrition each month, each quarter and each year. 
In periods of end-user account growth, end-user attrition may be understated and in periods of end-user 
account decline, end-user attrition may be overstated. Our actual attrition experience shows that the 
relationship period with any individual Dealer or end-user can vary significantly. Dealers discontinue service 
with us for a variety of reasons, including but not limited to, the sale of their alarm monitoring contracts, 
performance issues and receipt of lower pricing from competitors. End-users may discontinue service with the 
Dealer and therefore with us for a variety of reasons, including, but not limited to, relocation, service issues 
and cost A portion of Dealer and end-user relatioil.ships, whether acquired or originated via our sales force, 
can be expected to discontinue service every year. Any significant change in the pattern of our historical 
attrition experience would have a material effect on our results of operations, financial position or cash flows. 

For the years ended December 31, 2000. 2001 and 2002, our trailing annual end-user account growth 
rates in the wholesale monitoring segment, including acquisitions were 43.5%, 14.0% and 24.7%, 
respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, our trailing annual end-user account 
growth rates in the wholesale monitoring segment, excluding acquisitions, were 3.8%, 10.6% and (6.1%), 
respectively. Our trailing end-user. account growth rate in the wholesale monitoring segment for the three 
months ending March 31, 2003 was (U %). For the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, our 
trailing annual end-user attrition rates in the wholesale monitoring segment, calculated as end-user losses 
divided by the sum of beginning end-users, end-users added and end-users acquired, was 18.8%, 13.9% and 
18.2%, respectively. Our trailing end-user attrition rate for the contract monitoring segment for the three 
months ending .March 31, 2003 was 4.2%. 

Beginning Balance, January 1, .... . .... . .. . . . .... . 
End-users added, excluding acquisitions . . .. . . .. . . . . 
End-users acquired . ... . . .. . .. ... . . ... . . . . . ... . 
Ent;l-u.ser losses ....... . ....... . .. . ..... ... . . .. . 

Ending Balance, December 31, . ...... .. .. .. . . .. . 

Year Ended December 31, 

2000 2001 2002 

238,541 
88,598 
94,670 
79,464 

342,345 
= 

---
342,345 390,216 
. 99,106 84,616 

. 11,557 120,192 
62,792 . 108,374 

390,216 486,650 

3 Months 
Ended 

Man:b 31, 
2003 

486,650 
15,715 

0 
20,224 

482,141 
= 

We engaged Standard & Poor's Corporate Value Consulting to peiform attrition analyses of certain 
identified customer relationship groups. As a result of the study, we identified our end-user attrition rates in the 
retail customer contract segment to be 17.2% and 15.4% for the years ending December 31, 2000 and 2001, 
respectively. In 2000, the majority of the alarm monitoring contracts we acquired were by foreclosure from 
Dealers to whom we had made loans. As a result, our attrition rate was adversely affected in 2000, with 
carryover into 2001. The Standard & Poor's study presents data for accounts acquired by bulk purchase, which 
represents the majority of our end-user alarm monitoring contracts, which suggests that the maximum expected 
amortizable life of alarm monitoring contracts purchased in bulk is approximately 18 years. 
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We intend to employ, for prospective contracts purchased in bulk subsequent to January 31, 2003, an 
amortization methodology which is the total of the charges calculated by a straight line, 18 year life; together 
with charges incurred as a result of actual account attrition. 

For contracts previously purchased in bulk by IASI and acquired upon purchase ofiASI on January 31, 
2003, we employ an amortization methodology which uses 150% declining balance over a life of 8 years. 

Attrition for acquired Dealer customer relationships and .alarm monitoring contracts may be greater ni 
the future than the attrition rate assumed or historically incurred by us. In addition, because some Dealer 
customer relationships and acquired alarm monitoring contracts are prepaid on an annual, semi-annual or 
quarterly basis, attrition may not become evident for some time after an acquisition is consummated. 

Critical Accounting Policies 

Our discussion and analysis of results of operations, financial condition and cash flows are based upon 
our combined financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP}. The preparation of these combined financial 
statements requires us to make estimates and judgments that effect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, 
revenues and expenses, and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities. We evaluate our estimates 
on an on-going basis, including those related to Dealer relationships, goodwill, income taxes, and 
contingencies and litigation. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various _other assumptions 
that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis for making 
judgments about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. 
Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions. · 

Notes 2 and 15 of the "Notes to Financial State~nts" includes a swnmary of the significant accounting 
policies and methods used in the preparation of our financial statements. · The following is a brief description 
of the more significant accounting policies and methods we use. 

Revenue recognition. All of our revenue is recognized on an accrual basis. Accounts receivable consists 
primarily of amounts due from. Dealers and end-users located in the United States, Credit is extended based 
upon an evaluation of the Dealer's and end-users' financial condition and credit history. Receivables that are 
deemed not collectible have been provided for in our allowance for doubtful .accounts. If the Dealers financial 
condition were to deteriorate, resulting in their inability to make payments, additional allowances may be 
required. 

Notes receivable. IASI makes loans to Dealers, which are collateralized by the Dealers' portfolio of 
·end-user alarm monitoring contracts. Loans to Dealers are carried at the lower of the principal amount 
outstanding or the net realizable value 'of the portfolio underlying the loan. Loans are generally considered 
nonperforming if they are 120 days in arrears of contractual terms. 

Management periodically evaluates the loan portfolio to assess the collectibility of Dealer notes and 
adequacy of allowance for loan losses. Management reviews certain criteria in assessing the adequacy of the 
allowance for loan losses including IASI's past loan l~ss experience, known and inherent risks in the 
portfolio, adverse situations that may affect the borrower's ability to repay, the estimated value of any 
underlying collateral and current economic conditions. Loan impairment is identified when a portfolio's cash 
flow is materially below the minimum necessary to service the loan. In most cases, loans will be foreclosed 
and valued at the lower of cost (loan carrying value) or fair value of end-user contracts using recent 
transaction prices and industry benchmarks. 

Notes receivable consists of loans tO Dealers which are collateralized by a portfolio of individual end­
user monitoring contracts. When a Dealer becomes .delinquent, the Company generally forecloses on and 
takes ownership of the portfolio of end-user monitoring contracts. 

Deferred costs. Debt issuance costs represents direct costs incurred in connection with obtaining 
financing with related parties and banks. Debt issuance costs are being amortized over the life of the related 
obligations using the effective interest method . . . 

Intangible assets, Alarm monitoring services for Dealers' end-users are outsourced to us. We acquire 
such Dealer relationships from our internally generated sales efforts and from other monitoring companies. 
Acquired dealer relationships are recorded at cost which management believes approximates fair value. End-
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user alarm monitoring contracts are acquired from the Dealers' pre-existing portfolios of contracts or assumed 
upon the foreclosure on Dealers' loans. 

The Company has retroactively restated its financial statements for all periods presented to change its 
method of amortization utilized for Dealer relationships. Previously the Company amortized the costs of these 
Dealer relationships on a straight-line basis over 5 and 15 years based upon an independent attrition study. In 
order to better correspond the amortization of the costs of these relationships with the corresponding expected 
Dealer revenue streams, the Company has changed its method of amortizing the costs of these Dealer 
relationships from the straight-line method to declining balance accelerated methods. For the Dealer 
relationships previously amortized on a straight-line basis over 5 years; the Company has changed its method 
to the 200% declining balance method; for the Dealer relationships previously amortized on a straight-line 
basis over 15 years, the Company has changed its method to the 150% declining balance method. Pursuant to 
the "Special Exemption for an Initial Public Distribution" of securities, the Company has elected to 
retroactively apply this change in accounting. The effect of this change on all years presented is as follows: 

2000 2001 2002 

Net income (loss), as previously reported ............. . $750,562 $(1,848,008) $(4,096,150) 
Increase in amortization (net of tax effect) resulting from 

change in accounting method ..................... . (462,749) (485,518) (1,551,062) 
Net income (loss), as restated ....................... . $287,813 $(2,333,526) $(5,647 ,212) 

Net income (loss) per share, as previously reported ..... . $ 1.36 $ (3.34) $ (6.91) 
Increase in amortization (net of tax effect) per share, 

resulting from change in accounting method ......... . (0.84) (0.87) (2.62) 
Net income (loss) per share, as restated ............... . $ 0.52 $ (4.21) $ (9.53) 

Acquired end-user alarm monitoring contracts are recorded at cost which management believes 
approximates fair value. End-user alarm monitoring contracts asswned as a result of foreclosure on Dealer 
loans are recorded at the lower of cost (loan carrying value) or the fair value of such contracts using recent 
transaction prices and industry benchmarks at the time of foreclosure. 

End-user alarm monitoring contracts are amortized over the term that such end-users are expected to 
remain a customer of the Company. The Company, on an ongoing basis, conducts comprehensive reviews of 
its amortization policy for end-user contracts and, when deemed appropriate, uses an independent appraisal 
finn to assist in performing an attrition study. 

The Company's aJJ10rtization methods for-end-user contracts below consider the average estimated life 
and historical and projected attrition rates determined from a recent attrition study and consists of the 
following three portfolios: 

Existing portfolio accounts* ............................... . 
Dealer acquired.new accounts ............................. . 
Contracts assumed from dealers ........................... . 

Accelerated method Period 

150% Declining balance 
160% Declining balance 
160% Declining balance 

8 years 
8 years 
4 years 

* For existing portfolio end-user contracts purchased subsequent to January 31, 2003, the Company will 
amortize such accounts using a straight-line method over an 18 year period plus actual attrition . 

Dealer relationships and customer (end-user) contracts are amortized using methods and lives which are 
management's estimates, based upon all infonD..ation available (including industry data, attrition studies, 
current portfolio trends), of the life (attrition pattern) of the underlying contracts and relationships. If actuiu 
results vary negatively (primarily attrition) from management assumptions, amortization will be accelerated 
which will negatively impact results from operations. If amortization is not accelerated or conditions deteriorate 
dramatically, the asset could become impaired. For existing portfolio accounts purchased subsequent to 
January 31, 2003, the Company will amortize such accounts using a straight-line method over an 18 year period 
plus actual attrition. This methodology may cause significant variations in amortization expense in future 
periods. · 
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Dealer relationships and end-user alarm monitoring contracts are tested for impairment on a periodic 
basis or as circumstances warrant. Recoverability of Dealer relationship costs and end-user alarm monitoring 
contracts are highly dependent on our ability to maintain our Dealers. Factors we consider important that 
could trigger an impairment review include higher levels of attrition of Dealers and/or end-user. alarm 
monitoring contracts and continuing ·recurring losses. 

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long­
Lived Assets, which supersedes SFAS No. 121, "Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for 
Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of," and the accounting and reporting provisions of APB No. 30. SFAS 
No. 144 addresses financial accounting and reporting for the impairment or disposal of long-lived assets and 
is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001, and interim periods within those fiscal years. 
SFAS No. 144 requires that the assets be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of the 
assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the assets with the future 
net cash flows expected to be generated. Cash flows of dealer relationships and retail customer contracts are 
analyzed at the same group level (acquisition by acquisition and portfolio grouping, respectively) that tlley are 
identified for amortization, the lowest level for which independent cash flows are identifiable. All other long­
lived assets are evaluated for impairment at the company level, using one asset grouping. IT such assets are 
considered to be impaired, the impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying 
amount of the assets exceeds their fair values. We have not identified any such irnpairment.losses. 

Goodwill was being amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 15 years through 
December 31, 2001. Effective January l, 2002, we adopted SFAS No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible 
Assets." SFAS 142 changed the accounting for goodwill from an amortization method to an impairment-only 
approach. An initial transition impairment test of goodwill was required as of January 1', 2002. We completed 
this initial transition impairment test during the second quarter of 2002, which did not result in any 
impairment charges. An annual impairment test was performed in the third quarter of 2002, which did not 
result in anY impairment charges. We will evaluate goodwill for impairment on an annual basis in accordance 
with SFAS No. 142; 

income taxes. As part of the process of preparing our combined financial statements, we will be 
required to estimate our income taxes in each of the jurisdictions in which we operate. This process will 
involve estimates of our actual current tax exposure together with assessing temporary differences resulting 
from differing treatment of items, such as depreciation and amortization, for tax and accounting purposes. 

Litigation. In March of this year, Protection One Alarm Monitoring, Inc., a company engaged in the 
business of providing security. and other alarm monitoring services to residential and. commercial customers, 
brought an action against us in the Superior Court of New Jersey, Camden County for unspecified damages in 
connection with our purchase of certain alarm monitoring contracts from B&D Advertising Corporation 
("B&D"). B&D had previously sold alarm monitoring contracts to Protection One. As part of such· sales, 
B&D agreed not to solicit any customers whose contracts had been purchased and to keep certain information 
confidential. Protection One claims that our subsequent purchase of contracts from B&D constitutes tortious 
interference, that we utilized confidential information belonging to Protection One and that Protection One 
had an interest in some of the contracts that we purchased from B&D. We plan to vigorously defend this 
claim. We believe the resolution of this matter will not have a material adverse effect on our financial 
condition, results' of operations or cash flows. 

In May 2003, a former employee of McGinn, Smith & Co.; Inc., brought an action against us, as well as 
McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. and M&S Partners for wrongful termination .. The suit brought in the Supreme 
Court of the State of New York seeks damages of $10,000,000. McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. and M&S 
Partners have fully indemnified us from any damages or legal expenses that we may incur as a result of the 
suit. This employee of McGinn·, Smith & Co., Inc. was never our employee and we plan to vigorously defend 
this claim. We believe the resolution of this matter will not have a material adverse effect on our financial 
condition, results of operations or cash flows. 

We from time to time experience routine litigation in the normal course of our business. We do not 
believe that any pending litigation will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of 
operations or cash flows. 
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Results of Operations--IASG 

Three Months Ended March 31, 2003 Compared to Three Months Ended March 31, 2002 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected statements of operations data for IASG: 

Thr-ee months ending March 31, 

2002 2003 

Total revenue ............................................... . $ 5,378,197 $ 8,753,637 
Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and amortization) ........... . 3,545,599 3,820,899 

Direct Margin ............................................... . 1,832,598 4,932,738 
Operating expenses: . 

Selling. ~d marketing : .. : ................................... . 
Deprec1atton and amortlzatlon ................................. . 

228,352 265,066 
1,353,272 2,870,521 

General and administrative ................................... . 436,792 5,477,882 
Monitoring expense - related party ........................... . 44,706 

Total operating expenses ....................................... . 2,018,416 8,658,176 

Loss from operations ......................................... . (185,818) (3,725,438) 

Other expense ................ ·· .............................. . 142,008 

Amortization of debt issuance costs ............................. . 215,080 377,675 
Interest expense ............................................. . 1,258.~26 3,200,191 

Loss before provision (benefit) for income taxes ................... . (1,659,524) (7,445,312) 

Provision (benefit) for income taxes ............................. . (89,789) 3,417,288 

Net loss ..................................................... . $(1 ,569 '735) $(10,862,600) 

Net loss per share ............................................. . $ (2.83) $ (8.44) 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected statements of opera!].ons data as a 
percentage of net revenues for KC Acquisition: 

Three monthS ending Marcb 31, 
2002 . 2003 

(unaudited) 
Total revenue ...............................•................. · .. . 100.0% 100.0% 
Cost of revenue ................................................. . 65.9% 43.6% 
Direct Margin ................................................... . 34.1% 56.4% 
Operating expenses: 
Selling and marketing .......................................... · .. 4.2% 3.0% 
Depreciation and amortization ..................................... . 25.2% 32.8% 
General and administrative ....................................... . 8.1% 62.5% 
Monitoring expense ....................... · .•..... : .............. . 0.5% 

Total operating expenses ......................................... . 37.5% 98.9% 
Income from operations ........................................... . (3.5%) (42.9%) 
Other expense, net ............................................... . (1.6%) 
Amortization of debt issuance costs ..........•....................... 4.0% 4.3% 
Interest expense .................................................. . 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes ...................... : .......... . 

23.4% 36.6% 
(1.7%) (39.0%) 

Net loss ....................................................... . (29.2%) (124.1 %) 
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Revenue. Revenues for the three months ended March 31, 2003 were $8,753,637 compared to 

$5,378,197 for the same period in the prior year, an increase of $3,375,440 or 62.8%. In the wholesale 
monitoring segment, monitoring fees.increased $1,141,213 to $6,089,790 from $4,948,577, or 23.1%, 
reflecting the acquisitions of CDS, RTC and Criticom that wei:e partially offset by attrition. Base revenues 
from IASG and Monital declined $539,316 or 10.8% from $4,886,021 to $4,346,705, reflecting Dealer and 
end-user attrition and price concessions granted to retain certain Dealers who were dissatisfied with service 
levels during the process of consolidating call centers. Revenues from the acquired and consolidated 
businesses of CDS and RTC increased $331,528 or 134.5% to $518,019 from $246,491 with the inclusion of 
full quarter results for RTC ·net of attritiOIL The acquisition of Criticom contributed revenues of .$1,139,196. 
The average price realized for alarm monitoring setvices per end-user alarm monitoring contract was $4.21 
per month for the current period, an increase of $.01 per month from approxi.tnately $4.20 per rnonlh per end­
user alarm monitoring contract per month in the prior period. The total number of end-user alarm monitoring 
contracts monitored at March 31, 2003 was approximately 481,137, a net increase of approximately 71,618 
end-user alarm monitoring contracts versus the prior period. Billing fees declined to $20,983 from $149,783 
with the discontinuance of certain end-user accounts. 

Average recurring monthly revenue and the average number of end-user alarm monitoring contracts 
increased in the first quarter of 2003 primarily as a result of the acquisitions of RTC and Criticom. The 
acquisitions of RTC and Criticom added approximately 120,192 monitored accounts. Accounts acquired from 
RTC were consolidated into our existing monitoring facilities. The Criticom accounts acquired were not 
consolidated into existing monitoring facilities. 

Revenues for IASI were $1 ,933,278 in the current period, reflecting the acquisition of IASI, a related 
party, for an aggregate of 864,192 shares of our common stock in January 2003. Revenues for IASI are 
received directly from end-users reflecting the acquisition of alarm monitoring contracts from dealers. 

Cost of Revenue. The cost of revenue increased by $27.5,300 from $3,.545,599 to $3,820,899, or 7.8% 
in the wholesale monitoring segment. Base expenses from IASG and Monital declined by $583,844 or 16.5% 

. from $3,545,599 to $2,961,756, reflecting cost benefits from th~ consolidation Of call centers in New Jersey 
and California during 2002 and initiatives designed to enhance productivity. Positive variances. including 
22% in operator salaries, 40.1% in rent expenses, 48.6% in recurring software expenses, 7.3% in benefits and 
taxes, including healthcare expenses, 51.3% in maintenance expenses and 29.6% in other expenses were 
partially offset by negative variances of 2.9% in telecommunication expenses, 11.1% in Dealer care salaries 
and 2.5% in back office salaries. The acquisition of Criticom added $714,096 to operating expenses during 
the current period. The increases and decreases in dealer care and monitoring expenses also reflect the 
reclassification of certain expenseG. Aa a rerult, the direct margin o.ttributablc to the alarm monitoring 
operations increased to 47.9% from 34.1% . 

. All expenses for IASI are classified in operating expenses. 

Operating Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased by $5,041,090 from $436,792 to 
$5,477,882. Continuing expenses from IASG and Monital increased $490,231 while the merger with Criticom 
contributed additional expenses totaling $215,148 and the merger with IASI contributed additional expenses 
totaling $4,335,711. General and administrative expenses at March 31, 2002 ($436,792) were reduced by 
approximately $90,000 as a result of a one-time legal settlement received during the period. The $490,231 
increase in continuing general and administrative expenses relates primarily to an increase in professional fees 
totaling $369,537 attributable to IPO-related matters. General and administrative expenses for IASI were 
$4,335,711. IASI's expenses included a one-time transaction with Capital Center Credit Corporation 
("CCCC") that included a cash payment to CCCC of $1,700,000 and the assumption of CCCC debt totaling 
$1,575,000. IASI general and administrative expenses also included professional fees of $501,952 of which 
$470,855 was attributable to IPO-related matters and $303,627 in payroll expense. 

Selling and marketing expenses increased by 16.1%, or $36,714, to $265,066 from.$228,352, solely 
because of the acquisition of Criticom. 

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $1,517,249, or ll2.l%, from $1,353,272 to 
$2,870,521, reflecting higher amortization expenses of Dealer relationships associated with the acquisitions of 
Monital, CDS, RTC and Criticom and the merger with IASI. In the wholesale monitoring segment, 

33 

,_.. -~---------- -·· ·········~ -------~ ---

GERSAV 0038354 

Div Ex 373 -36

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-CFH   Document 761-1   Filed 07/08/14   Page 1 of 31



• j 

: : 
' . 
~ . 

. 
i 
f .. 

; . 
I , 

l i 
1·. 
I· 
i 

_, 
n. 

. ; ~ . 

depreciation and amortization expenses increased to $1,358,372 from $1.353.271. Depreciation and 
amortization expenses for lAS[ were $1,512.150, reflecting the amortization of acquired alarm monitoring 
contracts. 

Other Expense. Other expenses in the current period were $142,008 related to the acquisition of RTC 
Alarm consummated in 2002. 

Anwrtization of Debt Issuance Costs. The amortization of debt issuance costs increased $162,595 from 
$215,080 to $377,675, or 75.6%. In the wholesale monitoring segment, amortization of debt issuance costs 
decreased to $117,515 from $215,080, reflecting the refinancing of certain indebtedness in 2002 plus the 
amortization of financing costs associated with raising debt to fund the acquisitions of CDS and RTC. 
Amortization of debt issuance costs for IASI was $260,160. 

Interest Expense, net. Interest expense, net increased by $1,941,565 from $1,258,626 to $3,200,191, or · 
154.3%. ln the wholesale monitoring segment, interest expense, net increased by $43,330, or 3.4%, from ' 
$1,258,626 to $1,301,956, reflecting an increase in average debt outstanding raised to fund various 
commitments. Interest expense, net for IASI (net of interest income of $194,854) was $1,898,235. 

Taxes. Income tax expenses of $3,417,288 were recorded in the current period versus and income tax 
benefit of $89,789 in the prior period. As a result of the merger of KC Acquisition with IASG during January 
2003, KC Acquisition, KCF, Morlyn and Criticom will no longer be considered flow through entities to their 
shareholders and members and, therefore, must record current and deferred income taxes from its earnings · 
and losses, and recognize the tax consequences of "temporary differences" between financial statement and 
tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. At the time of a change in tax status of an enterprise, the Company 
recorded an additional deferred tax liability of approximately $3,505,000, which is being included in income 
tax expense in 2003. In the wholesale monitoring segment, the prior period tax benefit reflected the change in 
the deferred tax liability net of s corporate state taxes. 

Net Loss. As a result, the net loss increased by $9,292,865, or 592.0%, to $10,862,600 from 
$1,569,735. 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected statements of operations data for IASG: 

Years Ended December 31, 

2000 2001 2002 

Total revenue . .. ............. ........ ... . .... . . $18,774,517 $20,569,037 $23,495,607 
Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and 

amortization) ... . : . .... .. ..... . ..... .. .... .. . 13,138,726 13,128,010 15,424,912 

Direct Margin ................................. . 5,635,791 7,441,027 8,Q70,695 

Operating expenses: 
Selling and marketing ................. . ....... . 1,472,755 1,117,228 736,866 
Depreciation and amortization ........ . ........ . 3,270,185 3,581,071 5,580,985 
(Gain) loss on disposal of equipment ... . ......... . 14,545 31,237 (5,605) 
General and administrative ... . ... . ... ..... ..... . 1,559,351 1,834,292 2,530,374 

Total operating expenses ..... . ..... .. .... ...... .. . 6,316,836 6,563,828 8,842,620 
(Loss) income from operations . · ........ .... .... .. . (681,045) 877,199 (771,925) 
Other income, net ... . .. . ............ .. ...... .. . 500,000 656,299 
Amortization of debt issuance costs ............... . 743,265 794,357 1,619,086 . 
Interest expense, net ...........................• 3,081,602 3,620,152 4,593,943 

Income (loss) before provision for income taxes . .... . (4,505,912) (3,037,310) (6,328,655) 
Provision (benefit) for income taxes . . . . ........... . (4,793,725) (703,784) . (681,443) 

Net (loss) income .................. ~ .... ........ . $ 287,8i3 $ (2,333,'526) $ (5,647 ,212) 

Net (loss) income per share $ 0.52 $ (4.21) . $ (9.53) 
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The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected statements of operations data as a 
percentage of revenues: 

Years Ended December 31, 
2000 2001 2002 

Total revenue ............................... , ................. . 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 
Cost of revenue ................................................. . 70.0% 63.8% 65.7% 
Direct Margin ................................................. . 30.0% 36.2% 34.3% 

Operating expenses: 
Selling and marketing ......................................... . 7.8% 5.4% 3.1% 
Depreciation and amortization ................................... . 17.4% 17.4% 23.8% 
General and administrative ..................................... . 8.3% 8.9% 10.8% 
(Gain) loss from disposal of equipment ..................•......... 0.1% 0.2% 

Total operating expenses ..................................... . 33.6% 31.9% 37.7% 
(Loss) income from operations .... · ............................... . (3.6%) 4.3% (3.3%) 
Other income, net ....................................... · ........ . 2.4% 2.8% 
Amortization of debt issuance costs ............................... . 4.0% 3.9% 6.9% 

· Interest expense ............................. : ................... . 16.4% 17.6% 19.6% 
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes •...... : .......... : . . . (2'1.0%) (14.8%) (27.0%) 
Provision (benefit) for income taXes ............................... . (25.5%). (3.4%) (3.0%) 
Net (loss) income ................................................ . 1.5% (11.3%) (24.0%) 

2002 COMPARED TO 2001 

Revenue. Revenue for 2002 ~as $23,495,607 compared to $20,569,037 for the same period in the prior 
year, an increase of $2,926,570, or 14.2%. Monitoring fees increased $1,352,525 to $20,136,016 from 
$18,783,491, or 7.2%, reflecting in part the acquisitions of Custom Design, RTC Alarm and Criticom. Related 
party monitoring fees increased $1,058,035 to $1,565,017 from $506,982, or 208.7%, reflecting additional 
related party account acquisitions and a reduction in concessions of approximately $958,000. Related party 
placement fees increased $261,779 to $1,236,227 from $974,448, or 26.9%, and represent higher origination 
fees associated with additional related party account acquisitions. Billing fees increased $254,231 to $558,347 
from $304,116, or 83.5% as additional Dealers either subscribed to or were required. to nse our billing 
services. The average price ~ed for alarm monitoring services per end-user alarm monitoring contract was 
$4.09 per month in 2002, a decrease of $.30 per month from approximately $4.39 per month per end-user 
alarm monitoring contract in 2001, reflecting a change in the mix of IASI versus non IASI end-user alarm 
monitoring contracts. IASI end-user accounts monitored increased 30,842 to 77,890 at December 31, in 2002 
from 47,04E at December 31, 2001. Non IASI end-user accounts monitored excluding Criticom decreased 
2E,727 to 314,241 at December 31, 2002 from 342,968 at December 31, 2001, respectively. The average 
price realized for alarm monitoring services, excluding IASL was $4.86 and $4.79 in 2002 and 2001, 
respectively. Average recurring monthly revenue and the average number of end-user alarm monitoring 
contracts increased in 2002 primarily as a result of the acquisitions of Custom Design; RTC Alarm and 
Criticom. The total number of end-user monitoring contracts monitored at December 31, 2002 was 
approximately 486,650, a net increase _of approximately 96,400 end-user alarm monitc;>ring contracts for the 
year. 

Average recurring monthly revenue and the average number of end-user alann monitoring contracts. 
increased in 2002 primarily as a result of the acquisitions of Custom Design, RTC Alarm and Criticom. The 
total number of end-user monitoring contracts monitored at December 31, 2002 was approximately 486,700, a 
net increase of approximately 96,400 end-user alann monitoring contracts for the year. · 

The acquisition~ of CustomDesign, RTC Alarm and Criticom added approximately 131,700 monitored 
.accounts. Accounts acquired from Custom Design ~d RTC Alarm were consolidated into our existing 
monitoring facilities. The Criticom accounts acquired were not consolidated into existing monitoring facilities. 
Revenue related to those acquisitions totaled $3,343,715 during 2002 or 14.2% of our total revenue. 

Concessions for monitoring .services granted to IASI were $35,000 in 2002 versus $993,000 in 2001. 
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Cost of Revenue. The cost of revenue increased $2,296,902 to $15,424,912 in 2002 from $13,128,010 
in 2001, or 17 .5%, reflecting in part the acquisitions of RTC Alarm aod Criticom. The cost increase includes 
ao 11.3% decrease in operator salaries that was offset by increases of 38% in telecommunication expenses, 
173.8% in Dealer care salaries, 22.0% in benefit and employer paid taxes aod 37.8% in other operating 
expenses. As a result, the margin attributable to the central station operations decreased to 34.3% in 2002 
from 36.2% ln. 2001. 

Operating Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased by $696,082 to $2,530,374 in 2002 
from $1,834,292 in 2001, or 37.9%, resUlting primarily from the acquisitions of RTC Alarm aod Criticom and 
increases in professional fees for audit services. 

Selling aod marketing expenses decreased by $380,362 to $736,866 from $1,li7,228, or 34.0%. The 
sales force was reconfigured in the third quarter of 2001 in an effort to increase the productivity of each sales 
person. The benefit of this reconfiguration plus lower travel aod other sales related expenses contributed to ' 
the decline in selling and marketing expenses. 

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $1,999,914 to $5,580,985 from $3,581,071, or 56%, 
reflecting the acquisitions of Custom Design, RTC Alarm aod Criticom. Amortization of dealer relationships 
increased $2,183,033 from $2,490,358 in 2001 to $4,673,391 in 2002. Depreciation expense increased 
$358,318 to $833,481 from $475,163, or 75.4%, reflecting the acquisitions of RTC Alarm and Criticom. 
Effective January 1, 2002 the Company adopted SFAS No. 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets" aod 
ceased amortizing goodwill. As a result, goodwill amortization expense decreased from $601,343 in 2001 to 
$0 in 2002. 

Other Income. Net other income increased $156,299 to $656,299 in 2002 from $500,000 m 2001, or 
3l.3%, aod was primarily attributable to the forgiveness of debt in connection with a litigation settlement in 
2002 for a failed merger with an unrelated entity. Other income in the prior period of $500,000 reflected a 
break-up fee related to the failed merger: 

Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs. The amortization of debt issuance costs inc.-eased $824,729 to 
$1,619,086 in 2002 from $794,357 in 2001, or 103.8%, reflecting additional indebtedness associated with the 
acquisition of RTC Alarm, plus the write off of $831,717 in debt issuance costs associated with the 
refinancing of certain mdebtedness in September and October 2002. 

Interest Expense. Net interest expense increased $973,791 to $4,593,943 in 2002 from $3,620,152 in 
2001, or 26.9%, reflecting higher levels of average debt outstanding because of the acquisitions of Custom 
Design, RTC Alarm and Criticom. . 

In September 2002, IASG, a pre-existing Delaware company which has been subsequently dissolved, 
issued an aggregate of $5.5 million principal amount of convertible notes, which we assumed in January, 
2003. These notes contain a beneficial conversion feature whereby they can be converted to common stock at 
a 25 percent discount from the initial public offering price. The common stock purchased at a discounted 
price ($11.00 x .75 = $8.25) would have a market value of $7,333,333. The beneficial conversion feature will 
be recorded at the $1,833,333 spread and amortized straight-line over the three-year life of the notes. The 
resulting interest expense will be $611, 111 per year. 

Taxes. A tax benefit of $681,443 was recorded in the current period, reflecting the change in the 
deferred tax liability net of S corporate state taxes and the reversal of a tax liability for a tax year no longer 
subject to examination in the amount of ($345,600). A tax benefit of $703,784 was recorded in the prior 
period, reflecting the change in the deferred tax liability net of S corporate state taxes. 

As the result of the merger of KC Acquisition with IASG during January 2003, KC Acquisition, KC 
Funding Corporation, Morlyn and Criticom will no longer be considered flow through .entities to their 
shareholders and members and, therefore, must record current and deferred income taxes from their earirings 
and losses, and recognize the tax consequences of "temporary differences" betweenfinancial statement and 
tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. At the time of change in tax status of an enterprise, we will have 
ao additional deferred tax liability of approximately $3,600,000, which will be included in income tax 
expense. 

Assuming profitable operations, we will begin to pay income taxes that previously were the 
responsibility of shareholders and members. This change will have no impact on our debt covenants since the 
covenants measure performance based on EBITDA which will not be impacted by recorded tax expense. 
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Net Loss. As a result of the above, the net loss increased $3,313,686, or 142.0%, to a net loss of 
$5,647,212 in 2002 frbrn a net loss of $2,333,526 in 2001. 

2001 COMPARED TO 2000 

Revenue. Revenues for 2001 were $20,569,037 compared to $18,774,517 for the same period in the 
prior year, an increase of $1,794,520, or 9.6%. The increase in revenue ·was due to growth in internally 
generated accounts monitored plus the acquisition of Custo~ Design. Revenues from Integrated Alarm 
Services, Inc. for alarm monitoring service decreased by $657,183 or 56.5% to $506,982 from $1,164,165. 
The average price realized for alarm monitoring services per end-user alarm monitoring contract was $4.39 
per month in 2001, a decrease of $.92 per month from approximately $5.31 per month per end-user alarm 
monitoring contract per month in 2000, primarily due to increased concessions negotiated with Integrated 
Alarm Services, Inc. for alarm monitoring services. Related party placement fees increased by $785,199 to 
$974,448 from $189,249, or 414.9%, reflecting additional related party account acquisitions. We entered into 
an arrangement to receive placement fees on new financings in May 2000. As a result, 2000 reflects only a 
partial year of related party placement fees. During 2001, we placed approximately three iimes more business 
under this arrangement than in 2000. The average recurring monthly revenue and average number of end-user 
alarm monitoring contracts increased in 2001 as a result of the acquisition of Monital in May 2000. The total 
number of end-user alarm monitoring contracts monitored at December 31, 2001 was approximately 390,216, 
a net increase of approximately 47,871 end-user alarm monitoring contracts for the year. Concessions for 
monitoring services negotiated with Integxated Alarm Services, Inc. were $993,000 in 2001 versus $2,000 in 
2000. 

Cost of Revenue. The cost of revenue remained effectively constant from 2000 to 2001 at $13,138,726 
versus $13,128,010. 1be decrease in cost of revenue as a percentage of sales reflects a 13.7% increase in 
operator salaries and a 9.8% increase in telecommunication expensel! that were offset by decreases of 27.7% 
in Dealer care salaries, 6.3% in benefit and employer p~d taxes and 32.9% in other operating expenses. In 
each case, reflecting our owliership of Monital for twelve months in 2001 and stwP.n months in 2000. As a 
result, the margin attributable to the central station operations increased to 36.2% in 2001 from 30.0% in 
2000 . . 

Operating Expenses. General and administrative expenses increased $274,941 from $1,559,351 in 2000 
to $1,834,292 in 2001, or 17.6%, resulting primarily from the acquisition of Monital and increases in 
professional fees. 

Selling and marketing expenses decreased $355,527 from $1,472,755 to $1.117,228, or 24.1 %. During 
2001, the sales force was reconfigured in an effort to increase the productivity for each sales person. As a 
result, certain administrative and customer service duties were transferred to customer support representatives, 
which were reclassified as general and administrative expenses. · · · · 

Depreciation and amortization expenses increased $310,886 from $3,270,185 to $3,581,071, or 9.5% 
reflecting the acquisi.tion of Monital. Depreciation expense remained consistent at approximately $500,000 
between years. . 

Otfrer Income. Other income increased $500,000, reflecting a break-up fee related to a failed merger 
· with an unrelated party. 

Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs. The amortization of debt issuance costs increased $51,092 from 
$743,265 in 2000 to $794,357 in 2001, or 6.9%, reflecting the additional indebtedness associated with the 
acquisitions of Monital and Custom. Design. 

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by $538,550, or 17.5%, from $3,081,602 in 2000 to 
$3,620,152 in 2001. This was primarily due to higher levels of average debt outstanding because of the 
Monital acquisition in May 2000. 

Taxes. A tax benefit of $703,784 was recorded in the current period, versus the recording of a deferred 
tax benefit in the prior period of $4,793,725; reflecting the change in tax status of KC F~ding Corp. to an S 
corporation from a C corporation. · 

Net Income or Loss. As a result of the above, the net loss was $2,333,526 in 2001, versus net income 
of $287;81 3 in 2000. 
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The following results of operations should be read together with the financial statements of lAS/. With 
respect to historical periods, this discussion relates entirely to lAS/, which does not give effect to the 
acquisition fry IASG. 

Results of Operations-Integrated Alarm Services, Inc. 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected statements of operations data for 
Integrated Alann Services, Inc.: 

2000 2001 2002 

Total revenue ............................... . $9,723,307 $12,952,113 $ 18,889,140 
Operating expenses: 

Amortization ............................... . 4,925,236 5,845,301 8,850,386 
Monitoring expense ........................... . 1,460,478 831,420 1,&>9,795 
General and administrative ..................... . 1,004,017 1,917,469 4,857,530 
Provision for doubtful accounts ................. . 5ll,177 1,293,903 1,271,776 

Total operating expenses ........ · ............. . 7,900,908 9,888,093 16,589,487 

Income from operations ......................... . 1,822,399 3,064,020 2,299,653 

Other expenses: 
Amortization of debt issuance costs .......... ~ .. . 470,687 594,555 2,667,495 
Interest expense ............................. . 7,139,059 8,233,295 11,856,249 

Net loss ..................................... . $(5,787 ,347) $ (5,763,830) $(12,224,091) 

The following table sets forth, for the periods indicated, selected statements of operations data as a 
percentage of revenues: · 

2000 2001 2002 

Total revenue ........................................... . 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 
Operating expenses: 

Amortization ........................................... . 50.7% 45.1% 46.9% 
Monitoring expense ..................................... . 15% 6.4% 8.5% 
General and administrative ................................. . 10.3% 14.8% 25.7% 
Provision f6r doubtful accounts ............................. . 5.3% 10.0% 6.7% 
Total operating expenses ........ _ ............... -.......... . 81.3% 76.3% 87.8% 

Income from operations ..................................... . 18.7% 23.7% 12.2% 
Other expenses: 

Amortization of debt issuance costs ......................... . 4.8% 4.6% 14.1% 
Interest expense ................ _ ......................... . 73.4% 63.6% 62.8% 

Net loss ............................... · .................. . 59.5% 445% 64.7% 

2002 COMPARED TO 2001 

Revenue. Revenue for 2002 was $18,889,140 compared to $12,952,113 for the same period in the prior 
year, an increase of $5,937,027 or 45.8%. This increase in revenue was primarily the result of alarm 
monitoring contracts acquired by Payne, which resulted in an increase in revenue of $6,004,253 and alarm 
monitoring contracts acquired by Guardian in May 2001, which resulted in an increase in revenue of 
$799,401, offset primarily by attrition of other alarm monitoring contracts net of revenue from alarm 
monitoring contracts acquired in 2002 totaling ($866,627). 

Operating Expenses. Amortization expense increased py $3,005,085 from $5,845,301 to $8,850,386 or 
51.4%, reflecting the additional amortization from Payne of $3,374,576 and Guardian $368,578 offset by the 
reduction in amortization in the existing portfolio as accelerated amortization methods decreased from peak 
years. 

Monitoring expenses increased by $778,375 from $831,420 to $1,609,795 or 93.6%, due to the increased 
number of accounts monitored as a result of the addition of the Payne customer accounts of 18,355 and 
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Guardian customer accounts of 12,329. Also IASI received concessions in monitoring from KC Acquisition of 
$993,000 in 2001 compared to $35,000 in 2002. 

General and administrative expenses increased by $2,940,061 from $1,917,469 to $4,857,530 or 1533%, 
reflecting increases in professional fees and audit costs related to this filing of $1,177,433, billing and 
collection expense of $324,090, franchise tax expense for the state of Delaware of $143,000, fees paid to 
Morlyn to provide customer service and dealer care of $915,926, and payroll of $526,001 due to a headcount 
increase in order to service the increase in accounts to be billed and collected, as well as administrative staff. 

Provision for Doubtful Accounts decreased $22,127 from $1,293,903 to $1,271,776 or (1.7)%. 

Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs. The amortization of debt issuance costs increased $2,072,940 
from $594,.555 to $2,667,495 or 348.7%, primarily resulting from amortization of $919,775 relating to Payne 
in addition to the acceleration of amortization of $731,557 due to the early retirement of trust debt and the 

. amortization of costs of $296,333 relating to the new debt issued in 2002. . 

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by $3,622,954 from $8,233,295 to $11,856,249 or 44%. 
· Titis was primarily due to an increase in the average debt outstanding for 2002. 

Net Loss. As a result, the net loss increlll>ed by $6,460,261 or 112%, from $5,763,830 to $12,224,091. 

Customer Contracts. The carrying value of the retail customer contracts was higher than the fair value 
(recent transaction prices and industry benchmark prices) of the asset at December 31, 2002, but fully 
recoverable based upon management's estimates of future undiscounted cash flows. 

2001 COMPARED TO 2000 

Revenue. Revenue for 2001 was $12,952,113 compared to $9,723,307 for the same period in the prior 
year, an increase of $3,228,806 or 33.2%. This increase was primarily the resuLt of revenue from Guardian 
customer account acquisitions of $2,145,747 and revenue from other customer account acquisitions offset by 
attrition totaling $1,083,~9. 

Operating Expenses. Amortization expenSe increased by $920,065 from $4,925,236 to $5,845,301 or 
18.7%, reflectiiJ.g increases in additional amortization from Guardian of $1.157,680 offset by the reduction in 
amortization on other owned accounts·resulting from the use of accelerated amortization methods. 

Monitoring expenses decreased by $629,058 from $1,460,478 to $831,420 or 43.1%, primarily due to the 
increase in monitoring concessions from KC Acquisition from $2,000 in 2000 to $993,000 in 2001, offset by 
the increase in monitoring costs associated with an increase in the number of accourits monitored in 2001 
resulting from contracts acquired from Dealers. The monitoring agreement with KC Acquisition was 
renegotiated on July 1, 2001, to change the payment calculation from $3 an account to 10% of actual cash 
collected. 

General and Administrative expense increased by $913,452 from $1,004,017 to $1,917,469 or 91.0%. 
Such increase was primarily the result of due diligence fees paid to Marlyn of $696,447 for contract 
acquisitions from various Dealers. In addition, we had an increase in salary costs of $107,939 as a result of 
an increase in our collection staff headcount in 200 l. 

Provision for Doubtful Accounts expense increased by $782,726 from $511,177 to $1,293,903 or 
153.1%, reflecting primarily the bankruptcy of a customer's note which had a carrying value of $602,338. 

Amortization of Debt Issuance Costs. The amortization of debt issuance costs increased $123,868 from 
$470,687 to $594,555 or 26.3%, reflecting increases in amortization generated from the addition of debt in 
2001. 

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased by $1,094,236 from $7,139,059 to $8,233,295 or 15.3%. 
Titis was primarily due to an increase in the average amount of debt outstanding in 2001. 

Net Loss. As a result, the net loss decreased by $23,517, or 0.4%, from $5,787,341 to $5,763,830. 

Liquidity and Capital Resources 

We are a highly-leveraged company. Our principal uses of cash have been to acquire central stations and 
alarm monitoring contracts, fund debt service and provide working capital. Since 1998, we have funded our 
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operations and acquisitions either through cash generated from operations, bank borrowings or other 
fi.nancings. At March 31, 2003, we.had approximately $165 million of debt and a stockholder's deficit of 
$32.3 million. In addition, we had a working capital deficit of approximately $16.4 million at March 31, 
2003. We have incurred net losses since mception, primarily due to interest expense associated with high 
coupon debt as well as substantial non-cash charges for depreciation and amortization of intangible assets and 
debt issuance costs. At March 31, 2003, our debt service and capital lease requirements totalled $13.0 million 
for 2003 . 

We intend to use a substantial portion of the proceeds from .this initial public offering to repay $80.1 
million of debt, inclusive of prepayment fees and net of debt service reserve funds, that would reduce our 
debt service and capital lease requirements to $2.0 million for 2003. We believe we have the ability to 

service our debt and capital lease obligations coming due in 2003 primarily from funds generated from 
ongoing operations, collections of current notes receivable of $1.3 million, and recent borrowings of $12.7 ' 
million since December 31, 2002. These recent borrowings include $4.3 million borrowed from related parties 
and junior debt of $8.4 million, net of approximately $2.8 million distributed to Capital Center Credit Corp. 
(that had previously contributed capital to us), in January and February of 2003. In May 2003, we issued 
$3.5 million principal amount of promissory notes with principal payable in December 2004 . 

The following tables present the combining cash flows of IASG (successor to KC Acquisition) and 
subsidiaries (which includes Criticom from the ~ of acquisition on September 26, 2002) and IASI and 
affiliates based on the. historical financial statements. Such table excludes the purchase accounting adjustments 
related to the acquisition of IASI by a wholly-owned subsidiary of IASG in January 2003 . 

Year Ended December 31, 2002 

IASG IASI Elimination Total 

(In Thousands) 

Cash flows provided by operating activities: 
Net Loss ....................................... $(5,646) $(12,224) $ $(17,870) 
Depreciation and amortization ................ 7,200 11,518 18,718 
Deferred income taxes ........ - ............. (681) (681) 
Working capital ........................... 2,806 (340) . 2,466 
Other .................................... (987) 1,271 284 

2,692 225 2,917 
Cash flows used in investing activities: .......... 

Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired .... (4,812) (4,812) 
Purchase of customer contracts ................ (1,733) (1,733) 
Fmancing of customer loans .................... (3,241) (3,241) 
Repayment of customer loans . __ ............. 3,979 (1,494) . 2,485 
Other ....... · ............................. (4,051) 328 (3,723) 

(8,863) (667) (1,494) (11,024) 
Cash flows provided by financing activities: ...... 

Proceeds of long-term debt .................. 14,300 34,860 49,160 
Payments of long-term debt. ................. (8,161) (23,552) 1,494 (30,219) 
Debt issuance costs (670) (2,008) (2,678) 
Capital withdrawals .............. ___ .. _ . _ . _ (7,766) (7,766) 
Other ___@Q) (80) 

5,389 1,534 1,494 8,417 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash 

equivalents .......................... - ... -·. $ (782) $ 1,092 $ $ 310 ---
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The following table presents the combining cash flows of IASG and subsidiaries and IASI and affiliates 
based on the historical financial statements: 

Year Ended December 31, 2001 

IASG IASI Elimioati_on Total - --(in Thousands) 
Cash flows provided by operating activities: 

Net Loss .... . ......... . . · ............... . $(2,334) $ (5,764) $ $ (8,098) 
Depreciation and amortization ...... ... .. . .. . . 4,376 6,440 10,816 
Deferred income taxes ... . . ..... . . . . . ... . .. . (704) (7o4) 
Working capital . . ....... . ................. . (527) 1,905 1,378 
Other .. ..... . .. , ...... ... ............... . 201 1,293 1,494 

1,012 3,874 4,886 
Cash flows used in investing activities: 

Business acquisitions, net of cash acquired ..... . 
Purchase of customer contracts .. ... . ... .. .. . . 

(1,192) (1,192) 
(32,186) (32,186) 

Fmancing of customer loans .. . .. . .. . ... . · . . .. . (7,144) 2,325 (4,819) 
Repayment of customer loans ...... ... ...... . 1;231 (309) 922 
Other . .. .... _ . . ......... . ......... . ...... . ~ (1,069) (1,582) 

(1,705) (39,168) 2,016 (38,857) 
Cash flows provided by financing activities: 

Proceeds of long-term debt .. ....... . ....... . 4,925 41,696 (2,325) 44,296 
Payments oflong-tenil debt . ... . .. . . . .. .. . .. . (3,402) (13,088) 309 (16,181) 
Debt issuance costs (644) (2,800) (3,444) 
Capital contributions ...... . .. . .. . . . ........ . 9,n9 9,779 
Other . ............. .- ... . ........ .. ..... . . _____QQ) (113) 

766 35,587 (2,016) 34,337 
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents ....... . $ 73 $ i93 $ $ 366 ---

Net cash provided by operating activities was $2.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 
compared to $4.9 million for the year ended December 31, 200 1.. The decrease in cash provided by 
operations was primarily the result of an increase in the net loss for the period of ($9.8 million) offset by an 
increase .in depreciation and amortization of $7.9 million. Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 
was $4.9 million and $(1.0 million) for 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase in cash from operating 
activities was primarily a result of a decrease in deferred income taxes of $3.8 million and an increase in 
worldng capital of $2.5 .uilllion. . 

Net cash used in investing activities was ($1 LO million) for the year ended December 31, 2002 
compared to ($38.9 million) for the year ended December 31, 2001. The decrease is primarily due to reduced 
purchases of retail customer contracts of approXimately $30.5 million. Net cash used in investing activities 
was ($38.9 million) and ($26.0 million) for 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase is primarily due to 
increased purchases of customer contracts of $19.0 million offset by a decrease in business acquisitions of 
$9.5 million. 

Net cash provided by financing activities was $8.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2002 
compared to $34.3 million for the year ending December 31, 2001. The decrease is primarily due to an 
increase of capital withdrawals of$17.5 million, repayment of long-term debt of $14.0 million, combined 
with an increase in proceeds of long-term debt of $4.9 million. Net cash provided by financing activities was 
$34.3 million and $28.4 million for 2001 and 2000, respectively. The increase is primarily due to the increase 
in proceeds from the "issuance of long-term debL of $1.1 million and im.Teases in capital contributions of 
$10.9 million which was offset by an increase of $2.3 million of debt issuance. costs anq an increase in 
repayment cif long term debt of $3.7 million. 

Net cash used in operating activities was $3.5 million for the three-month period ended March 31, 2003 
compared to $0.3 million for the period ended March 31, 2002. The decrease in cash from operations was 
primarily the result of an increase in the net loss for the period of ($9.3 million) offset by increases in 
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deferred income taxes of $3.5 million, depreciation and amortization of $1.5 million and non-cash service 
fees of $1.6 million. 

Net cash provided by investing activities was $8.3 million for the three-month period ended March 31, 
2003 compared to ($5.3 million) use for the period ended March 31 , 2002. The increase is prima.rily due to 
the increase in net cashacquired from business acquisitions of $13.2 million. 

Net cash provided by fiilancing activities was $l.6 million for the three-month period ended March 31, 
·2003 compared to $4.7 million for the period ended March 31, 2002. The decrease is primarily related to the 
increase in payment of principal on long-term debt of $3.0 million offset by the decrease in proceeds from 
long-term debt of $0.4 million. · 

Cash and cash equivalents do not include cash held at various lending institutions as debt service reserve 
funds. We mairitained restricted cash of $2.8 million, $4.2 million and $4.0 million for the years ending 
December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. 

During 2002 and 2003, we were in default of our monthly and quarterly financial and non-financial. debt 
covenants under our various debt agreements with LaSalle Bank N.A., KeyBank National Association and 
SLP Capital. These debt agreements include financial covenants regarding monthly EBITDA levels, debt 
service and leverage ratios and rolling three month average lockbox collections as a. percentage of funded 
recurring monthly revenue, of which we were in default on December 31, 2002. In November 2002, we 
obtained permanent waivers for all past financial and non-financial covenants on the bank debt and other third 
party debt through November 30, 2002. Subsequent to November 30, we continued to be in default of certain 
of these financial covenants including the monthly EBITDAcovenants due to the additional fees incurred in 
connection with. our proposed initial public offering. In January 2003, the bank modified the calculation of 
our monthly EBITDA covenant to eliminate from EBITDA the fees related to tb.e initial public offering 
("IPO") through March 31, 2003. In June 2003, the modification of the monthly EBITDA covenant was 
extended through June 30, 2003. Based on this modification, we are in compliance with the monthly EBITDA 
covenant. Additionally, we obtained from our lenders including the banks and other third party lenders 
permanent waivers for all past financial covenants and non-financial covenants violations incurred through 
.early March 2003. On May 9, 2003 we received a permanent bank waiver through April l, 2003 for certain 
past covenant violations. With respect to an attrition covenant, the Company has provided the bank with a 
security interest in aj>proximately $l00,000 of additional alarm contracts. On May 14, 2003 we received a 
permanent waiver from a non-bank third party for financial covenant violations through April 1, 2004. We 
have also received waivers for non-financial violations that primarily include the requirement to provide 
monthly financial certificates, monthly reports, certificates of borrower, sales tax payments, merger activity, 
change of control and cash flow statements. Absent these waivers, we would have been in default of our debt 
covenants and a significant amount of long-term debt (including all of our bank debt) would have been 
reclassified as currently due. As a reslilt of obtaining waivers for past defaults and having the ability to cure 
future defaults, our debt obligations are presented according to their terms. After giving effect to the waivers 
described above, we. are not currently in default of our covenants. 

Future compliance with our various financial and non-financial covenants, including monthly EBITDA, is 
predicated on us achieving our future forecasts of earnings and cash flow. Absent this offering, we believe, · 
based on our forecasts (which include modest reductions in operating expenses), that it ~s probable that we 
will meet all of our covenants including the monthly EBITDA covenant through 2003. 

Absent this offering, at December 31, 2002, our debt service obligations in 2004 will approximate $41 
million. In order to pay our debt obligations as they come due in 2004, we will need to obtain equity 
financing (as contemplated by this initial public offering), refinance our debt, or significantly reStructure our 
debt repayment schedule. Although we have been successful 'in the past in refinancing debt a.S it became due 
or rescheduling our debt repayments, there can be no assurance that we will be able to refinance our existing 
debt, reschedule debt maturities or successfully raise other capital to meet our debt service obligations in 
2004. 

In June 2003, we secured a $20 million account acquisition facility with LaSalle Bank N.A., which is 
contingent upon the completion of an initial public offering with. minimum net proceeds of $115 inillion. The 
facility is available to IASG for acquisitions of security alarm monitoring companies aild pools of security 
alarm contracts. · 
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As of December 31, 2002, we have the following cash flow obligations (unadjusted for this offering): 

Payments Due by Period 
In (Millions) 

Total 2003 

Non-Related Party Debr ... .. .......... · . . ..... . ... $145.5 $17.5 
Related Party Debt .. ... . .. . . . .. . .... .. .. . . . .. . .. 9.9 0.6 
Operating and Capital Leases . . .... . ..... ... .... .. . 2.2 0.5 

Total $157.6 $18.6 --

2004 

$35.4 
5.6 

. 0.4 

$41.4 

caJendar Years 

2007 
2005 2006 & Thereafter 

$45.9 $11.6 $35.1 
1.3 1.5 0.9 
0.4 0.3 . 0.6 

$47.6 $13.4 $36.6 -- --
As of Man:h 31, 2003 we have the following cash flow obligations (unadjusted for this offering): 

Total 2003 2004 

Non-Related Party Debt .... . ........... . . . ....... $151.3 $11.5 $37.2 
Related Party Debt • 0 •• • • •• •••••• • • • ••• 0. 0 • • 0 • • • • 14.1 1.5 8.9 
Operating and Capital Leases . . ... .. . :· : .. . .. . .. . . : . ~ 0.5 0.4 

Total $167.2 $13.5 $46.5 -- --
Pro Forma As Adjusted-Payments Due by Period 

In (Millions) 

2007 
2005 2006 & Thereafter 

$56.3 $11.5 $34.8 
1.3 1.5 0.9 
0.4 0.3 0.2 

$58.0 $13.3 $35.9 --

As of December 31, 2002, pro .forma as adjusted and including new offerings to date, we have the 
following cash flow obligations, contemplating the application of the net proceeds of the offering as disclosed 
under Use of Proceeds: 

Calendar Years 
2007 

Total 2003 •2004 2005 2006 & Thereafter 

Debt . .. ..... ... .. .... .. .. . .. .... . . . .. . . ... . .. ... . $81.4 $1.9 $28.2 $10.4 $5.3 $35.6 
Operating and Capital Leases . . ... . ... .. . . . . ..... . .. . 2.2 0.5 0.4 0.4 0.3 0.6 

$83.6 $2.4 $28.6 $10.8 $5.6 $36.2 --
In September 2002, Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc., a pre-existing Delaware Company which has 

been subsequently dissolved, issued an aggregate of $5.5 million principal amount of convertible notes, which . 
we assumed in Januazy, 2002. See "Description of Other Securities--9% Convertible Secured Promissory 
Notes" . We utilized approximately $4.2 million of the net proceeds to repay debt and the balance for working 
capital. · 

In October 2002, we obtained a $3.0 million loan from a related party that bears interest at a rate equal 
to the preferred broker call rate charged by Bear Stearns Securities Corp. to its correspondent broker dealers, 
plus two and one-half (2~ percent per annum .. The funds were used for working capital purposes. The note, 
which was originally due on March 15, 2004, was extended to April 30, 2004, in March 2003. The maturity 
date of this note was extended to June 15, 2005 in March 2003. In Januazy 2003, IASI loaned $2.0 million to 
KC Acquisition for working capital. The note bears interest at the rate of 12% and is due January 17, 2004. 
This note was extinguished in connection with our wholly-owned subsidiazy's merger with IASI. Also in 
October 2002, we refinanced debt with our largest lender. The agreement related to three debt agreements and 
reduced the principal amortization while maintaining the existing interest rates lllllging from 8% to 12.5%. 

In Januazy and Februazy 2003, we obtained an option to extend the due date of notes payable 
aggregating $7.8 million for one year from April 2003 to April · 2004. 

On February 28, 2003; we completed the issuance of $9.2 million in two year promissory notes. The 
notes bear interest at the rate of 10% per annum and mature in December 2004. In January 2003, we obtained 
a $3.0 million loan from a related party that J?ears interest at the rate of 12%. The funds were used for 
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working capital purposes. The note which was originally due January 15, 2004, was extended to April30, 
2004, in March 2003. 

In February atl;d March 2003, IASI issued an aggregate of $3.2 million J:rincipal amount of promissory 
notes. These notes bear interest at 9% per annum, without compounding and are repayable in April 2004. 
Interest is payable quarterly commencing June 2003. 

In May 2003, IASG issued an aggregate of $3.5 million principal amount of promissory notes. These 
notes bear interest at the rate of 10%, without compounding and are repayable in December 2004. Interest is 
payable monthly commencing July I, 2003. 

There are no material capital expenditures anticipated other than our strategy to purchase monitoring 
contracts over the next twelve months, which we anticipate to be approximately $93.5 million. 

Recent Accounting Pronouncements Not Yet Adopted 

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. SFAS 
No. 143 requires the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation to be recognized in the period 
in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The associated asset retirement 
costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset. SFAS No. 143 is effective for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15,2002. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS 143 to have a material 
effect on our combined financial statements. 

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, Rescission of FASB Statements No.4, 44, and 64, 
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections as of April2002. This. Standard addresses 
a number of items related to leases and other matters and is effective for fiscal years beginning after May 15, 
2002. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 145 to have a material effect on our combined financial 
statements. 

· In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal 
Activities. This Standard addresses the recognition, measurement and reporting costs that are associated with 
exit or disposal activities. SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after 
December 31, 2002. We do not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 146 to have a material effect on our 
combined financial statements. 

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 45 (FIN 45), "Guarantor's Accounting 
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others". FIN 
45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, the guarantor must recognize a liability for the fair value of the 
obligation it assumes under that gU.aran.tee. The interpretations provisions for initial recognition and 
measurement should be applied on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, 
2002. The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of both interim and annual periods 
that end after December 15, 2002. We have no guarantees and therefore believe the adoption of FIN 45 will 
not have a material impact on our combined financial statements. 

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148 "Accounting for Stock Based Compensation­
Transition and Disclosure-an amendment of FAS 123". This Statement amends FASB Statement No. 123, 
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change 
to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based employee compensation. In addition, this 
Statement amends the disclosure requirements of Statement 123 .. to require prominent disclosures in both. 
annual and interim financial statements about the method of accounting for stock-based employee 
compensation and the effect of the method used on reported results. The Statement !las varying effective 
dates couimencing with interim periods begining after December 15, 2002. 

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB interpretation No. 46 (FIN 46) "Consolidation of Variable 
Interest Entities-an interpretation of ARB No. 51". FIN 46 addresses consolidation of business enterprises of 
variable interest entities. FIN 46 is effective February 1, 2003. We believe the adoption of FIN 46 will not 
have a material impact on our combined financial statements . 
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Disclosures About Market Risk 

Our exposure to market risk is limited to interest income and expense sensitivity, which is effected by 
changes in the general level of interest rates. The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve 
principal while at the same time maximizing the income we receive without significantly increasing risk. To 
minimize risk, we maintain our portfolio of cash, cash equivalents and short-term and restricted investments 
in a variety of interest-bearing instruments included United States government and agency sectni.ties, high­
grade l,Jnited States corporate bonds, municipal bonds, mortgage-backed securities, commercial paper and 
money market accounts at established financial institutions. Due to the nature of our short-term and restricted 
investments, we believe that we are not subject to any material market risk exposure~ We do not have any 
foreign currency. At March 31, 2003, we had approximately $19.2 million of variable rate debt of which 
$3.7 million of debt has been fixed with an interestrate swap arrangement. · 
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BUSINESS 

We provide ·an integrated solution to independent security alarm dealers, which we refer to as "Dealers", 
to assist them in competing in the residential ~d commercial-security alann m:u-ket. Our services include 
wholesale alarm monitoring and financing solutions, inch1ding purchasing Dealers' alarm monitoring contracts 
for our own portfolio and providing I~ to J?ealers collateralized by those alarm monitoring contracts. We 
also provide support for our Dealers including billing, collection, marketing and access to. equipment discount 
programs. We believe our package of services allows Dealers to compete against self-mocitoring national 
providers in the security alarm market by giving them access to technical sophistication, financ:ing, back 
office and other services that they would not otherwise have, while allowing them to remain the local and 
visible contact with their customer, the end-user of the alarm. · 

We believe we are the largest wholesale alarm monitoring company in the United States, ·monitoring 
approximately 500,000 alarm systems on behalf of approximately 5,000 Dealers . . Our alarm monitoring 
service is provided through three state-of-the-art, redundant alarm monitoring centers located in New Jersey, 
Minnesota and California. We are also a significant provider of capital to Dealers. Since 1993, we have 
provided financing to Dealers in the form of loans or alarm monitoring contract purchases of approximately 
$350 million in the aggregate. We currently hold and monitor 39,000 alarm monitoring contracts in our own 
portfolio. In addition, we hold over 8,000 contracts as collateral against loans we have made to Dealers . 

Our Industry 

Overview 

The security alarm industry is characterized by a large number of privately owned companies involved in 
security alarm sales, leasing, installation, repair and monitoring. In 2001, approximately 10,000 such Dealers 
were active in the United States. Based on information from Security Distributing and Marketing magazine 
("SDM"), approximately 75% of this market is served by smaller companies not included in the 100 largest 
companies. The top 100 companies include large self-monitoring national providers such as ADT, a 
subsidiary of Tyco International, Inc., and Brinks Home Security, Inc., a subsidiary of The Brink's Company. 

The Freedonia Gro!lp, Inc., an independent business research company, estimated the 2001 residential 
security alarm monitoring market to be $6.5 billion and forecasts that the market will grow to $8.2 billion by 
2006 and $10.3 billion by 2011. 

Our target market is the portion of the market seried by the roughly 10,000 Dealers outside of the top 
100, or approximately 75% of the overall alarm monitoring market. 

The growth in the security alarm industry has been fueled by several factors. We believe the aging of 
· the population and the increase in two-career families have both contributed to an increased focus on the 
security of the home. Many insurance companies offer discounts to home and business owners who install 
electronic security alarm systems. In fact, many commercial enterprises are required by insurance 
underwriters to have monitored alarm systems. According to a study conducted by two professors of 
economics at Temple University, homes without security systems are between 2.2 and 3.1 times (depending 
on home value) as likely to be broken into than homes with security systems. In addition. they reported losses 
due to burglary average $400 less in residences with security systems than in those without security systems. 
These factors and others, including a heightened awareness of overall security needs, have resulted in an 
increasing number of homes in North Americ!l with monitored security systems. According to The Freedonia 
Group, Inc., the current penetration of alarm systems in existing homes in North America is 18% and is 
expected to exceed 20% by 2006. Additionally, we believe that many new homes have pre-installed security 
alarm systems. We also anticipate that historic -growth rates in this industry will be surpassed as technology 
continues to lower the cost of remote monitoring and increases the potential applications of monitoring call 
centers. Such new applications include personal monitoring for the elderly or health impaired and using 
global positioning systems ("GPS") to monitor the location of equipment and other assets. In connection with 
this asset tracking initiative, many commercial users of GPS are adding · a safety and security element for their 
human resources. 
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The perfonnance of the security alarm industry bas been impacted by the significant amount of 
consolidation that occurred in the .mid-to-late nineties. Self-monitoring national providers such as ADT 
(acquired by Tyco in 1997) and Protection One, private regional providers, as well as new entrants into the 
market such as Ameritech (a telephone company that has since exited the business) aequired a large number 
of independent Dealers (with and without monitoring call· centers) and wtiolesaie monitoring stations. During 
this period of consolidation, purchase multiples of recurring monthly revenue ranged from approximately 3S 
to 68 times. This growth was largely financed with debt. Most of these acquirers experienced service 
disruptions in connection with the integration of these newly-acquired customer accountS, which increased 
customer attrition. Further, many acquirers were facing and continue to face financial pressures to service ·me 
debt used to effect these acquisitions. Consequently, although the industry is still fragmented, acquisition 

· activity and purchase multiples of recurring monthly revenue have declined. We believe that the combination 
of these higher service-related attrition levels and debt service requirements as well as the credit environment 
generally, presents us with a unique opportunity to grow our business. We believe that we will be able to 
complete acquisitions at purchase multiples of recurring monthly revenue substantially lower than those 
which existed industry-wide in the mid-to-late nineties. Further, we expect that such acquisitions will be 
completed without compromising our account underwriting and due diligence criteria. Fmally, we expect that 
the proportion of debt we use to finance acquisitions Will be lower than the proportion of debt that we used in 
the past. We have historically acquired portfolios of alarm monitoring contracts .with 100% debt financing. 
Following this offering, we anticipate using $104.6 million of the proceeds from this offering to purchase 
alarm monitoring contracts. Further, we expect to pay down approximately $80.1 million of debt, increasing 
the proportion of cash flow from operations available for new contract acquisitions. 

Dealer Operations 

The primary sources of revenue for Dealers are the sale and installation of security alarm systems and 
the monthly subScription of the monitoring service. Typically, upon installation, the end-user enters into an 
annual alarm monitoring contract. Under an alarm monitoring contract, _the Dealer agrees to monitor, or 
contract with another company to monitor, the security alarm from · a remote location and to take certain pre­
determined actions, such as calling the police, an ambulance service, or fire department, when a security 
system is triggered and an alarm signal is received. After its initial term, most alarm monitoring contracts are 
subject to automatic renewal on an annual basis unless the Dealer or end-user notifies the other party within a 
defined time period that the alarm monitoring contract will not be renewed. The average life of alarm 
monitoring contracts typically ranges from 8 to 12 years. 

Most Dealers do not have the capability to monitor alarms internally, and outsource the monitoring and/ 
or administrative aspects of the business ti> an outside wholesale alarm monitoring company. We believe that 
Dealers look for a partner, such as us, who offers a wide array of services, including state-of-the-art 
monitoring service, billing and collection capabilities, and marlceting support, all at a reasonable cost. 

Fmancing support is often just as important as monitoring support since many Dealers are constrained by 
the working capital requirements required to build their business. In many cases, the cost of the installed 
equipment.to the end-user is at or below the Dealer's cost In these cases, much of the Dealer's capital and 
financial return comes from future monthly payments under the alarm monitoring contracts. As a result, 
Dealers oftert need or desire to monetize these alarm monitoring contracts and will, consequently, sell or 
borrow against their alarm monitoring contracts. 

Although there is a well-developed market for the purchase and sale of alarm monitoring contracts and 
several specialty finance companies have been willihg to lend against alarm monitoring contracts held by 
Dealers, many Dealers have not had access to traditional credit lending markets. Several characteristics of the 
industry, including the lack of standardization among individual alarm monitoring contracts and the under­
capitalization of most Dealers, make it difficult for traditional lenders to comfortably len~ against the value of 
individual alarm monitoring contracts. Further, the ability to provide or control monitorifig service is critical 
to maximizing the value of the alarm monitoring contract since ·service issues are . the primary reasons why 
end-users do not renew alarm monitoring contracts. Traditional lenders and many specialty lenders do not 
have this capability. · 
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When acquiring alarm monitoring contracts from Dealers, purchaserS typically pay a multiple of the 
"recurring monthly revenue". According to Barnes and Associates, a financial services provider to the 
security alarm industry, the average recurring.monthly revenue purchase multiple for portfolios with less than 
$50,000 in recurring monthly revenue was 32.7 times in 2001 and 31.1 times in 2002. For example, assuming 
a monthly security alarm. monitoring cost to the end-user of $30.00, fhe acquisition price of the alarm 
monitoring contract would be approximately $950.00. 

Our Services 

Our two pririlary business activities are acquiring and managing portfolios of alarm monitoring contracts 
and monitoring security alarms. We also offer administrative services, such as billing and collection, to our 
Dealers as well as· new and emerging products and services. Our acquisition and financing solutions provide 
capital to Dealers, allowing them to compete with larger competitors on the initial price of equipment and 
installation to the end-user. We also provide Dealers with. access to tectmical sophistication and back office 
services that they may not otherwise have (or be able to profitably operate), while allowing them to maintain 
visible contact with their local customers, the end-users of the alarm. Our alarm monitoring contract 
acquisition and financing solutions and monitoring services complement one another and drive growth in 
other areas of our business. 

We generally require Dealers to whom we provide alarm monitoring contract financing to use our 
monitoring services for all of the alarm monitoring contracts they continue to own. We typically also · require 
these Dealers to use our billing and collection services, enabling us to gain an additional Level of control over 
the reliability of the alarm monitoring contracts' cash Oows. This places us in a unique position to minimize 
alarm monitoring contract attrition because we can control the quality of the monitoring, billing and 
collection and, to a significant extent, Dealer interaction with the end-user. 

Alarm Monitoring Contract Ac~isition and Financing Services 

Generally, Dealers have had limited access to traditional credit providers. Several characteristics of the 
industry, including the lack of standardization among many individual alarm monitoring contracts, the under 
capitalization of Dealers, and their inability to provide monitoring services directly, has historically made 
lenders hesitant to provide financing to Dealers. When providing financing to Dealers, we obtain a security 
interest in the underlying alarm monitoring contracts. The payinent terms are generally between 36 and 72 
months, at interest rates based on prevailing overall interest rates and market conditions. 

We believe that we are uniquely positioned to maximize the value of alarm monitoring contracts through 
the depth of our knowledge of the security alarm industry and the integrated nature of the services we 
provide. We have the ability to exercise greater control over alarm monitoring contract attrition than most 
capital providers because we have direct influence over the quality of the monitoring, interaction with the 
end-user and billing and collection. Consequently, we are able to deploy more capital and achieve higher 
returns. 

With respect to purchased alarm monitoring contracts, we typically acquire them from the Dealers that 
originally sold and installed the security alarm systems giving rise to the alarm monitoring contracts. We 
structure the payment terms and pricing of both our alarm monitoring contract purchases and loans to provide 
us with a competitive internal rate of return. In a typical transaction, the Dealer will sell its alarm monitOring 
contracts for a purchase price that is a multiple of the recurring monthly revenue. The multiple paid in any 
actual transaction is impacted by several factors including average recurring monthly revenue, the amount of 
the homeowner's investment in the alarm system, geographic diversity of the accounts and our own due 
diligence of the Dealer. 

Generally, Dealers that sell or borrow against their alarm monitoring contracts do so on either a flow 
basis (as such alarm monitoring contracts are generated) or a bulk basis (where the Dealer has accumulated a 
portfolio of alarm monitoring contracts, and desires to sell or finance, all, or a portion, of those alarm 
monitoring contracts at the same time). We purchase alarm monitoring contracts on both a flow and a bulk 
basis. Typically, the price paid for a flow alarm monitoring contract is less than that paid in a bulk purchase 
because very often the bulk purchases are comprised of seasoned, performing alarm monitoring contracts. In 
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either instance, we typically require Dealers to replace any cancelled alarm monitoring contracts and lost 
revenues for the first year after we purchase an alarm monitoring contract. Such replacement must be in cash 
or acceptable alarm monitoring contracts. We also hold back a portion of the purchase proceeds to secure this 
Dealer obligation. 

Since alarm moiutoring contract quality is a key driver of our profitability, underwriting discipline is 
critical We maintain a very strict underwriting discipline. For example, we do not typically purchase alarm 
monitoring contracts that were generated by Dealers offering "zero-down" on equipment purchases and 
installation, unless the contracts have been outstanding for a minimum of 12 r;nonths and exhibit acceptable 
payment patterns as well as acceptable responses to quality control calls, since the lack of such costs does not 
create an investment stake in the service by the end-u5er. Further, end-users attracted to "zero-down" 
promotions are often of lower credit standing and therefore, may be more likely to default. 

Credit quality of the end-user is also a key consideration when purchasing alarm monitoring contracts on 
a flow basis. We require credit rating scores on all alarm monitoring contracts that we acquire on a flow 
basis. We typically reject those alarm monitoring contracts with Beacon Scores {a credit rating employing a 
methodology developed by Fair, Isaac and Co., primarily used by Equifax in the US and Canada) of less than 
625 and typically accept alarm monitoring contracts with a Beacon Score of 640 or more (provided they 
satisfy all of our other due diligence criteria). Alarm monitoring contracts with a Beacon Score between 625 
and 640 are further scrutinized through an additional review of the end-user's credit status. We do not 
conduct a credit review of the end-uSer for bulk purchases because of the seasoned perforniance 
characteristics of such alarm monitoring contracts. 

Our due diligence process begins with ail examination of the Dealer in much the same way as a bank 
reviews a mortgage applicant. We perform judgment and lien searches, review tax filings (corporate and 
personal), and obtain credit scores, certificates of good standing and proof of licensure from the state(s) in 
which .the Dealer does business. In addition, we pre-approve each Dealer's standard end-user alarm 
monitoring contract and with respect to flow purchases obtain a credit rating for each end-user. We also 
require that the selling Dealers carry errors and omissions insurance with at least $1 million of coverage and 
provide us with a personal guarantee of the dealer recourse obligation. When we purchase on a flow basis, we 
also generally contact the end-user to ensure that they understand the alarm monitoring contract and know · 
how to use the alarm system. When purchasing alarm monitoring contracts on a bulk basis, we contact a 
significant random sample. In all cases, we verify that the alarm system generates a live signal to our 
monitoring call centers. 

We include certain additional safeguards in our purchase and loan agreements. We generally bill end­
users directly and require that the receipts be deposited into a segregated lock-box account for our benefit A 
lock-box account is established through a remittance processing agreement between a third party service 
provider and us pursuant to which payments made under the end-user alarm monitoring. contracts are 
forwarded to the third party and placed in a segregated account. The contents of tlie lock-box are remitted 
daily to an acctimulation account from which disbursements are made first to our lenders, as required, and to 
us. The Dealers h.ave no right in, or any right to withdraw any amounts held in the accumulation account. For 
loans, we also take physical possession of the original alarm monitoring contracts and file financing 
statements to perfect our security interest. 

While some of our competitors also claim to offer alarm monitoring contract acquisition and financing 
alternatives to Dealers, many act merely as an intermediary. In contrast, we operate as a principal and either 
lend directly to the Dealers or acquire alarm monitOring contracts for our own portfolio. We are not aware of 
any other competitor in the industry that acts as a principal for loans to Dealers. 

A key element ·of our alarm monitoring contract acquisition and financing business is that we are 
imi.quely able to mitigate attrition of i:be alarm monitoring contracts we acquire. In addition to the alarm 
monitoring contract acquisition and finance process described above, we generally require that Dealers use us 
to monitor all of their alarm monitoring contracts, not just those that have been acquired or financed. This 
monitoring requirement enables us to .. ensure the quality of the monitoring services. Monitoring problems are 
a primary cause of alarm monitoring contract cancellation and we believe that we are the only participant in 
the industry that has the ability to control every aspect of its acquired alarm monitoring contracts. 
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Monitoring Services 

We provide monitoring to Dealers on .alarm monitoring contracts thai: they have entered into with an, 
end-user. Dealers typically pay us a fixed monthly monitoring fee for each account that we monitor on their 
behalf. The cost of the monthly monitoring fee is either based on a published list price or is negotiated 
between us and the Dealer. The charges are billed to the Dealer on a monthly, quarterly, semi-annual or 
annual basis in accordance with the contract agreement. The collection of payments by the Dealer from their 
end users have no effect on the prices charged or collected by us from the Dealer. We currently monitor 
approximately 500,000 end-user accounts. Generally, when an alarm is activated, a signal is sent from the 
alarm system through a phone line, radio transmitter, or wireless service to a receiver located at one of our 
three monitoring facilities. This signal is .immediately routed through our automated system and ·an operator 
personally handles each call. When the operator receives the alarm condition, his or her computer will 
simultaneously display a series of instructions on how to handle the alarm. These instructions are prepared by 
the Dealer and ~e end-user in advance a.TJ.d are customized to the particular logistics of the geographic area 
as well as the individual needs of the end-user. 

In many instances, the operator will call a phone number specified by the end-user and ask for a code 
word. If the operator is unable to contact the end-user or an incorrect code word is given, the operator will 
dispatch the appropriate authority to the scene of the alarm. In the instance of a fire alarm, the operator is 
typically instructed to dispatch emergency vehicles without making an attempt to contact ·the end-user. In any 
event, after dispatching the appropriate authority, the operator will then call any other individuals specified in 
the end-user's instructions and will provide notice to the Dealer servicing the end-user of the event. The 
Dealer can then provide follow~up support with the local end-user. 

In a typical week, our operators respond to approximately 84,000 alarm activations. We have 
consistently met a response time, measured by us as the time between when an alarm signal arrives in our 
monitoring call centers and our first response to that alarm, of 30 seconds, which we believe is among the 
best response times in the mdustry. 

We own and operate three redundant monitoring call centers, which operate with state-of-the-art 
equipment and a highly trained staff. Our monitoring call centers are located in Manasquan, New Jersey, 
Minneapolis, Minnesota and Santa Fe Springs, California, and are linked via advanced software that creates a 
real-time queuing process. Having three facilities located strategically throughout the United States allows us 
to efficiently allocate alarm responses based on time-of-day or specific event drivers that may cause one area 
of the country to have a higher volume of alarms than others. As a result, alarm signals, which would 
otherwise wait for available operators during peak periods, are routed to our other monitoring call centers 
where they are more quickly processed. For instance, a large number of alarms at our New Jersey facility 
resulting. from bad weather in the Northeast would result in the transfer of a portion of these calls to our 
California facility. 

All of our monitoring call centers are Underwriters Laboratories ("UL") listed. To obtain and maintain a 
UL listing, a monitoring call center must be located in a building meeting UL's structural requirements, have 
back-up and uninterruptible power supply, have secure and redundant telephone lines and redundant computer 
systems that meet UL criteria. Access to the facility must also be strictly controlled. 

Alarm monitoring offerings vary widely with the specific needs of the end-user and encompass many 
types of monitored alarms including burglary, hold-up, panic, fire, two-way voice communication, industrial 
process control, medical emergency and environmental alert. We monitor all of these types of alarms from 
our existing monitoring call centers. Our monitoring call centers are also capable of supporting a full range of 
add-on services such as remote video monitoring, network intrusion detection, cellular transmission, private 
radio access, personal emergency response systems and GPS monitoring and emergency dispatch services 
using GPS technology. 

Historically, our monitoring services business has grown by adding new Dealer relationships generated 
by both direct marketing and sales activities and by cross-selling to those Dealers to whom we have provided 
financing; Additionally, over the last three years we have acquired four wholesale alarm monitoring 
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companies and we expect to acquire additional monitoring call centers in the future, subject to the availability 
of suitable acquisition opportunities. 

We continually monitor the efficiency of each of our monitoring call centers. We recently consolidated 
seven monitoring call centers into the three call centers that we operate today, taking advantage of new 
technologies that enable us to monitor latge geographic areas very effectively from a single location. This 
consolidation has allowed us to increase efficiency and productivity, and decrease duplicative expenses. 
However, we intend to always maintain at least one fully redundant facility. 

Other Services 

Billing and Collection 

We create paper invoices and mail them to end-users serviced by our Dealers. Additionally we may 
provide collection services for accounts receivable. We generally charge on a per account basis. In instances 
where we provide the billing and collection function in addition to alam1 monitoring contract acquisition and 
financing, we gain an additional level of assurance that timely payments will be made on the alarm 
monitoring contracts that _we have purchased or lent ag~t. It al59 enables us to minimize billing errors, 
which are also a cause of alann monitoring contract attrition. By offering billing and collection ~rvices to 
our Dealers, we enable Dealers to focus .their efforts on sales and installation, rather_ than administration of 
alarm monitoring contracts. 

Guardian Name Brand Program 

We offer a name brand program under the Guardian name that is designed to assist our Dealers in the 
selling of more security systems by utilizing the brand awareness of the Guardian name and the many 
marketing and sales tools that we provide. The Guardian program is operated and administered by us on an 
exclusive basis and each system that is sold and installed under the Guardian brand is required to be 
monitored by us. Under the program, a Dealer is provided with all the marketing material, lllOnitoring 
agreements and eqUipment necessary for the installation of the systems as well as other sales and 
administrative materials under the Guardian name. In addition, we act as the exclusive financing company for 
the program should the Dealer wish to borrow against or sell alarm monitoring contracts that are generated 
from sales under the Guardian brand. · 

Equipment Discount Program 

We provide our Dealers with access to discounts on equipment. For exa,mple, we have entered into a 
relationship with Alarm Device Manufacturing Company (ADEMCO), which is the largest security alarm 
equipment manufacturer and provider in the world. Our understanding with ADEMCO is that any Dealer who 
uses our monitoring services will automatically receive preferential pricing for all equipment purchased from 
ADEMCO. This program can represent significant savings to our Dealers. To be eligible for this program, we 
require that the Dealer (i) be an existing customer of ours, (ii) connect all of their new end-users to our 
monitoring call center, and (iii) maintain a current standing with regard to their monitoring charges .. 

We are currently in discussions with other major manufacturers of alarm equipment to institute a similar 
type of discount program for their equipment. This will give our Dealers a choice of using different types and 
brands of equipment while enjoying similar reduced pricing plans. 

Warranty Program 

We are in the process of establishing an extended warranty service program which would enable our 
Dealers to offer their existing and new end-users an extended.warranty on their alarm systems for periods of 
one, two or three years. The program would generally cover any repair costs to the end~~er and pay the 
Dealer directly for performing repair services, thus eliminating otherwise costly service liability issues for the 
Dealer. The ability to offer a warranty provides an additional revenue source for Dealers while assuring end­
users that the alarm system will remain functional without any .additional service expense. We believe that we 
will have this program in place in the near future. 
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Sales and Marketing 

Our sales and marketing activities are conducted through a network of ten in-house professionals. 

Sales activities are structured by product area (monitoring services, financial products and new product 
applications) and geography. Although sales personnel are focused on one product area, each professional is 
trained to sell all products and services. There are six profeSsionals in our sales force. We also maintain two 
telemarketing departments (one for monitoring and financial services and related products and one for new 
product offerings) that support the sales force. 

Our marketing department is comprised of four professionals. 1bis team is responsible for the production 
and distribution of print advertising materials and direct mail marketing pieces. The team also issues 
corporate communications to employees, customers, s!I3tegic partners and other interested parties through 
regular press releases and announcements of new products and services. The group is also responsible for 
business development activities including the identification and proeurement of new products and services 
that Dealers can sell to their customers. 

We believe that this multi-faceted approach to sales and marketing activities is an important ingredient 
to the successful ongoing growth in all our business areas. 

Growth Initiatives 

Our growth initiatives are focused on four elements: prudently increasing the number of alarm 
monitoring contracts that we either purchase ·from Dealers or finance; increasing the number of Dealers (and 
therefore the number of end-users) to whom we provide wholesale alarm monitoring services; cross-selling 
our various services to Dealers and their end-users and leveraging our alarm monitoring infrastructure across 
new safety and security applications. 

Acquisition of Additional Alarm Monitoring Contracts 

We intend to expand our acquisition and financing of alarm monitoring contracts through purchasing 
alarm monitoring contracts on both a flow business and bulk pilrchase basis. 

Our alarm monitoring flow business includes the purchase of newly created alarm monitoring contracts 
on a recurring, or as originated, basis from our Dealers. We have engaged in flow business with over 75 
Dealers, and are actively seeking to increase the number of Dealers with whom we conduct How business. 

Bulk purchases occur when we buy existing portfolios of alarm monitoring· contracts with demonstrated 
payment histories of at least six months: Bulk purchases typically range in size from 10,000 to 20,000 alarm 
monitoring contracts. These alarm monitoring contracts are typically purchased from Dealers on a non­
recurring basis. The bulk purchases are less predictable in terms of the timing of accowtt acquisitions, but are 
generally more predictable in terms of performance than flow business because the actual historical 
performance of individual alarm monitoring contracts is known. Many of the bulk purchases made by us are 
made from DealerS who are existing monitoring customers. We expect that as we increase our penetration of 
Dealers who use our wholesale alarm monitoring services, acquire other wholesale alarm monitoring 
companies and call centers (see below, "Building Additional Wholesale Monitoring Relationships with 
Dealers.") and ~ontinue to build Dealer relationships, ·we will experience increased opportunities to purchase 
alarm monitoring contracts on both a flow and a bulk basis. 

In a typical alarm monitoring contract acquisition, we retain the selling Dealer to service the underlying 
alarm system, which helps us maintain strong relationships with the Dealers and encourages the· Dealer to sell 
additional alarm monitoring contracts to us as new installations are completed. 

The impact of the acquired contracts on revenue and profitability will be affected by the attrition rates of 
acquired portfolios, as well as the variable expenses relating to such acquisitions including billing, collection 
and servicing. 
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Building Additional Wholesale Monitoring Relationships with Dealers 

In the past, we have grown both internally and by acquiring monitoring ciill centeri:i, including the 
acquisitions of Criticom and Monital. 

Our internal growth is driven by the value that we provide to our Dealers. We provide quality, reliable 
alann monitoring services to our Dealers' end-users. Oui Dealer branding program, warranty program, 
equipment discowtt programs, billing and collection services and financing programs are also important 
factors that enable us to attract additional Dealers. 

Historically, we have also added Dealer relationships through the. acquisition of monitoring companies 
and the integration of their call centers into our operations. We plan to grow our business through 
opportunistic acquisitions of monitoring call centers in order to capture the associated Dealer relationships. 

The impact to profitability of any such acquisition will be dependent upon our ability to efficiently 
integrate the acquired business and cost structure into our existing platforms. 

Cross-Selling ·Opportunities 

We have initiated a comprehensive cross-selling program of our primary services to Dealers. For those 
Dealers to whom we provide wholesale monitoring services, we will encourage them · to use us as the 
purchaser when they wish to sell alarm monitoring contracts, or as a financing source shoutd they wish to 
borrow funds against the value of their alarm monitoring contracts. The ability to be a consistent, readily 
available provider of financing solutions positions us to be the preferred provider of our products and services 
to Dealers. 

Dealers have access to a network of local end-users, which allows us to offer additional services to the 
Dealers' end-users such as two-way voice communication, extended warranty coverage and personal 
emergency response service. Through an existing strategic marketing partnership, we also give our Dealers 
the ability to offer GPS tracking services for any kind of movable asset. 

Since we generally do not participate in the sales and installation market and provide monitoring 
services on a transparent basis, Dealers are comfortable that we will not interfere with their customer 
relationships, and value our relationships which proVide them with new revenue opportunities that they can 
market to their end-users. 

The cost of effectively matketing new products and services to _end-users through Dealers may be greater 
than anticipated, which could negatively affect profitability. 

New Business Opportunities 

We believe there are substantial opportunities for us to expand our traditional security alarm monitoring 
services into ·new monitoring applications, including commercial and personal vehicular security monitoring 
and dispatch, telemedicine (monitoring medical behaviors and events of individuals) and personal emergency 
response services ("PERS"). The Freedonia Group estimates that the market for vehicular security monitoring 
services alone was valu~ at $630 million in 2001 and is projected to be $5.8 billion by 2006. Criticom, 
which we recently acquired, focuses on these opportunities and has already begun and/or completed the 
following projects that utilize GPS technology to monitor vehicles and their contents. 

• We are the exclusive provider of GPS monitoring and emergency dispatch service on systems installed 
by Minorplanet Systems USA, Inc., of Richardson, Texas, including over 26,000 vehicles for 
Minorplanet fleet customers such as SBC Communications, Ameritech, Southern New England 
Telephone Co. and Nevada Bell. The exclusive agreement that we have with Minorplanet will expire 
in May 2005. 

• In Jwte 2000, we partnered with Security Trac, LLC, of New York City, which supplies GPS services 
linked to our monitoring and emergency dispatch service to New York City taxis and livery vehicles . 

. Security Trac has installed over 450 units in taxis to date. There are over 80,000 taxis, liveries and 
vehicles for hire in New York City. 
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• Since December 2001 we have provided monitoring and emergency dispatch service using GPS 
technology to clients of TrackStar International, Inc., of New Hartford, NY, including over 70 

· automobiles of key executives of General Electric and its subsidiaries. 

• In September 2002, we co-developed an end-user interface for a leading overnight shipping company 
that will allow it to track vehicles that transport high value assets and, should the driver be involved in 
an emergency situation, have an emergency signal transmitted to .us using GPS technology for 
emergency dispatch service. We are currently in the test phase of this initiative. 

• We recently completed a program involving the World Trade Center recovery program in which over 
200 debris-hauling trucks were provided with monitoring units using GPS technology to ensure proper 
routing and dumping. When the recovery program waS finished, the tracking units installed on the 
vehicles were purchased by the Department of Design and Construction of the City of New York 
which positions us to be the preferred provider for other monitoring services using these units. 

• We are the first choice provider of Public Safety Answering Point (PSAP) monitoring services to all 
customers of Signature Agency, a. GE Financial Assurance Company. 

• We are the exclusive provider of remote convenience features for vehicles and monitoring for stolen 
cars utilizing GPS technology provided by Directed Electronics, Inc. of Vista, CA. Directed 
Electronics distributes its vehicle security systems to customers such as Best Buy, Circuit City and 
local automotive aftermarket retailers. This exclusive agreement we have with Directed Electronics 
will expire in April of 2006. 

The development and implementation of the infrastructure for these new services is complete, primarily 
because we are equipped to receive most types of electronic signals regardless of the source of the signal 
(i.e., residential alarm equipment, satellite transmissions and other emergency communication devices). 
Consequently, the remaining costs associated with these new initiatives relate primarily to marketing, 
administration and operations. In connection with our acquisition of Criticom, we acquired a 5.03% interest in 
Royal Thoughts ILC, for which we received a right -of first refusal to provide monitoring services for any 
new technology developed by Royal Thoughts. 

The timing and economic impact of introducing new services to undeveloped market segments is 
difficult to forecast These activities accounted for approximately 6.4% of our revenues in 2002 . 

Competition 

The security alarm industry is highly competitive and fragmented. While we generally do not compete 
directly with many of the large companies in the industry such as ADT, a subsidiary of Tyco International, 
Inc., Brinks Home Security, Inc., a subsidiary of the Pittson Service Group, Protection One, Inc. and 
Honeywell International Inc. because we do not sell and install security systems, we are nonetheless impacted 
by the competitive challenge these companies present to Dealers. ·While all of these companies provide 
monitoring services, some of these companies, may from time to time, purchase portfolios of monitoring 
contracts. 

We compete with several companies that have alarm monitoring contract acquisition and loan programs 
for Dealers and some of these competitors may be better capitalized than us. There is also the potential for 
other entities such as banks or finance companies to gain a better understanding of the industry and become 
more active as a source of competition for alarm monitoring contract acquisition and financing portions of our 
business. Further, we compete with participants that primarily provide alarm monitoring contract acquisition· 
and financing services such as Security Alarm Financing Enterprises, Inc., Fmancial Security Services, Inc., 
and Monitronics International, Inc. 

History 

We were formed as King Central in 1985 in the State of New Jersey. In 1986, Thomas Few, Sr. our 
Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer joined King Central as Executive Vice President and 
Chief Operating Officer and acquired 20% of King Central's capital stock:. In January 1998, as part of a 
reorganization of King CentraL, Mr. Few, Sr.'s ownership was increased to 80% and the remaining 20% was 
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acquired by Timothy M. McGinn. our Chief Executive Officer, and David L. Smith, a Director. At that time, 
we changed our name to KC Acquisition. · 

In September 2002, KC Acquisition acquired all of the capital stock of Criticom in exchange for 
$1.0 million and 155,911 shares of our common stock. An additional 68,182 shares of our common stock 
may be issued to the sellers based upon Criticom's future financial performance in 2003. Criticom provides 
wholesale a.J.arm monitoring services to Dealers. In addition, it provides Global Positioning System monitoring 
and asset tracking services to various customers. Cmtis Quady, an Executive Vice President, was the 
President, Chief Executive Officer and principal stockholder of Criticom. 

In connection with the acquisition of Criticom, we acquired a 5.03% interest in Royal Thoughts, LLC. 
The purchase price was . approximately $3.5 million net of cash acquired of $0.6 million as well as a note for 
$0.7 million. In connection with our purchase, we received a right of first refusal to provide any monitoring 
services for new technology developed by Royal Thoughts. 

M&S Partners, a New York general partnership equally owned by Mr. McGinn and Mr. Smith began to 
acquire portfolios of alarm monitoring contracts from Dealers in 1992. Each contract was ultimately placed 
by M&S Partners with one of 41 leveraged trusts of which Mr. McGinn, Mr. Few, Sr; and Mr. Smith were 
the beneficiaries. M&S Partners also acquired alarm monitoring contracts through ·three limited liability 
companies (Guardian Group, LLC, Palisades Group, LLC and Payne Security Group, LLC) which were 
owned by TJF Enterprises, U..C, which is owned by Mr. Few, Sr., and First Integrated Capital Corporation, 
which is majority owned by Mr. McGinn and Mr. Smith. They bundled those alarm monitoring contracts and 
sold them as Trust Certificates collateralized by the underlying alarm monitoring contracts and their recurring 
monthly revenue. We do not expect to engage in securitizing alarm monitoring contracts in the future. 

Between March and November 2002, IASI, a company that was controlled by Mr. McGinn, Mr. Smith 
and Mr. Few, Sr., offered the holders of the trust certificates the right to exchange such certificates for 
promissory notes of IASI. Upon completion of the exchanges, all but eleven .of the trusts were liquidated and 
their assets were transferred to IASI. The trust certificates of the remaining trusts will be repaid with the 
proceeds of the offering and the assets of the trusts .will be transferred to us. In January 2003, IASI entered 
into a merger with a wholly-owned subsidiary of ours and became our wholly-owned subsidiary. In 
connection with the acquisition of IASI, we issued an aggregate of 772,192 shares of our common stock. 

Palisades Group, U..C was the owner of approximately 38% of the alarm monitoring contracts 
underlying the trusts. ln. January 2003, Palisades exchanged all of its ownership interests for our stock and 
distributed such stock to its members, TJF Entexprises, U..C and First Integrated Capital Corporation. In 
connection with the acquisition of Palisades, we issued an aggregate of 25,000 shares of our common stock. 
This acquisition was accounted for under the purchase method .of accounting. It is anticipated that Palisades 
will be liquidated concurrent with this offering. In January 2003, Payne Security Group, U..C and Guardian 
Group, LLC were acquired by us and became our wholly-owned subsidiaries. In connection with the 
acquisition of Payne Security Group, U..C, we issued an aggregate of 50,250 shares to TJF Enterprises, LLC, 
and .First Integrated Capital Corporation. In connection with the acquisition. of Guardian Group, LLC, we 
issued an aggregate of 16,750 shares to TJF Entexprises, _LLC, and First Integrated Capi~ Corporation. 

Morlyn Financial Group, LLC was founded in May 2000 to assist Dealers who were interested in selling 
their alarm monitoring contracts to IASL Moriyn originates alarm monitoring contracts for acquisition and 
provides due diligence, billing and other related services. In connection with the acquisition of Mqrlyn, in 
January 2003, we issued an aggregate of 17,000 shares of our common stock to Messrs. McGinn, Few Sr., 
and Smith. 

In June 1999, K~ Acquisition acquired all of the assets and assumed certain liabilities of Criticom CA, 
Inc., a monitoring call center in Santa Fe Springs, California, in exchange for approximately $3.2 million. In 
May 2000, KC Acquisition acquired 99.2% of the capital stock of Monital Signal Corpotation in exchange 
for approximately $10.7 million. Monital., located in Manasquan, New Jersey, was KC Acquisition's largest 
competitor in the Northeast, United States. In October 2001, KC Acquisition acquired Custom Design 
Security, an independent wholesale alarm monitoring company which services the Western and Central 
Regions of Florida, in eichange for approximately $1.2 million. In January 2002, KC Acquisition acquired 
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certain assets of RTC Alarm Monitoring Services, a large alarm monitoring call center in California, in 
exchange for $5.1 million. 

In January 2003, we effected a migratory merger into KC Alarm Services Group, Inc., a Delaware 
co1p0ration. The sole purpose of the migratory merger was to change our jurisdiction of incorporation from 
New Jersey to Delaware. Subsequent to the migratory merger, we assumed all of the assets and liabilities of 
Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc., · a pre-existing, Delaware company whose only activity was the sale of 
$5.5 million of convertible debentures. The pre-existing Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc. was then 
dis~olved and we changed our name to Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc. 

Our corporate structure is illustrated below: 

Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc:. (Del) 

I 
I 1000.4. 199.2%(1) I 1000/o I 100% I 100% I 100% I 1000/o 

Criticom Monital Signal lnll:grated Alann Morlyn Financial Payne Security Guardian Palisades 
International Corp. (1) Services, Inc. Group,LLC Group, LLC Group,LLC Group,ILC 

Corp. 

(1) 0.8% of Monital is owned by the former shareholders .of Griptight Holdings, Inc., a non-affiliated entity 
and a former owner of Monital shares. 

Risk Management 

We carry ·insurance of various types, including general liability and errors and omissions insurance. Our 
errors and omissions coverage is $5 million per occurrence. Our loss experience and the loss experience of 
other companies in the security industry may effect the cost and availability of such insurance. Since 1998 we 
have had no uninsured losses. Certain of our insurance policies and the laws of some states may limit or 
prohibit insurance coverage for punitive or other types of damages, or liability arising from gross negligence 
or wanton behavior. See "Risk Factors-Risk of Liability from Operations." 

The nature of the services we provide potentially exposes us to greater risks of liability for employee 
acts or omissions or systems failure than may be inherent in other businesses. Our agreements with Dealers 
and end-users contain provisions limiting · our liability to end-users and Dealers in an attempt to reduce this 
risk. However, in the event of litigation with respect to such matters, there can be no assurance that these 
limitations will continue to be enforced. In addition, the costs of such litigation could have an adverse effect 
on us . 

Regulatory Matters 

A number of local governmental authorities have adopted or are considering various measures aimed at 
reducing the number of false alarms. Such measures include: (i) subjecting alarm monitoring companies to 
fines or penalties for transmitting false alarms, (ii) licensing individual alarm systems and the revocation of 
such licenses following a specified number of false alarms, (iii) imposing fines on end-users for false alarms, 
(iv) imposing limitations on the number of times the police will respond to alanns at a particular location 
after a specified number of false alarms, and (v) requiring further verification of an alarm signal before the 
police will respond. · 

Our operations are subject to a variety of other laws, regulations and licensing requirements of federal, 
state and local authorities. In certain jurisdictions, we are required to obtain licenses or permits to comply 
with standards governing employee selection and training and to meet certain standards in the conduct of our 
business. Many jurisdictions also require certain 9f our employees to obtain licenses or permits. 

The alarm industry is also subject to requirements imposed by various insurance, approval, listing and 
standards organizations. Depending upon the type of end-user served, the type of service provided and the 
requirements of the relevant local governmental jurisdiction, adherence to the requirements and standards of 
such organizations is mandatory in some instances and voluntary in others. 
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Our alarm monitoring business· utilizes radio frequencies to tnmsmit alarm signals. The Federal 
Communications Commission and state public utilities commissions regulate the operation and utilization of 
radio frequencies. 

Legal Proceedings 

In March of this year, Protection One Alarm Monitoring, Inc., a company engaged in the business of 
providing security and othei: alai:m monitoring services to residential and commercial customers, brought an 
action against us in the Superior Court of New Jersey, Camden County for lUlspecified damages in connection 
with our purchase of certain alarm monitoring· contracts from B&D Advertising Corporation ("B&D"). B&D 
had previously sold alarm monitoring contracts to Protection One. As part of such sales, B&D agreed not to 
solicit any customers whose contracts had been purchased and to keep certain information confidential. 
Protection One claims that oui subsequent purchase of contracts from B&D conStitutes tortious interference, 
that we utilized confidential information belonging to Protection One and that Protection One had an interest 
in some of the contracts that. we purchased from B&D. We plan to vigorously defend this claim. We believe 
the resolution of this matter will not have a material adverse _effect on our financial condition, results of 
operations or cash flows. 

In May 2003, a former employee of McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc., brought an action against us, as well as 
McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. and M&S Partners for wtonliful termination. The suit brought in the Supreme 
Court of the State of.New York seeks damages of $10,000,000. McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc: and M&S 
Partners have fully indemnified us from any damages or legal expenses that we may incur as a result of the 
suit. This employee of McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc., was never our employee and we plan to vigorously 
defend this claim. We believe the resolution of this matter will t:tot have a material adverse effect on our 
financial condition, results of operations or cash fiows. · 

We from time to time experience routine litigation in the normal course of our business. We do not 
believe that any pending litigation will have a material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of 
operations or cash flows. 

Employees 

As of March 31, 2003, we had a worldorce of 287 employees. Of our total workforce, nine are engaged 
in management, six are engaged in new product applications and services, 16 are engaged in our finance 
activities, 240 are engaged in the monitoring business and 16 are-engaged. in administration and support 
capacities. None of our employees are represented by a collective bargaining agreement, nor have we 
experienced work stoppages. We believe that our relations with our employees are good. 

Facilities 

Our executive offices are located in Albany, New York. We occupy 4,520 square feet under a lease 
expiring in December 2007, at a monthly rental of $4,326. We leas<: the offices from Pine Street Associates, 
LLC which is 50% owned by Timothy M. McGinn, our Chief Executive Officer and David Smith, a director. 

We also have offices and our East Coast call monitoring center in ManasqUan, New Jersey. The facility 
is 7,200 square feet. We own the premises, free of any encumbrances. 

Morlyn's executive offices are located in Oakland, New Jersey. The offices are 4,705 square feet. The 
lease expires in March 2006 and provides for a monthly rental of $6,665. 

· Our call monitoring center in California is located in Santa Fe Springs. The facility is 6,551 square feet 
The premises are leased pursuant to a i:wo-year lease expiring in March 2005, at a monthly rental rate of 
approximately $5,69Q per month. 

We also have a call monitoring center in Minneapolis; Minnesota. The facility is l3A78 square feet. The 
lease expires in 2010, and provides for a net monthly rental rate of $6,360. 

Management believes that its facilities are adequate to meet our anticipated requirements through the 
year 2008. 
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MANAGEMENT 

The names of our directors and executive officers, together with a brief description of their employment 
histories, are provided below: · 

Name 

Timothy M. McGinn 
Thomas J. Few, Sr ........ . 
Curtis Quady ........... . 
Brian E. Shea ........... . 
Michael T. Moscinski ..... . 
Robert B. Heintz ......... . 
David L. Smith ......... . 
John W. Meriwether ..... . 
Clint Allen ............. . 
R. Carl Palmer, Jr. . ...... _ 
T'unothy J. Tully ......... . 
Ralph S. Michael ill ..... . 
John MabrY ............. . 

Age 

54 
56 
.61 
44 
51 
47 
58 
55 
59 
62 
39 
48 
65 

Position 

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Offic~r 
Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer 
Executive Vice President and Director 
Executive Vice President 
Chief Financial Officer 
Vice President, Fmance and Administration-Monitoring Services 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 
Director 

Mr. McGinn has served as our Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer since January 2003. 
Mr. McGinn was the President of Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc. Mr. Mc9inn is the non-executive 
Chairman of the Board of McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. He ~as served as Chairman of the Board and as an 
executive officer of McGinn, Smith since _1980. He also serves as non~xecutive Vice Chairman of Pointe 
Financial Corp., a publicly traded commercial bank and non-executive Chairman of its affiliates, Pointe 
Capital LLC and Pointe Bank. Mr. McGinn also serves as a Director of Same Day Surgery, Inc. Mr. McGinn 
was also the Chairman of Capital Center Credit Corporation, a private company which provides financing to 
the Residential Security and Alarm Industry, from 1995 to 2002. Mr. McGinn served as a Managing Director 
of On-Line Capital S(!Curities, an internet investment bank, a position he held from March 2000 until 
December 2002 From November 2000 to June 2002, Mr. McGinn also served as Chairman of First 
Integrated Capital Corporation, a financial services firm majority owned by Mr. McGinn and Mr. Smith. 

Mr. Few, Sr. is our Vice Chairman, President and Chief Operating Officer and has over 35 years of 
experience in the security alarm industry. Mr. Few, Sr. has been with KC Acquisition and its predecessors 
since 1985, where he started as Executive Vice President Prior thereto, Mr. Few, Sr. held seriior positions 
with Holmes Protection, Inc., ADEMCO, Guardian and ADT. Prior to his work with these firms, Mr. Few, Sr. 
owned and operated an independent alarm company and central station in New Jersey. 

Mr. Quady founded Criticom, which we acquired in September of 2002. Mr. Quady has served as an 
Executive Vice President and a Director since October 2002 .. He has more than twenty years of experience in 
the security industry. Prior to founding Criticom, Mr. Quady served as a pilot in the United States Army and 
was an airline captain for a major international airline for eighteen years. Mr. Quady is the Chief Manager of 
Royal Thoughts, LLC, in which we have a minority ownership position. 

Mr. Shea has served as an Executive Vice President since March 2003. In this role, he heads our retail 
account acquisition division, including portfolio management, due diligence, performance monitoring and 
billing and collection. Prior to serving in his current role, he was our Chief Fmancial Officer and had served 
as the Chief Fmancial Officer of IASI and its predecessor companies since 1992. Prior thereto, he was Vice 
President of Finance/Controller of Hiland Park, a real estate development company. Prior to joining Hiland 
Park, he was an Analyst at Galesi Group and a Fmancial Manager for General Electric Corporation, where he 
graduated from GE's Financial Management Training Program. 

Mi. Moscinski has served as our Chief Fmancial Officer since March 2003. Prior to joining IASG, he 
served as Vice President, Corporate Controller and Interim Chief Financial Officer for United Road Services, 
Inc., a public company based in Albany, NY, where he worked from 1998 to 2001. From 1987 to 1998, Mr. 
Moscinski was the Director of Corporate Accounting for National Micronetics, Inc. From 1976 to 1987, 
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Mr. Moscinski was with .KPMG International and its predecessor firms, where he was a Senior Manager in 
audit. Mr. Moscinski is a Certified Public Accountant and a member of the _American Institu_te of Certified 
Public Accountants and the New York: State Society of Certified Public Accountan~. 

Mr. Heintz has served as Vice President, Fmanee and Administration - Monitoring services since 
January 2003. He was previously our .Chief Financial Officer, a position he held since April2000. Prior to 
joining KC Acquisition, he was Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of Monital Signal Coxporation, 
which we acquired in April 2000. Before working for Monital, he was Vice President Fmance & Information 
Services for Brownstone Studio, Inc., a gannent cataloger and manufacturer, where he worked from 1994 to 
1996. Before Brownstone, he spent 14 years with the Dun & Bradstreet Corporation where he held several 
finance and accounting positions. 

Mr. Smith has served as a Director since October 2002. Mr. Smith is also the President and a Director of 
McGinn, Smith, where he has served in this capacity since 1980. Prior to founding McGinn, Smith; he was 
with Paine, Webber, Jackson & Curtis. Mr. Smith also serves as the President of Capital Center Corporation 
and as a Managing Director of On-Line Capital Securities. Mr. Smith has been the President of First 
Integrated Capital Corporation since 2000 and a director of its affiliate, Pointe Capital LLC. 

Mr. Meriwether h~ served as a Director since January 2003. He is a Principal and co-founder of JWM 
Partners, LLC, an investment management finn based in Greenwich, Connecticut. Prior to joining JWM 
Partners, he was the Chief Executive Officer of Long-Term Capital Management, L.P., which he co-founded 
in 1993. Mr. Meriwether was with Salomon Brothers Inc from 1974 untill991. Mr. Meriwether was 
appointed Vice Chairman of Salomon Brothers· in February 1988, responsible for worldwide Fixed Income 
Trading, Fixed Income Arbitrage· and Foreign Exchange. 

Mr. Allen has served as a Director and chairman of the compensation commit_tee sine~ January 2003. He 
has served on thirteen public and numerous private company boards of directors. Since 1999, he has se!Ved 
as the Chairman of the Board of Psychmedics Coxporation, Inc., a biotechnology company with a proprietary 
drug testing product Since 1991, he has acted as Chairman of AC. Allen & Company; an investment 
banking consulting firm. Mr. Allen is a director of Steinway Musical Instruments, one of the world's largest 
manufacturers of musical instruments and is a director of Collectors Universe, the leading provider of value 
added services to dealers and collectors of high-end collectibles. Additionally, he serves as Chairman of 
VentureRound LLC, an investment banking finn specializing. in private equity. Mr. Allen was Vice· Chairman 
and a director of the DeWolfe Companies until it was acquired by Cendant Corponition in·September 2002. 
Additionally, he was a director and member of the Executive Committee of Swiss Army Brands until it was 
acquired by Victorinox Corporation in August 2002. 

Mr. Palmer has served as a Director since January 2003. He is the Chairman of the Board and Chief 
Executive Officer of Pointe Financial Coip. and CEO of Pointe Bank. Mr. Palmer has held the CEO position 
at Pointe Financial Corp. since~ 1995. Prior to joining Pointe FmanCial Corp., Mr. Palmer held several 
executive positions within the "banking industry. . 

Mr. Tully has served as a Director since January 2003. Mr. Tully· is the co-founder and managing 
member of Tully Capital Partners, I.LC., a diversified private investment company, where he has been since 
1997. From June 2001 to September 2002, Mr. Tully served as a Director_ of United Rentals, Inc., a New 
York Stock Exchange listed company. 

Mr. Michael has served as a Director ~d chainnan of the audit committee since January 2003. He was 
with PNC Fmancial Services Group from 1979 until August 2002. From February 2001 to August 2002, he 
served as the Executive Vice President & Group Executive, PNC Advisors & PNC Capital Markets·, where he 
was responsible for investment management, investment banking and large coxporate lending and equipment 
leasing. From 1996 to February 2001, Mr. Michael served as Executive Vice President & CEO, Corporate 
Banking where he was responsible for managing PNC's wholesale banking activities, inc_luding Treasury 
Management, Ca'pital Markets, and Leasing. Mr. Michael serves on the board of directors of the Ohio 
Casualty Corp., Key Energy Services," Inc. and of several charitable and educational institutions. 

Mr. Mabry has served as a Director since March 2003. In 1969, he created and built the American 
Alarm Company which was purchased by Honeywell Inc. in 1983. From 1983 until 1993 he served as 
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Honeywell's Vice President of Operations and Vice President of Sales and Business Development He was 
instrumental in advancing Honeywell's expansion activities. From 1993 to 2000, he was President of the 
Security Network of America. Mr. Mabry has served on the Board of Directors and as President of the 
National Burglary and F:ue Alarm Association. Additionally, he has served on the industry's Burglary 
Standards Board of Underwriters Laboratories and The President's Council for Crime Ag;rinst Small Business. 
Mr. Mabry is on the Board of Directors of the Central Station Alarm Association and was previously the 
president. Additionally, he serves on the Board of Directors of ADS Security and Protectron Inc. of Montreal, 
one of Canada's largest alarm and monitoring companies. 

Board Committees 

Audit Committee. Our audit committee currently consists of Messrs. Michael, Allen, Mabry and Palmer. 
Mr. Michael serves as chairman of the audit committee. The audit committee is responsible for, among other 
things, the appointment of our independent auditors, examining the results of audits and quarterly reviews, 
reviewing with the auditors, the plan and scope of the audit and audit fees, reviewing internal accounting 
controls, meeting periodically with our independent auditors and the monitoring of all financial aspects of our 
operations. 

Compensation Committee. Our compensation committee currently consists of Messrs. Meriwether, 
Tully and Allen. Mr. Allen serves as the chairman of the compensation cmiunittee. The compensation 
committee is responsible for, among other things, reviewing and recommending to our Board of Directors the 
compensation and benefits of all our officers, administering our stock option plans, and establishing and 
reviewing general policies relating to compensation and benefits of our employees. 

Limitation of Liability and Indemnification 

Our certificate of incorporation limits the liability of our directors to the maximum extent permitted by 
Delaware law. Delaware law provides that directors of a corpo~tion will'not be personally liable for 
monetary damages for breach of their fiduciary duties as directors, except for the following: 

• any breach of their duty of loyalty to the corporation or its stockholders; 

• acts or omissions not in good faith or which involve intentional misconduct or a knowing violation of 
law; 

• unlawful payments of dividends or unlawful stock repurchases or redemptions; or 

• any transaction from which the director derived an improper personal benefit 

This limitation of liability does not apply to liabilities arising under the federal securities laws and does 
not effect the availability of equitable remedies such as injunctive relief or rescission. Our certificate of 
incorporation and bylaws provide that we shall indemnify our directors and executive officers to the fullest 
extent permitted by law. We believe that indemnification under our bylaws covers at least negligence and 
gross negligence on the part of indemnified parties. 

Director Compensation 

Independent non-executive directors will be paid an annual retainer of $25,000 and they will be granted 
options to acquire 8,000 shares of our common stock with an exercise price equal to the offering price. The 
options will vest on the initial public offering and will expire 7 years later. The heads of the audit and 
compensation committees will receive an additional annual retainer of $10,000 and $5,000, respectively .. 

Executive Compensation 

The following table sets forth information concerning compensation paid or accrued by us to our Chief 
Executive Officer and to each of our other executive officers who earned more than $100,000 in salary and 
bonus for all services rendered to us in all capacities during the years ended December 31, 2002, 2001 and 
2000. 
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SUMMARY COMPENSATION TABLE 

Annual Compeusation 

Name aac! Principal 
Position Year Salary 

Other 
Annual 

Compemation Bonus 

Timothy M. McGinn (1), ..... . ...... . ....... . ............ . 
Chainnan and Chief Executive Officer 

Thomas I. Few, _ Sr., ... . , . .... . ... . . . ........ ... . . . .. : ... . 
Vice Chairman, 
President and Chief 
Operating Officer 

Curtis Quady, . . .... . ......... .. .. ... ... . .. . ... _. ... .. .... . . 
Ex~tive Vice President - -

2002 $100,000 

2002 $364,639 
2001 $362,55~ 
2000 $362,040 

2002 $100.000 $38,747(2) 
2001 $100,000 $34,000(2) 
2000 $100,9<JO $16,468(2) 

-Robert B. Heintz, ... . ... ... . ........ . .......... . .... . : ... . -2002 $120,789 $16,864 
2001 $l10,219 Vice President, Fmance 

and Administration­
Monitoring ServiceS 

2000 $100,598 $46,498 

(I) Mr. McGinn was not employed by us until August 2002. 
(2) Represents payment of personal expenses on behalf of Mr.- Quady. 

Concurrently with the effectiveness of this Registration Statement, we issued Messrs. Few, Quady and 
McGinn 942,400, 97,494, and 385,700 options, respectively. For a description of the terms of such options 
(the "Shareholder Options") see "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions". 

Employment Agreements 

We have entered into employment agreements with Messers. McGinn, Few, Sr., Quady, Shea, Moscinski 
and Heintz. The employment agreement for Mr. Few, Sr., was entered into on October 1, 2002 and has a -
term of three years. The term of Mr. Few, Sr.'s, employment agreement initially automatically extends for an 
additional thiee (3) year period and thereafter automatically extends for additional one (1) year periods unless 
either party elects, not less than 90 days priof to the anniversary date, not to exten~ the term. The 
employment agreements with Messrs. McGinn. Quady, Shea and Heintz,- were entered into on October 1, 
2002, and have a term of three years. The employment agreement with Mr. Moscinski was entered into on 
March 2003 and also has a term of three years. The term of the employment agreements automatically extend 
for additional one (1) year periods, unless either party elects, not less than 90 days prior to the annual 
anniversary date, not to extend the ~mployment term. Under the agreements, Messrs. McGinn and Few, Sr. 
each receive an annual salary of $380,000, and Messrs. Quady, Shea, Moscinski and Heintz receive annual 
salaries of$200,000, $160,000, $135,000 and $130,000, respectively. Messrs. McGinn; Few, Sr. and Quady 
also receive a leased car paid for by us r;mging from $1,00(>-to $1,200 per month. In addition, each of the 
employees may receive an annual bonus at the discretion of the Boaxd of Directors: Messrs. McGinn and 
Few, Sr. have a minimum bonus guarantee of $100,000 per year. The B01ird of Directors may also provide 
additional benefits to the employees, including but not limited to; disability insurance and life insurance. 

We may terminate the agreements for Cause (as defined below) and in such event we will not be 
responsible for the p_ayment of any co~sation under the agreement other than amounts accrued as of the 

. termination date. In the event of an employee's death, the agreement automatically terminates except that the 
respeetive employee's estate shall receive any accrued salary or bonus as of the date of-death. Cause iS 
defined as (i) employee's misconduct as could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on 
our business and affairs, (ii) employee's disregard of lawful instructions of the Board of Directors consistent 
with employee's position relating to our business or neglect of duties or failure to act, which, in each case, 
could reasonably be expected to have a material adverse effect on our business and affairs, (ill) engaging by 

61 

GERSAV 0038382 

Div Ex 373 -64

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-CFH   Document 761-1   Filed 07/08/14   Page 29 of 31



! ; 
:I I I .. 

; I 
~ I 

.· i 
I ' 
' . 

: ' 

I; '. 

·I 
. . : "! 

the employee in conduct that constitutes activity in competition with us; (iv) the conviction of employee for 
the commissionof a felony; or (e) the habitual abwie of alcohol or controlled substances. In no event shall 
the alleged incompetence of !Ill employee, in the performance of the employee's duties, be deemed grounds 
for termination for cause. 

If an employee is temiinated Vllithout cause, or in breach of the agreement, or if an employee terminates 
following the occurrence of certain .. Events" (as defined below), the effected employee is. entitled to receive 
au amount equal to 12 months salary and payment of any previously declared bonus. An event includes: (i) 
failure to be elected or appointed to the position then held by the employee, (ii) a material change in the 
employee's duties or resnon8ibilities, (iii) a relocation of ptace of employment by more than 30 miles, (iv) a 
material reduction in the base compensation or other benefits to the employee, (v) failure by us to obtain the 
assumption of this Agreement by any successor, or, termination of employment following (a) a breach of the 
employment agreement by us, or (b) a change of control. 

In the even! that employment is t~rminated following a change of control or if such individuals are 
required to relocate to an unacceptable location within two years of the change of control, Messrs. McGinn, 
Few, Sr., Quady, Snea. Moscinski and Heintz shall be entitled to (i) a cash bonus, equal on an after-tax basis 
to two times their average compensation, including salary, bonus, and any other compensation. for the three 
previous fiscal years (with the exception of the agreements of Messrs. McGinn, Quady and Few, Sr. which 
call for a cash bonus equal to three times the employee's average compensation, including salary, bonus, and 
any other compensation, for the three previous fiscal years), and (ii) the vesting and acceleration of any stock 
options or warrants held by such person. 

In the event that any of the payments to be made thereunder or otherwise upon termination of 
employment are deemed to constitute a "parachute payment" within the meaning of Section 280G of the 
Code, we shall assume all -liability for the . payment of any exercise tax imposed on such parachute payment 
under the Code, and we shall immediately.reimburse such person on a "gross-up" basis for any income taxes 
attributable to them from our payment of the exercise tax and reimbursements. 

A change in control means: (i) the acquisition by any person or group of 50% or more of the combined 
voting power of our then outstanding securities, (ii) a majority of the Board-nominated slate of candidates for 
the Board is not elected, (iii) we consummate a merger in which we are not the surviving entity, (iv) the sale 
of substantially all of our assets, or (v) our stockholders approve the dissolution or liquidation of our 
company. 

Under the employment agreements, the employee may terminate the agreement by providing 30 days 
written notice. In such ·event; the employee is only entitled to any accrued and unpaid compensation as of the 
date of the termination. 

The 2003 Stock Option Plan 

The 2003 Stock Option.Plan ("SOP") permits the grant of options which may either be "incentive stock 
options", ("ISOs"), within the meaning of Section 422 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended 
(the "Code"), or "non-qualified stock options" ("NSOs"), which do not meet the requirements of Section 422 
of the Code. The total number of shares of our common stock that may be issued under the SOP may not 
exceed 150,000, subject to .possible adjustment in the future as described below. No .options have been 
granted under this plan, 

All employees, officers, directors, consultants and independent contractors of us, or of any parent, 
subsidiary or affiliate are eligible to be granted options. 

Within the limits of the SOP, the compensation committee has exclusive authority, among other things, 
to select those to whom options shall be granted, to determine the number of shares of common stock to be 
covered by each option, and to determine the other terms of each option, including, but not limited to, the 
exercise price and duration. 

The exercise price of an option granted under the SOP may not be less than 100% of the fair marlcet 
value of our common stock on the date of grant (110% of such fair marlcet value in the case of an ISO 
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granted to an optionee who owns or is deemed to own stock possessing more than 10% of the combined 
voting power of all classes of our stock). · 

Options are not transferable or assignable other than by will or the laws of descent and distribution and 
may be exercised during the holder's lifetime only by the holder. · 

The number of shares of common stock authorized for issl.!ance under the SOP may be adjusted in the 
event our shares of common stock are changed into, or exchanged for cash, or securities of another entity 
through a reorganization, merger, recapitalization, reclassification, stock split, stock dividend, stock 
consolidation or combination, or other similar transaction. In the event of the ciccurrence of any ofthe 
following, the compensation committee may adjust the number of authorized shares under the SOP, and the 
options issued under the SOP, as appropriate under the circumstances. 
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CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS 

In addition to their executive positions with us, Mr. McGinn, Mr. Few and Mr. Smith are also 
considered our promotexs. All transactions with the promoters are set forth below: 

In connection with the acquisition of Monital, $1.4 million of long-term debt and $1.9 million of retail 
end-user alarm monitoring contracts were transferred to an entity owned by Messxs. McGi.nn, Smith and Few, 
Sr. This resulted in a dividend distribution of $0.3 million to that related party and a compensation charge of 
$.2 million by us. 

In January 1998, as part of the reorganization of King Central, Mr. Few, Sr. loaned $715,633 to KC 
Acquisition. The loan did not bear interest and was payable tipon demand As of December 31, 2002, the 
loan had a balanc;e of $138,115. Since 1999, Morlyn loaned Mr. Few, Sr. an aggregate of $107,000 in 
non-interest bearing loans. As a result of our acquisition of Morlyn, the loans were offset and the balance 
of $31,115 was repaid to Mr. Few, Sr. 

In January 200J, we acquired all of the capital stock of IASI in exchange for an aggregate of 772,192 
shares of our common stock. IASI was owned by MesSIS. McGinn, Smith and Few. Minority interests 
(Messrs. McGinn and Smith) were issued 483,052 shares. that were valued at $10,627,144, based on a price of 
$22 per share. The 289,140 shares issued to Mr. Few have a value of $6,361,080, based on a price of $22 per 
share. · 

In January 2003, we acquired all of the membership interests of Morlyn Fmancial Group, lLC. in 
exchange for 17,000 shares of our common stock. Morlyn was owned by Messrs. McGinn, Smith and Few. 
Minority interests (Messxs. McGinn and Smith) were issued 3,400 shares that were valued at $74,800, based 
on a price of $22 per share. The 13,600 shares issued to Mr. Few have a value of $299,200, based on a price 
of $22 per share. 

Palisades, an entity owned by T1F Enterprises, LLC and First Integrated Capital Corporation, was the 
owner of approximately 38% of the alarm monitoring contracts underlying the trusts. In January 2003, 
Palisades exchanged all of its ownership interests for 25,000 shares of our stock, became a wholly-owned 
subsidiary of ours and distributed such stock to its shareholders, TJF Enterprises, LLC, an entity owned by 
:Mr. Few and Fixst Integrated Capital Corporation, an entity majority owned by Messrs. McGinn and Smith. A 
minority interest (Frrst Integrated Capital Corporation) was issued 12,500 shares that were valued at 
$275,000, based on a price of $22 per share. The 12,500 shares issued to TJF have a value of $275,000, 
based on a price of $22 per share. 

In January 2003, Payne Security LLC and Guardian Group LLC, two limited liability companies 
originally formed to acquire alarm momtoring contracts, were acquired by us and became our wholly-owned 
subsidiaries. In connection with the acquisition of Payne and Guardian, we issued an aggregate of 50,250 and 
16,750 shares of our common stock, respectively. Payne and Guardian were owned by TJF Enterprises, LLC 
and First Integrated Capital Corporation. The minority interest (Fixst Integrated Capital Corporation) was 
issued 22,425 and 7,475 shares, respectively in the Payne and Guardian acquisitions that were valued at 
$493,350 and $164,450, respectively, based on a price of $22 per share. The 27,825 shares issued to TJF in 
the Payne acquisition and the 9,275 shares issued to TJF in connection with the Guardian acquisition have 
values of $612,150 and $204,050 respectively, based on a price of $22 per share. 

Pointe Bank, for which Mr. McGinn serves as chairman of the board of directors and R. Carl Palmer 
Jr. serves as CEO, loaned us an aggregate of $2.6 million. The loan bore interest at an annual rate of 9.75% 
per annum, This loan was repaid 'by us utilizing a portion of the proceeds of the $5.5 million Convertible 
Note offering in September 2002. 

We lease our executive offices in Albany, New-York from Pine Street Associates LLC, an entity equally 
owned by Timothy M. McGinn and David L. Smith. The lease is for a period of five years, at an annual 
rental of $0.1 million. We believe that the rental rate is at market and that the other tenns are at least as 
favorable as could be obtained from .a third party. 

For the period January 1, 2000 to January 31, 2003, McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. acted as either a 
placement agent or an investment banker in connection with financings, as well as an investment banker in 
connection with certain of our acquisitions. Mr. McGinn is non-executive Chairman and a director of 
McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc., an NASD registered broker dealer, received 
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aggregate commissions and/or investment banking fees of $4.5 million for acting in such capacity. McGinn, 
Smith & Co., Inc., is acting as an underwriter in this offering and may act as an investment banker to procure 
debt or senior additional capital in the future. McGinn, Smith & Co_., Inc. is owned equally by Mr. Smith and 
Mr. McGinn. 

In September 2002, IASG (successor to KC Acquisition), acquired all of the capital stock of Criticom in 
a merger transaction in consideration for the issuance of 155,911 shares of our common stock, $1.0 million in 
cash and a contingent payment of 68,182 sh~es of our common stock tied to Criticom's financial 
performance. Curtis Quady, an Executive Vice President was the President of Criticom. Mr. Quady and 
certain members of his family who owned approximately 72% of Criticom received 112,836 s~ares of our 
common stock pursuant to the KC Acquisition Merger Agreement. Tbe.shares were valued at $1,241,196, 
based on a price of $11 per share. 

In connection with the acquisition of Criticom, we acquired a 5.03% interest in Royal Thoughts, LLC. 
The purchase price was approximately $3.5 million net of cash acquired of $0.6 million as well as a note for 
$0.7 million. In connection with our purchase, we received a right of first refusal to provide any monitoring 
services for new technology developed by Royal Thoughts. Mr. Quady is also the Chief Manager of Royal 
Thoughts, LLC. Mr. Quady .and his immediate family members owned 53.7% of Royal Thoughts, LLC. We 
intend to pay off the remaining balance of approximately $0.6 million of indebtedness incurred in connection 
with this acquisition out of the net proceeds of this offering. See "Use of Proceeds." 

In October 2002, Lynn A. Smith, the wife of David L. Smith, one of our Directors, loaned us $3 million. 
The loan, which is being utilized by us for working capital, bears interest at a rate equal to the preferred 
broker call rate charged by Bear Stearns Securities Corp. to its corresponding broker dealers, plus 2.5% per 
annum, which rate was initially 6.25%. The principal of the loan is repayable on March 15, 2004. In March 
2003, Mrs. Smith extended the maturity date of the loan to April 30, 2004. Interest is payable monthly. In 
January 2003, IASI borr:owed $3 million from Mrs. Smith. The interest rate is 12%. The entire principal and 
interest is due Qn January 15, 2004. In March 2003, Mrs. Smith extended the maturity date of the loan to 
April 30, 2004. IASI loaned $2 million of such amount to IASG on the same terms. In March 2003, IASI 
extended the maturity date of the loan to IASG to June 15, 2005. Following the offering, we intend to repay 
those ·loans out of the net proceeds of this offering. 

In January 2002, IASG borrowed an aggregate of $5.8 million from RTC Trust. RTC Trust is controlled 
by Mr. McGinn and Mr. Smith, although they are not the beneficial owners of the RTC Trust. A related 
entity owned by Messrs. McGinn and Smith procurred the debt and received a placement fee of $175,000 in 
connection with this placement. The current balance of $5.4 million bears interest at 14.31% and is 
collateralized by certain alarm monitoring contracts. It is repayable in monthly installments of approximately 
$0.1 million. This loan is being repaid out o{ the proceeds of the offering. See "Use of Proceeds." 

Mary Ann McGinn, the wife of TlDlothy M. McGinn, is our Senior Vice President, Legal Affairs. She 
has served IASI since its inception in April 2002. Mrs. McGinn has received approximately $3,000 
.compensation for her services. 

Suzanne Sweeney, the daughter of Mr. Few, is President of Morlyn, and has received aggregate 
compensation of approximately $108,000, $106,000 and $54,000 for the last three fiscal years. 

Jeffrey Few, the son of Mr. Few, is Vice President of Sales for Morlyn, and has received aggregate 
compensation of approximately $104,000, $60,000 and $94,000 for the last three fiscal years. 

While IASI and IASG were separate entities, IASI often provided financing to IASG which was used to 
purchase portfolios of accounts and Dealer relationships. These transactions were memorialized in two series 
of promissory notes. One series of notes totaled $1.7 million, with maturity dates from February 2001 to 
August 2005. Ftxed interest rates ranged from 23% to 31% and were collateralized by accounts receivables. 
The other series of notes totaled $2.3 million, with maturity dates ranging from August 2005 to April 2006. 
Fixed interest rates ranged from 12.5% to 17.3% and were collateralized by financed receivables. · 

During the year ended December 31, 2002, IASI assumed approximately $3.9 million of debt from 
Capital Center Credit Corporation (an entity controlled by -Messrs. Smith and McGinn) (of which $0.9 million 
is due to M&S partners, an entity controlled by Messrs. Smith and McGinn, and approximately $3.0 million 
is due to a non-related party), whic~ resulted in a return of capital in a corresponding amount. The 
$0.9 million will be repaid to M&S out of the net proceeds of this offering. In January and February 2003, 
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we made net distributions aggregating approximately $2.1 million to Capital Center Credit Corp., after taking 
into account the issuance of $0.7 million of one-year, 9% notes to Capital Center Credit Corp., due. April 
2004 and a $0.3 million cash contribution. Capital Center Credit has previously contributed capital in excess 
of the amount of these distributions to us. 

In August 2001, IASI loaned Criticom an aggregate of $2.0 million. Criticom utilized such amounts for 
working capital. Upon our merger with IASI, this indebtedness was extinguished. 

In March and April 2003, IASI assumed $1.6 million and $02 million, respectively of debt from Capital 
Center Credit Corp. This consisted of a non-cash transaction through which debt of Capital Center Credit 
Corp., consisting of $0.5 million of one year notes and $1.3 million of two year notes, was transferred to 
IASI. Capital Center Credit Corp. performed tasks including billing, collections, service and other · 
administrative services relative to the Trusts and formation of IASI and thus incurred various debts relative to· 
executing these functions. Consequently, the Company agreed to enter into these transactions to discharge the 
debt of Capital Center Credit Corp. The Company has no further liability to Ca:pital Center Credit Corp. and 
will not have any further business dealings with Capital Center Credit Corp. Capital Center Credit Corp. is an 
affiliate of McGinn, Smith & Co. Inc. and M&S Partners. Capital Center Credit Corp. is an entity controlled 
and managed by Timothy M. McGinn and David L. Smith. 

In addition, prior to IASG's wholly-owned subsidiary's acquisition of IASI, IASG provided alarm 
monitoring services to accounts owned by related parties. Revenues earned .from these alarm monitoring 
services were $0.5 million and $1.6 million, for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. 
Of such amounts, $0.4 million and $1.4 million were from IASI. In connection with a dispute regarding such 
alarm monitoring services, IASG granted IASI concessions on monitoring expenses of $993,000 and $35,000 
for the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. IASI is now a wholly-owned subsidiary of 
ours. 

In February 200~. the Company borrowed $600,000 at a 9% per annum interest rate from an investment 
fund which is managed by McGinn, Smith and Co., Inc. Principal is due at maturity (April 2004) with 
quarterly interest payments commencing 2003. 

During 2000 and 2001, IASI purchased alarm monitoring contracts from entities controlled by Messrs. 
McGinn and Smith, for an aggregate purchase price of $12.7 million and $0.2 million, respectively. These 
purchased alarm monitoring contracts were combined with notes receivable purchased from related parties 
during 2000 and 2001 totaling $3.3 million and $7.1 million, respectively, and were placed in various trusts. 
These amounts were identical to the amounts paid by affiliated entities to unrelated third parties for both the 
alarm monitoring contracts and notes receivable. In connection with such transactions, McGinn and Smith 
affiliates obtained rights to the alarm monitoring contracts and notes receivable and after a very short 
duration, sold the assets to the trusts. In the year 2001, $32 million of alarm monitoring contracts were 
purchased directly from independel).t third parties by Payne and Guardian, our wholly owned subsidiaries. 

In connection with the structuring of eleven trusts in 2000 and six trusts in 2001, which included both 
alarm monitoring contracts and notes receivable, we paid an aggregate of $814,860 and $1,027,420, 
respectively, to entities controlled by Messrs. McGinn and Smith, as placement fees for the procurement of 
the financing necessary to purchase the alarm monitoring contracts and notes receivable. We did not purchase 
any aiarin monitoring contracts from affiliated entities in 2002. 

During 2001 and 2002, Morlyn performed advisory services for IASI and charged IASI $1.0 million and 
$1.2 million, respectively. Morlyn LLC, an affiliate of lASG provides IASI with customer care services and 
other advisory services, including due diligence on contract acquisitions. From September 2001 through 
January 2003, Morlyn charged the Company a weekly fee of $25,000 for customer care and certain advisory 
services. During 2002, M&S Partners assumed a note receivable owned by IASI which resulted in a 
distribution of capital to M&S Partners of approximately $0.8 million. 

Four trusts, for which M&S Partners acts as a trustee (Security Participation Trust, Security Participation 
Trust II, Security Participation Trust ill, and Security Participation Trust IV) receive monitoring services from 
us at a discounted rate of approximately $3.00 per account, per month, and billing and collection services 
from us, at no cost. These trusts purchase alarm monitoring contracts on a monthly basis, with the final trust 
maturing on December 1, 2004. Messrs. McGinn and Smith serve as trustees of these trusts. Neither Messrs. 
McGinn or Smith, nor M&S Partners has any beneficial ownership in such trusts. 
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Concurrent with the offering, Messrs. McGinn, Few, Sr., Smith, Quady and the former shareholders of 
Criticom, will be issued, in the aggregate, options to purch~e 1,900,000 shares of the Company's common 
stock (the "Shareholder Options"). The options will vest as follows: (i) 30% will vest and be immediately 
exercisable on the first anniversary of the offeriug; (ii) 30% will vest and be i.riunediat.ely exercisable on the 
second annivereary of the offering; and (ili) 40% will ve!>t and become inunediately exercisable on the third 
anniversary of the offering. The exercise price of the options will be equal to the per share offering price and 
thus have no intrinsic value. 

Prior to our acquisition of the affiliated entities, llu:ir ownership was as follows: · 

Integrated Alarm Services, Inc. 

M&S Partners LLC (l} 
T.JF E.ntetprises LLC (2) 

Morlyn Financial Group 
Thomas S. Few Sr. · 
Timothy M. McGinn 
David L. Smith 

Payne Security Group, LLC 

Frrst Integrated Capital Corporation (3) 

TJF Enterprises U.C (2) 

62.5% 
37.5% 

80% 
10% 
10% 

50% 

50% 

Criticom International Corporation 
Curtis Quady 
Duane Plowman 

· Jill Quady (4) 
Lisa Fischer ( 4) 
Raymond Menad 
David Speed 
Vincent Erickson 

Palisades Group LLC 

First Integrated Capital Corporation (3) 
TJF Enterprises LLC (2) 

Guardian Group, LLC 

52/1% 
14.4% 
10.0% 
9.9% 
7.3% 
5.0% 

* 

50% 
50% 

First Integrated Capital Corporation (3). 50% 

TJF Enterprises LLC (2) . 50% 
(*) Less than one percent . 
(1) M&S Partners LLC is owned by Messrs. McGinn and Smith. 
(2) TJF Enterprises U.C is owned by Thomas J. Few, Sr. J 
(3) First Integrated Capital Corporation is majority owned by Messrs. McGinn and Smith. 
(4) Jill Quady and Lisa Fischer are the daughters of Curtis Quady, an Executive Vice President 

Policy Regarding Transactions With Affiliates . 

Although we believe theforegoing transactions were fair and in our best interests we did not have any 
formal policy in place. Our Board of Directors adopted a policy in May 2003, that any future transactions 
with affiliates, including without limitation, our officers, Directors, and principal stockholders, will be on 
terms no less favorable to us than we could have obtained from unaffilial.c,!d third patties. Any such 
transactions will be approved by a majority of our Board of Directors, including a majority of the 
independent and disinterested members, or, if required by law, a majority. of our disinterested stockholders .. 
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PIDNCWALSTOCKHOLDERS 

The following table sets forth information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our common stock 
as of April 30, 2003, by the following individuals or groups: 

• each person known by us to beneficially ow:n more than 5% of the outstanding shares of our common 
stock; 

• each of our directors; 

• each of the executive officers named in the summary compensation table contained in this prospectus; 
and 

• all of our directors and executive officers as a group. · 

Percentage of shares owned is based on 1,590,911 shares of common stock outstanding as of the date of 
this prospectus and 23,590,911 shares outstanding after this offering, assuming that the underwriters' over­
allotment option is not exercised. 

Names and Address of 
Beneficial Owner (1) 

Thomas I. Few, Sr.(2) ... . . ... .. ... . 
Timothy M. McGinn(3)(8) . ... . .. ... . . 
Curtis Quady(4)(5) ... : . . . . .. .. .... . . 
David L. Smith(6)(8) . .... ..... . . .. . . 
Brian E. Shea ....... .. .. . ...... . . . . 
Robert B. Heintz . . . . . . ......... . .. .". 
Michael Moscinski . ... . . .... . ..... . . 
Mary Ann McGinn(?) .... . .. . .. .. .. 
John W. Meriwether . .. .. . .. ....... . 
Clint Allen ........ .. . . ...... . . ... . 
R. Carl Palmer, Jr. . . . .. ...... . ... . . . 
Timothy J. Tully . ...... ....... . .. . . . 
Ralph S. Michael, ill · .. .. .. ... . . . .. . . 
John Mabry . . . ... .. . . . .. . . . .. . . . . . . 
All directors and officers as a group 

(13 persons) .. . .. . .......... . .. . 

Sbares Beneficially 
Owned 

795,550 
340,925 

81,644(5) 
340,925 

340,925(7) 

1,516,644 

Percent Beneficbllly Owned 
Before tbe 
Offering 

50.01% 
21.43% 

5.13% 
21.43% 

21.43% 

95.33% 

After the Offering 

3.37% 
1.45% 
0.35% 
1.45% 

1.45% 

6.43% 

(1) Except as set forth above, the address of each individual is c/o Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc., 
One Capital Center, 99 Pine Street, 3rd Floor, Albany, New York 12207. 

(2) fucludes 49,600 shares of common stock owned by TJF Enterprises, LLC, which is owned by Mr. Few, 
Sr. Does not include up to 942,400 shares issuable upon the exercise of the Shareholder Options, see 
''Certain RelationShips and Related Transactions." 

(3) Does not include 385,700 shares issuable upon the exercise of the Shareholder Options, see "Certain 
Relationships and Related· Transactions." 

(4) Does not include 97,494 shares issuable upon the exercise of the Shareholder Options, see "Certain 
Relationships and Related Transactions." 

(5) Does not include up to 35,700 additional shares that may be issued to Mr. Quady upon the achievement 
of certain p~<rformance criteria based on 2003 results. 

(6) Does not include 385,700 Shareholder Options, see "Certain Relationships and Related Transactions." 
(7) Represents shares of common stock beneficially owned by Timothy M. McGinn, Mary Ann McGinn's 

husband. 
(8) fucludes an aggregate of 42,400 shares owned by First futegrated Capital Corporation, which is majority 

owned and controlled by Messrs. McGinn and Smith. 
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DESCRIPTION OF CAPITAL STOCK 

Our total authorized capital stock consists of 100,000,000 shares of common stock, $.001 par value per 
. share, and 3,000,000 shares of preferred stock, $.001 par value per share. The following descriptions contain 
all material terms and features of our securities. The following descriptions contain all material terms and 
features of our securities and are qualified in all respects by reference to our Certificate of Incorporation and 
Bylaws. · 

Common Stock 

We are authorized to issue up to 100,000,000 shares of common stock, $.001 par value per share, of 
which as of the date of this prospectus, 1,590,911 shares, currently held by a total of ten holders, of common 
stock are outstanding, which number excludes an aggregate of 792,793 shares of common stock which may 
be issued upon the conversion of the Convertible Notes (as defined below), 1,900,000 Shareholder Options, 
48,000 Director Options and up to 68,182 shares which may be granted to certain shareholders upon the 
achievement of certain performance criteria. 

The holders of common stock are entitled to one vote for each share held of record on all matters · 
submitted to a vote of stockholders. Holders of common stock are entitled to receive ratably dividends, 
subject to the rights of the holders of preferred stock, as may be declared by our Board of Directors out ef 
funds legally available therefore. In the event we are liquidated, disSolved or wound up, holders of the 
common stock shall be entitled to share ratably in all assets remaining, if any, after payment of liabilities, 
subject to the rights of the holders of preferred stock. Holders of common stock have no preemptive rights 
and have no rights to convert their shares of common stock into. any other securities. 

Preferred Stock 

We are authorized to issue up to 3,000,000 shares of preferred stock, without any designations, rights or 
preferences. With respect to the 3,000,000 shares of preferred stock without designations, rights and 
preferences, our_ Board of Directors is authorized to issue such shares of preferred stock with designations, 
rights and preferences determined from time to time by our Board of Directors. Accordingly, our Board of 
Directors is empowered, without stockholder approval, to issue up to 3,000,000 shares of preferred stock with 
dividend, liquidation, conversion, or other rights that could adversely effect the rights of the holders of the 
common stock. Although we have no present intention to issue any shares of preferred stock, there can be no 
assurance that we will not do so in the future. 

The existence of authorized but unissued preferred stock may enable our Board of Directors to render 
more difficult or discourage an attempt to obtain control of us by means of a merger, tender offer, proxy 
contest or otherwise. For example, if in the due exercise of its fiduciary obligations, our Board of Directors 
was to determine that a takeover proposal is not in our best interests, our Board of Directors could cause us 
to issue shares of preferred stock without stockholder approval in one or more private offerings or other 
transactions that might dilute the voting or other rights of the proposed acquirer or insurgent stockholder or 
stockholder group. In this regard, our Certificate of Incorporation grants the Board of Directors broad power 
to establish the rights and preferences of authorized and unissued preferred stock. The issuance of shares of 
preferred stock pursuant to the Board of Directors' authority described above could decrease the amount of 
earnings and assets available for distribution to holders of our c9mmon stock and adversely affect the 
enjoyment of rights of such holders, including voting rights in the event a particular series of preferred stock 
is given· a disproportionately large number of votes per share, and may have the effect of delaying, deferring 
or preventing a change in control of us that may be favored by certain stockholders. 
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DESCRIPTION OF OTHER SECURITIES 

9% Unsecured Promissory Notes due in April 2004 (the "February Notes") 

In February 2003, IASI issued an aggregate of $3,201,000 prinCipal amount of promissory notes. The 
February Notes bear intereSt at 9% per annum and mature in April 2004. Interest is payable quarterly 
commencing June 2003. · 

10% Promissory Notes ("Two-year Notes") 

We completed an offering of Two-year Notes in May 2003 in an aggregate amount of $12,700,000. The 
Two-year Notes bear interest at 10% per annuni, and are repayable two years from issuanee. Interest is 
payable monthly. We may call the Two-year Notes for redemption at anytime. Ifwe call the Two-year Notes 
for repayment: (a) during the first 12 months from the date of issuance, we will pay the holder 101% of the 
principal amount of the note, plus all accrued and unpaid interest, or (b) at any time after the 12th month 
from the date of issuance until the maturity date, we will pay the· holder 100% of the principal amount of the 
note, plus all accrued and unpaid interesl Participation in each call will initially be at the option of each 
holder. In the event a sufficient number of holders elect to participate in any call and the principal amount 
due to such holders equals or exceed the amount called for redemption, we will have the discretion to 
determine which holders will participate. In the event that a sufficient number of holders do not elect to 
participate in any call, we will effect the call upon all holders on a pro rata basis. 

9% Convertible Secured Promissory Notes ("Convertible Notes") 

In September 2002, IASG issued an aggregate of $5,500,000. principal amount of Convertible N'otes 
which we assumed in January, 2003. The Convertible Notes become due and payable three (3) years from the 
date of issuance. The Convertible Notes bear interest at 9.0% per annum. The Convertible Notes are · 
convertible into shares of common stock at any time prior to repayment at a conversion price per share equal 
to 75% of the offering price ("Conversion Price"}. The shares of common stock issuable upon conversion are 
included in this Registration Statement. The Convertible Notes are collateralized by a portfolio of alarm 
monitoring contracts pursuant' to the terms of a Monitoring Receivable Fmancing Agreement. Pursuant to . 
such agreement, we have pledged $250,000 of monthly wholesale monitoring revenue. Each month $41,250 
will be set aside to meet the quarterly interest payment of $123,750. We have pledged to maintain $250,000 
of monthly wholesale revenue for the term of the Convertible Note, with a balloon payment of $5,500,000 
upon the maturity, unless converted. 

U% Unsecured Promissory Notes due in June and July, 2005 ("Three-year Notes") 

In August 2002, IASI issued an aggregate of $25,000,000 principal amount of Three-year Notes. The 
Three-year Notes bear interest at 12% per annum, and mature three years from issuance. Interest is payable · 
monthly. We may call for redemption of the Three-year Notes at any time. Any call of the Three-year Notes 
will be in increments of one million dollars or more. If we call the Three-year Notes for repayment: (a) 
during the first 12 months from the date of issuance, we will pay the holder 102% of the principal amount of 
the note, plus all accrued and unpaid interest, or (b) at any time after the 12th month from the date of 
issuance until the maturity date, we will pay the holder 101% of the principal amount of the note, plus all 
accrued and unpaid interesl Notice of the call shall be given not later than the tenth day before the date fixed 
for such call. Participation in each call will initially be at the option of each holder. In the event a sufficient 
number of holders elect to participate in any call and the prinCipal amount due to such holders equals or 
exceed the amo\mt called for redemption, we will have the discretion to determine which holders will 
participate. In the event that a sufficient number of holders do not elect to participate in any call, we will 
effect the call upon all holders on a pro rata basis. The Three-year Notes will be repaid out of the net 
proceeds of this offering. See "Use of Proceeds". 

The Five-year Notes (described below) and Three-year Notes are collateralized by a portfolio of alarm 
monitoring contracts. The monthly fees from end-users are deposited into a locked box account for the benefit 
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of the holders of the Five-year and Three-year Notes. As ~ monitoring contracts are terminated or matuie 
. they are replaced, by the Dealers from whom they were purchased, to preserve the value of the collateral. 

12% Unsecured Promissory Notes due in April and May, 2003 ("One-year Notes") 

In June 2002, IASI issued an aggregate of $8.0 million principal amount of promissory notes. The One­
year Notes bear interest at 12% per annum, and mature one year from issuance. Interest is payable monthly. 
We obtained the right to extend the maturity date of the One-year Notes for an additional year. 

12% Unsecured Promissory Notes due in March and April, 2007 ("Five-year Notes") 

· In March and April, 200?., IASI. our wholly-owned subsidiary, fusucd ari aggregate of $27.3 million 
principal amount of Five-year Notes. The Five-year Notes bear interest at 12% per annum and mature five 
years from issuance. Interest is payable monthly. We may call for redemption of the Five-year Notes at any 
time. Any call of the Five-year Notes will be in increments of one million· dollars or more (the "Call 
Amount"). If we call the Five-year Notes for repayment: (a) during the first 12 months from the date of 
issuance, we will pay the holder 102% of the principal amount of the note, plus all accrued and unpaid 
interest, .(b) during the 13th to 36th month from the date of issuance, we will pay the holder 101% of the 
principal amount of the note, plus all accrued and unpaid interest, or (c) at any time after the 36th month 
from the date of issuance until the maturity date, we will pay the holder 100% of the prin«i.pal attl.ount of the 
note, plus all accrued and unpaid interest. Notice of the call shall be given not later th~ the tenth day before · 
the date fixed for such call. Participation in each call will initially be at the option of each holder. In the 
event a sufficient number of holders elect to participate in any call and the principal amount due to such 
holders equals or exceed the Call Amount, IASI will have the discretion to detennine which holders will 
participate. In the event that a sufficient number of holders do not elect to participate in any call, we will 
effect the call upon all holders on a pro rata basis. The interests of the holders of the Five-year Notes are 
junior to a $7.5 million note to a senior lender. 
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SHARES ELIGIBLE FOR FUTURE SALE 

Prior t9 this offering, there has been no market for our common stock, and we cannot assure you that a 
significant public market for the common stock will develop or be sustained after this offering. Future sales 
of substantial amounts of common stock, including shares issued upon exercise of outstanding options and 
warrants and shares issued upon the conversion of outstanding shares of convertible preferred stock and 
convertible promissory notes, in the public market following this offering could adversely effect market prices 
prevailing from time to time and could impair our ability to raise capital through the sale of our equity 
securities. Shares currently outstanding will be available for sale after this offering, as described below. 

Sales of Restricted Securities 

Upon completion of this offering, we will have outstanding 23,590,911 shares of common stock, 
assuming no exercise .of the underwriters' over-allotment option and no conversion of the Convertible Notes. 
Of these shares, the shares sold in this offering will be freely tradable without restriction under the Securities 
Act except for any shares purchased by our "affiliates" as_ defined in Rule 144 under the Securities Act. The 
1,590,911 remaining shares of common stock held by existing stockholders are "restricted shares" as defined 
in Rule 144. All these reStricted shares (except for 22,443 shares) are subject to lock-up agreements providing 
that the stockholder will not offer to sell, contract to sell or otherwise sell, dispose of, loan, pledge or grant 
any rights with respect to any shares of common stock owned as of the date of this prospectus or acquired 
directly from us by the stockholder or with respect to which they have or may acquire the power of 
disposition for a period of 270 days after the date of this prospectus without the prior written consent of 
Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc. 

As a result of these lock-up agreements, notwithstanding possible earlier eligibility for sale under the 
provisions of Rules 144, and 144(k), all of the shares subject to lock-up agreements will not be re-sellable 
until 270 days after the date of this prospectus. Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc. may, in its sole 
discretion, and at any time without notice, release all or any portion of the restricted snares subject to lock-up 
agreements. 

Of the 1,590,911 shares outstanding prior to the offering, 553,808 were issued to our affiliates more than 
two years ago, 155,911 were issued in October 2002, of which 81,644 are owned by our affiliates and 
881,192 were issued in January 2003, all of which are owned by our affiliates. 553,808 are eligible to trade 
pursuant to Rule 144, subject to the volume and manner of sale limitations, discussed below . 

Rule 144 

In general, under Rule 144, as currently in effect, a person, including one of our affiliates, who has 
beneficially owned restricted shares for at least one year, including the holding period of any prior owner 
except an affiliate, would be entitled to sell within any three-month period a number of shares that d6es not 
exceed the greater of: 

• 1% of the number of shares of common stock then outstanding, which will equal approximately 
235,909 shares immediately after this offering; or 

• the average weekly trading volume of the common stock during the four calendar weeks preceding the 
filing of a Form 144 with respect to such sale. 

Sales under Rule 144 are also subject to certain manner of sale provisions and notice requirements and 
to the availability of current public information about us. Under Rule 144(k), a person who is not deemed to 
have been an affiliate of us at any time duririg the three months preceding a sale, and who has beneficially 
owned the shares proposed to be sold for at least two years, including the holding period of any prior owner 
except an affiliate, is entitled to sell those shares without complying with the manner of sale, public 
information, volume limitation or notice provisions of Rule 144. 
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UNDERWRITING 

The underwriters named below are acting. through their representatives, Friedman, Billing, Ramsey & 
Co., Inc. Subject to the terms and conditions contained in the underwriting agreement, we have agreed to sell 
to the underwriters, and each underwriter has agreed to purchase from us, the num~r of shares set forth 
opposite its name below. The underwriting agreement provides that the obligation of the.underwriters to pay 
for and accept delivery of our common stock is subject to certain conditions. The underwriters are obligated 
to take and pay for all shares of our common stock offered (other than those covered by the over-allotment 
option described below) if any of the shares are taken. 

Underwriters 

Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., lnc .. . ......... . ..... . . . ..... . . . . ........ .. .... . 
Stifel, Nicolaus & Company, Incorporated ....... . ........................... . ..... . 
Wells Fargo Securities, LLC . . ..... . . . .. ...... . . : .... .. .. . .. . .. . . .. .. .... ...... . 
Advest, Inc. . . ~ . . ...... . .. .. .. . .. . .. .. . . . . .. . ......... .. . . . . . .... ...... . ..... . 
BB&T Capital Markets, a division of Scott & Stringfellow, Inc . . , ..... .. : ........ . .... . 
Fahnestock .& Co. Inc. . ..... .. ............... . . ........ . . . ..... ... ....... . ..... . 
Frrst Southwest Company ............. . ...... . ........ . .. .. . . . . . . . . · .. . .. . ... . ... . 
Janney Montgomery Scott LLC . ...... .. ..... ... . ... ... .. . ... .. . . . .. . .. . .. · . . .. . . . 
McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc. . .. . . ... : . .. ....... . ........ . .. . ..................... . 
Pali Capital Inc. . ... ..... .. ...... . . ... ........ . .... . .. .. ..... . .......... .. ... . 
Ryan, Beck & Co. LLC .. . . .. .... . .. . ... . .. . . . ... . ..... . ....... .. ...... .. . .. . . . . 
Sanders .Morris Harris ....... ... ... . ..... . . . ..... .. ... ... . . ... . .. . ... . . . . .. .... . 
Wedbush ·Morgan Securities Inc ...... .. .. . ...... . .......... . ....... . ......... . ... . 
Wunderlich Securities, Inc. . .. . ..... . . . . . ..... .. ...... . . .. . . ..... . . . ..... ...... .. . 

Total ..... . . . . . ......... ... . .. . . . .. . ........ ... . . , .. . .. . . . . ... ..... .. .... . 

Number of 
Shares 

12,512,500 
4,331,250 
2,406,250 

250,000 
250,000 
250,000 
250,000 
250,000 
250,000 
250,000 
250,000 
250,000 
250,000 
250,000 

22,000,000 

We have granted the underwriters an option exercisable for 30 days after the date of this prospectus to 
purchase up to 3,300,000 additional shares of common stock to cover over-allotments, if any, at the public 
offering price less the underwriting discounts set forth on the cover page of this prospectus. If the 
underwriters exercise this option, the underwriters will have a firm commitment, subject to certain conditions, 
to purchase all of the shares covered by the option. 

The following table shows the per share and total underwriting discounts and commissions we will pay 
to the underwriters. The amounts are shown assuming both no exercise and full exercise of the underwriters' 
option to purchase 3,300,000 additional shares of our common stock to cover over-allotments. 

Per share ......... . ......... . . . ..... .... ... . . . . . . ..... .. ..... . 
Total ........... . ........ . . . ...... . . . . · ................. . ... . 

No Exercise 

$ 0.6475 
. $14,245,000 

Foil Exercise 

$ 0.6475 
$16,381,750 

The underwriters propose to offer our common stock directly to the public at $9.25 per share and to 

certain dealers at this price less a concession not in excess of $0.38 per share. The underwriters may allow, 
and the dealers may reallow, a concession not in excess of $0.10 per share to certain dealers. 

We expect to incur expenses, excluding underwriting fees, of approximately $1,600,000 in connection 
with this offering. 

We have agreed to indemnify the underwriters against certain liabilities, including liabilities under the 
Securities Act of 193:3, or to contribute to payments the underwriters may be required to make in respect 
thereof. 

Our officers, directors and substantially all of our current stockholders have agreed with the underwriters 
not to offer, sell, contract to sell, pledge (other than to the Company), hedge or otherwise dispose of any of 
their coi:nmon stock or securities convertible into or exchangeable for shares of common stock during the 
period from the date of this prospectus continuing through the date 270 days after the date of this prospectus, 
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except with the prior written consent of Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc. These transfer restrictions do 
not apply to shares of common stock purchased in the secondary market following this offering. In addition, 
we have agreed with the underwriters not to offer, sell, contract to sell or otherwise dispose of any shares of 
our common stock during the period from the date of this prospectus continuing through the date 270 days 
after the date of this prospectus without the written consent of Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc. 

Prior to the completion of this offering, there has been no public . market for the shares. The initial public 
offering price will be negotiated by us and the representatives. Among the factors to be considered in 
detennining the initial public offering price of the shares, in addition to prevailing market conditions, will Ixe 
our historical performance, estimates of the business potential and our earnings prospects, an assessment of 
our management and the consideration of the above factors in relation to market valuation of companies in 
related businesses. 

Our common stock has been approved for quotation on The Nasdaq National Market under the symbol 
"IASG." 

We have agreed to reimburse Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc. for its out-of-pocket expenses in 
connection with the offering, including the fees and expenses of counsel to the underwriters, and for road 
show costs. We have paid Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc. a $100,000 deposit towards these fees and 
expenses. 

During an offering engagement period commencing April 22, 2003 and ending on the earlier of April 22, 
2005 or the completion of this offering, we have agreed not to solicit or negotiate with any person other than 
Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc. to act as our financial advisor, underwriter or placement agent or to 
provide investment banking services to us. We are permitted to terminate the offering engagement period at 
any time. If we exercise our right to terminate the offering engagement period, we have agreed to compensate 
Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co .• Inc. for its fees and expenses accrued to the date of termination. We have 
also granted Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc preferential rights for two years from the completion of 
the offering to act as our financial advisor, underwriter or agent. Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc.'s 
compensation for any future transaction under the preferential rights agreement will be determined by 
agreement between us on the basis of market compensation at the time of the transaction. However, 
Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc.'s compensation for merger and acquisition transactions will not be 
less than 1% of total consideration and, for capital raising transactions, will not be less than 7% ·of equity 
raised, 4% of mezzanine capital raised, or 2% of senior debt placed. 

In connection with the public offering, the underwriters may purchase and sell shares of common stock 
in the open market. These transactions may include short sales, stabilizing transactions and purchases to cover 
positions created by short sales. Short sales involve the sale by the underwriters of a greater number of shares 
than they are required to purchase in the offering. "Covered" short sales are sales made in an atnount not 
greater than the underwriters' option to purchase additional shares from us in the offering. The underwriters 
may close out any covered short position by either exercising their option to purchase additional shares or 
purchasing shares in the open market. In determining the source of shares to close out the covered short 
position, the underwriters will consider, among other things, the price of shares available for purchase in the 
open market as compared to the price at which they may purchase shares through the over-allotment option. 
"Naked" short sales are any sal,es in excess of such option. The underwriters must close out any naked short 
position by purchasing shares in the open market. A naked short position is more likely to be created if the 
underwriters are concerned that there may be downward pressure on the price of the common stock in the 
open market after pricing that could adversely effect investors who pui;Crutse in the public offering. 
Stabilizing transactions consist of various bids for or purchase of common stock made by the underwriters in 
the open market prior to the completion of the offering. 

The underwriters may also impose a penalty bid. This occurs when· a particular underwriter repays to the 
representatives a portion of the underwriting discount received by it because the representatives have 
repurchased shares sold by or for the account of such und~ter in stabilizing or short covering transactions. 

Purchases to cover a short position and stabilizing transactions may have the effect of preventing or 
retarding a decline in the market price of our stock, and together with the imposition of the penalty bid, may 
stabilize, maintain or otherwise effect the market price of the common stock. As a result, the price of the 
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common stock may be higher than the price that otherwise might exist in the open marlret. If these activities 
are commenced, they may be discontinued at any time. These transactions may be effected on The Nasdaq 
Stock Market, in the over-the-counter market or otherwise. 

Timothy M. McGinn, our Chairman of the . Board, Chief Executive Officer and the beneficial owner of 
21.43% of our outstandilig common stock and David L. Smith. a director and beneficial owner of 21.43% of 
our outstanding common stock are affiliated with McGinn, Smith & Co., Inc., a member of the National 
Association of Securities DealeiS, Inc. (the "NASD") and an underwriter in this offering. Because 
Mr. McGinn and Mr. Smith are executive officers of McGinn, Smith & Co., this offering is subject to the 
provisions of Section 2720 of the Conduct Rules of the NASD. Accordingly, the underwriting terms of this. 
offering conform to the requirements set forth in Section 2720. fn particular, the price at which our shares of 
common stock are to be distributed to the public must be no higher than that recommended by a "qualified 
independent underwriter" who has also participated in the preparation of this prospectus and the registration 
statement of which it is a part and who meets certain standards. Such qualified independent underwriter will 
act a~ the manager of this offering. In accordance with this requirement, Friedman, Billings, Rainsey & Co., 
Inc~ will serve in such role and will recommend the public offering price in compliance with the requirements 
of Section 2720. Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc., in its role as qualified independent underwriter, has 
performed due diligence investigations and reviewed and participated in the preparation of this prospectus and 
the registration statement of which this prospectus is a part. 

The underwriters have informed us that they do not intend to make sales of our corruiton stock offered 
by this prospectus to accounts over which they exercise discretionary authority. 

CONCURRENT REGISTRATION OF COMMON STOCK 

Concmrently with this offering, 792,793 shares of common stock have been registered under the 
Securities Act. Such shares may not be sold, transferred, or otherwise disposed of for a period of 270 days 
without the prior Written consent of Friedman, Billings, Ramsey & Co., Inc. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

The validity of the shares of common stock offered by us will be passed upon for us by Gersten, Savage, 
Kaplowitz, Wolf & Marcus, LLP, New York, New York which has acted as our counsel in connection with 
this offering. Certain matters will be passed upon for the underwriters by Mayer; Brown, Rowe & Maw LLP, 
Chicago, lllinois. · 

EXPERTS 

The financial statements of IASG and subsidiaries (successor to KC Acquisition and subsidiaries) and of 
IASI and affiliates at December 31, 2001 and 2002 and for each of the three years in the period ended 
December 31, 2002 and the financial statements of Criticom International Corporation for the period 
January 1, 2002 to September 25, 2002 included in this prospectus have been so included in relianc:e on the 
reports of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP independent accountants, given on the authority of said firm as 
experts in accounting and auditing. 

WHERE YOU CAN FIND MORE INFORMATION 

We have filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission a registration statement on Form S-1 under 
the Securities Act with respect to the shares of common stock offered under _this prospectus. This prospectus . 
does not contain all of the information in the registration statement and the exhibits and schedule to the 
registration statement. For further i.nfmmatiun with respect to us and our common stock, we refer you to the 
registration .statement and to the exhibits and schedule to registration statement. Statemeqts contained in this 
prospectus as to the contents of any contract or any other document referred to are not necessarily complete, 
and in each instance, we refer you to the copy of the contract or other document filed as an exhibit to the 
registration. statement. Each of ~ese statements is qualified in all respects by this reference. You may inspect 
a copy of the registration statement without charge at the SEC's principal office in Washington, D.C., and 
copies of all or any part of the registration statement may be obtained from the Public Reference Room of 
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the SEC, 450 Fifth Street, N.W., Washington, D.C. 20549, upon payment of fees prescribed by the SEC. The 
public may obtain information on the operation of the Public Reference Room by calling the SEC at 1-800-
SEC'-0330. The SEC maintains an Internet site that contains reports, proxy and information statements and 
other information regarding issuers that file electronically with the SEC. The address of the Internet site is 
http://www.sec.gov. 

Upon completion of this offering, we will be subject to the information reporting reqUirements of the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and we will file reports, proxy statements and other 
information with the SEC . 
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 

To the Stockholders of 
Integrated Alann Services Group, Inc. (Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation): 

In our opinion. the accompanying combined balance sheets and the related combined statements of 
operations, stockholders' deficit and cash flows present fairly, in all material respeets, the financial position of 
Integrated Alann Services Group, Inc. and its Subsidiaries (successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and 
Subsidiaries) at December 31, 2002 and 2001, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each 
of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2002 in confonnity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company's 
management; our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits . . We 
conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America, which require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assUrance 
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a 
test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the 
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall 
financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 

As described in Note 2 to the combined financial statements, the Company has retroacpvely restated its 
financial statements to reflect a change in method of amortizing dealer relationl!hips. 

As described in Note 2 to the combined financial statements on January 1, 2002, the Company adopted 
Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142 "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." . 

As described in Notes 6 and 11 to the combined financial statements, the Company has had significant 
transactions with related entities. · 

Is/ PricewaterbouseCoopers LLP 

Albany, New York 
February 20, 2003, except for 
Note 6, as to which tlie dates 
are March 4, 2003 with respect 
to the twelfth paragraph and 
March 7, 2003 with respect 
to the tenth paragraph and 
Note 14, as to which the 
date is April 17, 2003 
with respect to the third paragraph 
and Note 2, as to which 
the date is April 25, 2003 with 
respect to the twentieth paragraph 

- -~ . .,... ---------
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INTEGRA TED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

BALANCE SHEETS 
Combined as of December 31, 2001 and 2002 and Consolidated as of (Unaudited) March 31, 2003 

AssETS 
Current assets 

Cash and cash equivalents ........................... . 
Short term investments ............................... . 
Current portion of notes receivable ..................... . 
Accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful accounts of 

$314,736 in 2001; $194,000 in 2002 and $127,856 in 
2003 ........................................... . 

Prepaid expenses ................................... . 
Due from related party ............................... . 
Deferred income taxes ............................... . 

Total current assets ............................. . 
Property and equipment, net ........................... . 
Notes receivable net of current portion .................. .. 
Dealer relationships, net .............................. .. 
Customer contracts, net ......... : ..................... . 
Goodwill, net ....................................... . 
Debt issuance costs, net ............................... . 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents ..................... . 
Other assets ......................................... . 

Total assets ................................... . 

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' DEF1CIT 

Current liabilities: 
Current portion of long-term debt, related party ......... . 
Current ponion of long-term debt ..................... . 
Current portion of capital lease obligations ............. . 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ................. . 
Current portion of deferred revenue ................... . 
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Total current liabilities ........................... . 
Long-term debt, net of current portion, related pany ....... . 
Long-term debt, net of current portion ................. . 
Capital lease obligations, net of current portion ........... . 
Deferred revenue, net of current ponion ................. . 
Deferred income· taxes ................ · ............... . 
Other liabilities . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ..... . 
Due to related party ................................ : . 

Total liabilities . . . . . . . ... ·. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . ........ . 
Stockholders' deficit 

Preferred stock. $0.001 par value; authorized 3,000,000 
shares and none issued and outstanding 

Common stock. $0.001 par value; authorized 100,000,000 
shares; issued and outstanding 553,808 shares at 
December 31,2001, 709,719 shares at December 31,2002 
and 1,590,911 at March 31, 2003 .................. .. 

Paid-in capital ............................•......... 
Accumulated deficit ................................. . 

Total stockholders' deficit . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . 

Total liabilities and stockholders' deficit ........... . 

As of December 31, 

2001 2002 

$ 1,224,035 $ 442,082 
3,000,000 

1,180,673 1,499,762 
39,139 72,648 

920,703 346,608 
29,405 

3,393,955 5,361,100 
1,779.057 2,708,161 

21,760,816 27,560,912 

7,218,743 7,218,743 
1,581,070 1,047,221 
1,049,691 1,163,229 

47,436 568,431 

$ 36,830,768 $ 45,627,797 

490,504 1,738,724 
5,340,059 3,059,879 

32,549 146,316 
2,542,067 4,680,313 
2,786,937 3,812,626 

11,192,116 13,437,858 
2,726,514 10,696,537 

28,565,372 29,566,223 
361,542 

2,834,918 2,458,738 
717,120 384,480 
140,395 285,300 

46,176,435 57,190,678 

554 709 
2,124,446 5,554,289 

(11,470,667) (17,117,879) 

{9,345,667) ( 11 ,562,881) 

$ 36,830,768 $ 45,627,797 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

F-4 

As or March 31, 

2003 

(unaudited) 

$ 6,789,224 
3,000,000 
1,294,758 

1,151,162 
87,135 

173,340 

12,495,619 
2,503,280 
4,895,973 

26,449,088 
40,493,198 
50,234,338 

4,341,386 
3,992,913 
1,178,831 

$146,584,62,6 

1,683,853 
15,273,182 

145,842 
6,931,199 
4,554,948 

312,327 

28,901,351 
12,395,240 

136,027,162 
324,351 
389,422 
830,974 

46,453 

178,914,953 

1,591 

(32,331,918) 

(32,330,327) 

$146,584,626 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
Combined For the Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 and For the 

(Unaudited) Three Months Ended March 31, 2002 and Consolidated For the (Unaudited) 
Three Months Ended March 31, 2003 

Revenue: 
Monitoring fees .. .. ... . . .... .... . . . 
Revenue from customer accounts . ... . . 
Billing fees . .. . .. .. . .. . .. . .... . . .. . 
Related party monitoring fees .... . .... . 
Related party placement fees . . . ... ... . 

Total revenue 
Cost of revenue (excluding depreciation and 

amortization) ... : . ........ .... .. .. . . 

Operating expenses: 
Selling and marlceting .. .. . ... • . .. . . .. 
Depreciation and amortization .... ..•.. . 
Loss (gain) on disposal of equipment .. . . 

General and aruninistrative .. . ........ . . . 
Monitoring expense ... . .. . .. . ... .. . . . 

Total operating expenses . . ... .. .. . ... . . . 

(Loss) income from operations . .. . . ... . . 
Other (income) expense, net ....... . ... . 
Amortization of debt issuance costs •... . . 
Related party interest expense ... . .. . .. .• . 
Interest expense, net . ...... .. .. .... . ... . 

Loss before benefit (expense) from income 
taxes . . .. .. ............... . . , , ,,, •• 

Years Euded December 31, Three Months Eaded Marcb 31, 

2000 1001 200Z zoo:z 2003 

(IIIWldited) 

$17,159,791 $18,783,49l $20,136,016 . $ 4,948,577 $ 6,089,790 

261,312 304,116 
1,164,165 506,982 

189,249 974,448 

18,774,517· 20,-569,037 

13,138,726 13,128,010 

5,635,..791 7,441,027 

1,472,755 1,117,228 . 

3,270,185 3,581,071 
14,545 31,237 

1,559,351 1,834,292 

---···v·-
6,316,836 6,563,828 

(681,045) 877,199 
(500,000) 

743,265 794,357 
293,202 329,763 

2,788,400 3,290,389 

(4,505,912) (3,037,310) 

558,347 
1.565,017 
1,236,227 

23,495,607 

15,424,912 

8,070,695 

736,866 
5,580,985 

(5,605) 
2,530,374 

8,842,620 

(771,925) 
(656,299) 

1,619,086 
1,284,922 
3,309,021 

(6,328,655) 

149,783 
279,837 

5,378,197 

3,545,599 

1,832,598 

228,352 
1,353,272 

436,792 

2,018,416 

(185,818) 

215,080 
297,207 
961_,419 

(1,659,524) 

2,405,185 
20,983 

152,106 
85,573 

8,753,637 

3,820,899 

4,932,738 

265,066 
2;870,521 

5,477,882 
44,707 

8,658,176 

(3,725,438) 
142,008 
377,675 
424,365 

2,775,826 

(7,44.5,312) 
Benefit (expense) from income taxes ..... . 4,793,725 703,784 681,443 89,789 (3,417,288) -

Net income (loss) . .. . ... . .. . .. . ....... . 

Net income (loss) per share .. . .. . ....... . 

Weighted average number of common 
shares outstanding . . .. .. . .. .. .. . .. . . 

Unaudited: 
Pro Forma income tax to give effect to the 

conversion from S to C Corporation 
status (Note 2): 

Loss before benefit from income taxes 
Benefit from income taxes . .. ... .. . .. . . . 

Net loss .. ... . . . . . .. . ... . ... ... . . .. . . . 

Net loss per share . .. ..... . . ... ... . .. . . . 

$ 287,813 $ (2,333,526) 

$ 0.52 $ (4.21) 

553,808 553,808 

${4,505,912) $(3,037,310) 
1,519,990 955,569 

$ (2,985,922) $(2,081,741) 

$ (5.39) $ (3.76) 

$(5,647,212) 

$ (9.53) 

592,785 

$ (6,328,655) 
2,871,573 

$ (3,457 ,082) 

$(1,569,735) 

$ (2.83) 

553,808 

$(1,659,524) 
662,438 

$ (997,086) 

$ (5.83) $ (1.80) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

F-5 

---~----·- · ···---- · --,--_ - - -~ ,-- .,~ ·: .· .· -- . 

$(1 0,862,600) 

$ (8.44) 

1,287,389 

$ (7,445,312) 
199,200 

$ (7,246,112) 

$ (5.63) 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC AcquJsition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

STATEMENTS STOCKHOLDERS' DEFICIT 
Combined For the Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 and 
Consolidated For the (Unaudited) Three Months Ended March 31,2003 

Commoa Stock Paid-in Ac:aunulaUd 
Shares AOnotuat Capilal Deficit 

Balance, January 1. 2000 ... .. ..... . .......... 553,808 $ 554 $ 2,124,446 $ (9,095,810) 
Dividend distribution .. .. .. ....... ........... (329,144) 
Net income .. .. ... . · ..... . .. .. ··· ·· .. ... . ... 28'7,813 
Balance, December 31, 2000 _____ .. . ____ ... __ . 553,808 554 2,124,446 (9,137,141) 
Net loss ....... . .. ........ . . . .... ......... (2,333,526) 

Balance, December 31, 200 I .... ... ....... . ... 553,808 554 2,124,446 (11,470,667) 
Net loss ... ············· . . ............ .. .. (5,647,212) 
Issuance of common shares 

for acquisition of Criticorn ........... -- . - . .. 155,911 155 3,429,843 

Biuance, December 31, 2002 _ . . ... ... .•... .. .. 709,719 709 5,554,289 (17,117,879) 
Net loss (unaudited) ...... . .. . . . . ... .. . . .... (10,862,600) 
Issuance of common shares for 

acquisition of IASI and affiliates . (unaudited) -- 864,192 865 11,559,079 
Predecessor basis in IASI (unaudited) .......... (17,113,351) (4,351,439) 
Issuance of common shares for 

consolidation of Morlyn (unaudited) .......... 17,000 17 (17) 

Balance, March 31, 2003 (unaudited) ......... . 1,590,911 $1,591 $ $(32,331,918) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 

F-6 

Total 
Stockbolders• 

~· 
$ . (6,970,810) 

(329,144) 
287,813 

(7,012.141) 
(2,333,526) 

(9,345,667) 
{5,647,212) 

3,429,998 

(11,562,881) 
(10,862,600) 

11,559,944 
(21,464,790) 

$(32,330,327) 

·--·.------..,..-,-- -------·- .. --~----. -------~ 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
Combined For the Years Ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 and 

For the (Unaudited) Thr:ee MonthS Ended March 31, 2002 and 
Consolidated For the (Unaudited) Three Months Ended March 31, 2003 

For Cbe Yean euded . Three MDutbs Eaded Man:lt 31, 

Cash !lows from operating activities: 
Net income (loss) 
AdjUSIDlCntS to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash 

provided by {used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation and amortization . . . .. .. . . . . ... . .. . 
Amortization of debt issuance costS .•. •. .• • . .•... 
Interest expense - note payable accretion . . . ..... . 
Non cash compensation expense . .....• . . . ...... 
Litigation settlement ..... . . . . . ..... . .. ....... . 
Provision for (reversal of) bad debts .... . . . . ... . 
Deferred income taxes . .. .. . . . •........ . . . .... 
Non cash service fees ... .... . ....... .. . ..• .. . 
Loss {gain) oil disposal of propcny and eqnipmt:nt 

Changes in assccs and liablilties, net of cffect:r of 
acquisitions and non cash transactions: 
Accounts receivable .. . . . .. . . . .. ... .. . . .. .. . . . . 
Prepaid expenses . .... .. .... . .. . . .. . . . • . . .. . . 
Other assets . .... . . . . .. ... ... . .. ... . . . . · . .... . 
Due from/to ~elated parties ... . .... ~ ..... . •.... 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses ... . . .. . . . 
Other liabilities .. . .. .. . .....•... . . .... . . ... .. 
Defcried revenue . . .. . .. . .. .. . . . ..... .... ... . 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating 
activities . . .. ... . ... . .. : ... .. . . . . . ... . . 

Cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities: 
Pmchase of customer conuacts ... .. ...... .. . . .... . 
Financing of customer loans . .. .. •. .. . .. .... . . .... 
Repayment of customer loans . . . . .... . . ... .. : . .. . 
Purchase of propc>ty and equipment .. ..• . . . . . . .. . 
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment . . .... . 
Short-term investments .. ~ . . . .. . . . . . . ... .. . ... .. . 
BusineSs acquisitions, net of cash acquired ... .. . ... . 
Increase {decrease) in restricted cash and cash 

equivalents . . . . ..... . : . .... .. ......... .. ....• 

Net cash (used in) provided by investing 
activities . .. . ... .. : . . . . . ... ...... . . . .. , 

Cash flows from financing activities: 
Proceeds of long-term debt, related party . ... . .. .. . 
Proceeds of long-term debt ... .. .. . ............. . 
Paymenrs of principal on long-term debt, related party 
Paymenrs of principal on long-term debt . .•... .. . . .. 
Payments of obligations under capital leases . ... . .. . 
Debt issuance cosrs . . .. . . ... ... .. .. •. .. . .. . .... 

Net cash provided by financing activities .... 
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents for 

the period . . . . . ... . . . . .... .. . . .. . . . .. .. ... . . 
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period ...••. 

CaSh and cash equivalents at end of period ..... . .. .. : . 

Supplementai disclosures of cash ftow information 
Interest paid . . . . ........ . .. .... . . . ..•... ... ..•. 

Income lllXCS paid . . .... .. . . . .. . . . ... .. . . . .. .. . . 

Supplemental disclosures of non-<::ash items: 
Comnion srock issued to purchase IASI •...... . .... 

Debt assumed from a related party .. . .. . . . .. . . . ... . . 

2000 :zooi l802 2002 2003 

$ 287,813 

3,270,185 
743,265 

197,486 

100,000 
(4,523,941) 

14.,545 

(83,201) 
343,699 

(593,260) 
(166,343) 
(186,530) 
(269,784) 
(465,059) 

(1,331,125) 

{unaudited) 

$(2,333,526) $(5,647 ,212) $(1,569, 735) 

3,581,071 5,580,985 
794,357 1,619,086 

97,725 

(957,275) 
243,396 (120,736) 

(716,743) (346,775) 

31,237 (5,605) 

4,243 
35,428 
13,859 

(876,003) 
. 192,346 

12,959 
29,627 

1,012.251 

892,034 
28,782 

(342,291) 
1,203,019 
1,386,547 
(332,640) 
(363,800) 

2,691 ,844 

1,353,272 
215,080 

(103,152) 

(106,883) 
(67,800) 

1,358 
(40,995) 
186,239 

(132,970) 

(265,593) 

(72,471) (200,420) (944,970) (113,931) 
6,576 3,500 7 .soo 

(3,000,000) 
{10,695,472) (1,192,117) (4,812,010) (5,088,057) 

(325,000) (316,391) . (113,538) (54,932) 

{11,086,367) (1,705,428) (8,863,018) . (5,256,920) 

449,530 
14,791,000 

(271,207) 
(1,689,390) 

(112,666) 
(316,025) 

12,851,242 

433,750 
111,58:1 

$ 1,151,337 

$ 2,900,909 

$ 

2,325,000 
2,600,000 
(308,539) 

{3,093, 782) 
(112,806) 
(643,998) 

765,875 

72,698 
1,151,337 

$ 1,224,035 

$ 3,514,879 

s 

8,800,000 
5,500,000 

(2,017,177) 
(6,144,329) 

(79,273) 
·(670,000) 

5,389,221 

(781 ,953) 
1,224,035 

s 442,082 

s 4,049,719 

s 

5,800,000 

(174,574) 
(749.298) 

(32,549) 
(175,000) 

4,668,579 

{853,934) 
1,224,035 

s. 370,101 

s 1,258,626 

s 

(uaaudlted) 

$(10,862,600) 

2.870,521 
317,675 

100,000 
3,410,879 
1,575,000 

386,637 
{14,487) 

(610,400) 
(233,206) 
(187,392) 
(394,009) 

94,789 

(3,486,593) 

(23,957) 
(132,315) 
358,832 
(41,667) 

B;o82,332 

17,066 

8.260,291 

2,000,000 
3,432,000 

(53,669) 
(3,735,722) 

(37,665) 
(31,500) 

1,573,444 

6,347,142 
442,082 

$ 6,789,224 

$ 3,277,545 

$ 

$ 11,559,944 

$ 1,575,000 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements. 
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INTEGRA TED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STA TE:MENTS 

1. Description of Business 

Integrated Alarm Services Group, Inc. and Subsidiaries (IASG) is the successor to KC Acquisition 
Corporation. In January 2003 KC Aquisition was re-incorporated by merging into Integrated Alarm Services 
Group, Inc. (IASG) (Note 14). IASG provides alarm-monitoring services to independent alarm dealers and 
other telemetry customers on a contract basis. IASG operates three Underwriters Laboratories listed call 
centers that provide alarm receiving, processing, notification and related services for the monitoring of various 
types of alarm systems. In addition to its call centers, IASG maintains five regional dealer care locations 
designed to provide customized services to independent alarm dealers. Alarm monitoring services for 
subscribers of independent alarm dealers are outsourced to IASG. Subscribers contract with alarm dealers for 
services like alarm installation, maintenance and monitoring. 

Integrated Alarm Services, Inc. (IASI), a wholly owned subsidiary was acquired on January 31, 2003 
(see Note 14). 

Liquidity 

The Company, which has a highly leveraged structure, has incurred significant losses and has a 
stockholders' deficit at December 31, 2002. Further, the Company has a working capital deficit of 
approximately $8,077,000 at December 31, 2002. The Company has funded operating and working capital 
deficits by borrowing funds from related parties and by amending or refinancing existing debt to reduce 
current liabilities. As a result of a refinancing, a balloon payment to a bank of $11,125,000 originally due 
March 2003 was extended to June 2004. The Company also had balloon payments of $5,000,000 due to 
related parties in the first quarter of 2004 which have been extended (Note 6). Further, the Company was in 
default of certain non-financial debt covenants and obtained permanent banlc waivers for all past violations 
(Note 6). The Company's future compliance with its EBITDA covenant is dependent on management's ability 
to meet its forecast which is dependent on management's ability to reduce operating costs and increase 
recurring monthly revenue. The Company has developed a plan to increase revenue and reduce operating 
costs, however, there can be no assurance that the plan will be achieved or additional funds will-be available, 
if needed. The Company's past covenant violations have been as a result of not complying with certain non 
financial covenants and the EBITDA covenant. The EBITDA covenant violation resulted from incurring 
certain costs related to the initial public offering. Considering the nature of these covenant violations 
management believes it is probable the Company will meet all of its covenants through 2003. Absent the 
waivers, certain bank and related party debt would have been in default and approximately $25,000,000 of 
long-term bank debt would have been reclassified as a current liability. · 

Beyond 2003, the Company's cash requirements for debt service and ongoing operations are substantial. 
Debt repayment obligations are significant in 2004 and 2005 (Note 6). The Company's forecasts indicate that 
the Company will be nnable to generate enough cash flow from operations to pay these debt obligations. 
Absent the initial public offering the Company will be dependent on its ability to generate significant 
operating profitability and cash flows from operations, restructure the terms of debt agreements or obtain 
equity infusions to fund future cash requirements. There is no assurance that the Company will be able to 
generate significant operating profitability and cash flows from operations, restructure the terms of debt 
agreements, obtain an equity infusion or remain in compliance with our covenant requirements. In the event 
the Company's operations are not profitable or do not generate sufficient cash to fund the business, the 
Company may fail to comply with its restrictions, obligations and covenants under the debt agreements, 
which could result in a default. A defaUlt could result in the Company's lenders requiring immediate 
repayment and limiting the availability of additional boffowings. The Company will have to find other 
sources of capital and substantially reduce its operations. In addition, the Company may not be able to obtain 
additional financing on terms favorable to the Company, if at all. If adequate funds are not available or are 
not available on terms favorable to the Company, the Company's business, results of operations and financial 

F-8 
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INTEGRA TED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -(Continued) 

1. Description of Business - (Continued) 

condition could be materially and adversely affected. Also see Note 15 for the liquidity discussion as of 
March 31, 2003. 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Principles of combined financial statements 

The combined financial statements include the accounts of IASG and its subsidiaries from the date of 
their acquisition as well as entities controlled by the same shareholders which control IASG (the 
"Company"). All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated. 

Subsidiaries of IASG are: 

KC Funding Corporation (KCF) is a wholly owned subsidiary of IASG. KCF was originally formed 
as a C Corporation and subsequently changed its status to an S Corporation in 2000. K<;F was 
established solely to hold certain dealer relationships and related bank debt in accordance with certain 
loan agreements. 

Monital Signal Corporation (Monital), a C Corporation, was acquired by IASG in May 2000 (Note 
10). IASG owns 99.2% of Monital's common stock. 

Monital Funding (MF) is a wholly owned subsidiary of Monital. MF was formed when Monital was 
piirchased by IASG in May 2000. MF was established solely to hold certain dealer relationships and 
related bank debt in accordance with certain loan agreements. 

Criticom-IDC (Criticom) is a wholly owned subsidiary of IASG. Criticom is an S corporation which 
provides monitoring services to customers on a contract basis. Criticom provides alarm-monitoring 
services to independent alarm dealers and other telemetry customers as well as Global Positioning 

. Systems (GPS) technology that customers use to track various types of moveable assets. Criticom 
operates an Underwriters Laboratories listed call center that provides alarm receiving, processing, 
notification and related services for the monitoring of various types of alarm systems. 

Entities which ate controlled by the same shareholder who controls IASG are: 

An affiliated entity was formed in April 2002 to offer for sale up to $5,500,000 of its 9.00% 
Secured Convertible Promissory .Notes. The affiliated entity loaned the proceeds of the offering to IASG. 
IASG used the proceeds to extinguish certain debt and provide for working capital needs. In 
January 2003, the Company assumed all of the assets and liabilities of this entity, and it was 
subsequently dissolved. 

Morlyn Fmancial Group (Morlyn), a limited liability company, was formed in May 2000 to aSsist 
independent alarm dealers in selling their retail portfolios to Integrated Alarm Services, Inc. (IASI), a 
related party of Marlyn. Morlyn provides due diligence and other related services for IASI and also 

· earns fees from independent alarm dealers by providing billing services. In January 2003 Morlyn was 
acquired by IASG and became a wholly owned subsidiary. 

Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformitY with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptionS that affect the reported 
amountS of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial 
statements and reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could 
differ from those estimates. 
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INTEGRA TED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS -(Continued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued) 

· Segment information 

The Company believes it operates in one segment, alw-monitoring services for independent alarm 
dealers (see Note 15) . 

Comprehensive income 

No statement of comprehensive income has been included in the accompanying financial statements 
since the Company does not have any other comprehensive income to report. 

.Revenue recognition 

The Company provides monitoring and billing services for a monthly fee for the subscribers of 
independent alarm dealers. The majority of the contracts are annual. Such contracts cOntain no upfront fees or · 
setup service. Monitoring and billing revenue is recognized as the monitoring and billing services are 
provided. Deferred revenue represents amounts billed and or collected in advance of ~rvices being provided. 
Revenues deferred are recognized over the term of the service agreement as the alarm monitoring. and billing 
services are provided . 

Morlyn assists independent alarm dealers in selling their portfolios of subscriber contracts to IASI. 
Morlyn receives placement fees for this assistance in selling the subscriber portfolios. Since these placement 
fees are contingent they are recognized generally when the transactions are consummated. Deal related costs 
are expensed as incurred. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents include cash, certificates of deposit, and money miiiket funds with original 
maturities of three months or less at the time of purchase. The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents 
approximates fair value. 

The . Company maintains cash and cash equivalents in accounts with financial institutions in excess of the 
amollllt insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation. The Company monitors the financial stability 
of these institutions regularly and management.does not believe there is a significant credit risk associated 
with deposits in excess of federally insured limits. At December 31, 200i and 2002, cash and cash equivalent 
balances in excess of FDIC limits approximated $1,495,215 and $1,107,041, respectively. 

Short-term investmentS 

Included in short-term investments at December 31, 2002 are$3,000,000 in marketable securities 
received under a related party loan agreement. To the extent any portion of the $3,000,000 loan proceeds 
advanced are marketable securities, any gains or losses on the miiiketable securities will be recognized by the 
lender. The lender will have full right to Substitute any of the marketable securities with other securities of 
greater or equal value or cash equal to the outstanding principal amount. The lender agrees that if the portion 
of the loan proceeds advanced are marketable securities and the value of these securities falls below 
$3,000,000 for a period of ten successive business days then the lender will deposit additional cash or 
marketable securities to restore the value of the total loan. proceeds to $3,000,000. There can be no assurance 
that the lender will have the ab.ility to deposit additional cash or marketable · securities if the value declines. 
The carrying amount of short-tenn investments approximates fair value. 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents restricted llllder the terms of the Company's debt obligations is classified to 
correspond with the. classification of the related debt (Note 6). 

F-10 

GERSAV 0038407 

Div Ex 373 -89

Case 1:10-cv-00457-GLS-CFH   Document 761-2   Filed 07/08/14   Page 23 of 34



I 
I . 

INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC •. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC A~quisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL SfATEMENTS·- (Con.Jinued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies· -..(Continued) 

Accounts .receivable 

Accounts receivable consists primarily of amounts due from irtdependent alarm dealers located in the 
United States. Credit .is extended based upon an evaluation o(the customer's financial condition and credit 
history. ReCeivables that are ·deemed uncollectible have. been provided for in the Company's allowance for 
doubtful accounts". . . . . . . . . . ' . . . 

Allowance for Doubtful AccountS 

Changes in the allowance for doubtful accounts were as follows: 

January 1, 2000 . · .. . .. ; .. . · .... . . .. . . .. . . . . .. . ......... . . 
Provi.sions .. . .. . .... . ........ ..... . ..... . ....... . .... . . 
Reversal of Provision · . .... : .... . · .............. , ......... . 

DeCember 31, 2000 .... : . ......... . ....... . .... . ....... . . 
Provisions ..... . ........ , ... . ............... . .. . . .. .. . 
Write-offs ..... . . . ..... . · .... . .. . ... · .... . ..... . . . ..... . 

~cember 31, 2001. ·. · .... . .. . .... . ...•... . ......... .. . .. . 
Reversal of Provision ..... . ....... . ....... . . . .......... . . 

December 31, 2002 ....... . ....... . ..•.... . .. . ....... . . . . 

Debt issuance costs 

$(126,323) 
(166,475) 

66,475 

(226,323) 
. (243,396) 

154,983 

(314,736) 
"120,736 

$(194,000) 

Debt issuance costs represents direct costs incurred in connection with obtaining financing with related 
parties and ban.ks, ,Debt issuance .costs are being amortized over the life of the related obligations using the 
effective interest methOd. 

Property:.and equipment 

Property and equipment are reported at cost less accumulated depreciation. When assets are sold, retired 
or otherwise disposed of, the related costs and accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective 
accounts, 3!1d any resulting gain or loss is recognized. 

Property and equipment are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Furniture, leaseholds and equipment ........... .. .... . .. . . 
Building and "building improvements ...... . .. . .... : . . . ... . 
Computer software .... . .... . .. : . . . . . .... . . . . .. . ...... . 

3-10 years 
10-39 years 

3-5 years 

Leasehold improvements are being amortized over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or 
lease term. Equipment under capital lease is being amortized over the lease telltl. 

Intangible assets 

Alarm monitoring services for subscribers of independent alarm dealers are outsource_d to the Company. 
The Company acquires such dealer relationships from other monitoring companies. 

The Company has retroactively restated its financ;ial statements for all periods presented to change its · 
method of amortization utilized . for dealer relationships. Previously the Company amortized the costs of these 
dealer relationships on a straight-line basis over 5 and 15 years based up~m an independent attrition study. In 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued) · 

order to better correspond the amortization of the costs of these relationships with the corresponding expected 
dealer revenue streams, the Company has changed its method of amortizing the costs of these dealer 
relationships from the straight-line method to declining balance accelerated methods. For the dealer 
relationships previously amortized on a straight-line basis over 5 ye~. the Company has changed its method 
to the 200% declining balance method; for the dealer relati01iships previously amortized on a straight-line· 
basis over 15 years, the Company has changed its method to the 150% declining balance methpd. Pursuant to 
the "Special Exemption for an Initial Public Distribution" of securities, the Company has elected to 
retroactively apply· this change in accounting. The effect of this change on all years presented is as follows: 

Net income (loss), as previously reported .............. · 
. Increase in amortization (net of tax effect) resulting from 

change in accounting method ..................... . 

Net income (loss), as restated ....................... . 

Net income (loss) per share, as previously reported ..... . 
Increase in amortization (net of tax effect) per share, 

resulting from change in accounting method ......... . 

Net income (loss) per share, as restated ............... . 

2000 

$750,562 

(462,749) 

$ 287,813 

$ 1.36 

(0.84) 

$ 0.52 

2001 2002 

$(1,848,008) $(4,096,150) 

(485,518) (1,551,062) 

$(2,333,526) $(5,647,212) 

$ (3.34) $ (6.91) 

(0.87) (2.62) 

$ (4.21) $ (953) 

Goodwill was being amortized on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 15 years through 
December 31, 2001 (Note 5). Effective January 1, 2002, the Company adopted Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets". SFAS No. 142 changed the 
accounting for goodwill ftom an amortization method to an impairment-only approach. An initial transition 
impairment test of goodwill was required as of January 1, 2002. The Company completed this initial 
transition impairment test during the second quarter of 2002, which did not result in any impairmenr charges. 
An annual impairment test was performed in the third quarter of 2002, which did not result in any 
impairment charges. There have been no changes in the carrying amount of goodwill for the year ended 
December 31, 2002. Management will evaluate goodwill for impairm~nt on an annual basis in accordance 
with SFAS No. 142. 

For purposes of applying SFAS No. 142, the Company has determined that it has one reporting unit 
consistent with its one operating segment. Fair value of the reporting unit and the related implied fair value 
of its goodwill was established using valuation techniques based upon multiples of earnings and discounted 
cash fiows. The Company has identified no impairment charges. (See Note 5) 

Income taxes 

For federal and state income tax purposes, IASG is treated as an S corporation and accordingly the 
Company's income taxes or credits resulting from earnings or losses are payable by or accrue to its 
shareholders. For federal and state income tax purposes, KCF was treated as a C corporation which resulted 
in KCF recording current and deferred income taxes from its earnings and losses and recognizing the tax 
consequences of "temporary differences" between financial statement and tax basis of existing assets and 
liabilities. 

Effective January 1, 2000, KCF applied for and obtained approval to be treated as an S corporation for 
federal and state income tax purposes. Consequently the effect of eliminating KCF's deferred taxes as the 
result of KCF's change in tax status resulted in a tax benefit of $4,324,320 being recognized in the 2000 
combined statement of operations. 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Succe5sor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued) 

For federal and state income tax purposes, Monital and MF are treated as · C corporations which results in 
Monital and MF recording current and deferred income taxes from their earnings and losses and recognizing 
the tax consequences of "temporary differences,. between financial statements and tax basis of existing assets 
and liabilities. 

For federal and state income tax purposes, Criticom is treated as an S corporation and accordingly the 
income taxes or credits resulting from earnings or losses are payable by or accrue to its shareholders. 

For federal and state income tax purposes, Morlyn is treated as a limited liability company_ (LLC) and 
accordingly the income taxes or credits resulting from earnings or losses is payable by or accrue to its 
members. · 

For federal and state income tax purposes, an affiliate which is controlled by the same shareholder who 
controls the Company is treated as a C corporation wQ.ich results in the affiliate recording current and 
deferred income taxes from its earnings and losses and recognizing the tax consequences of." temporary 
differences" between ~nancial statements and tax basis of existing assets and liabilities. 

To give effect to the conversion of the Company from an S Corporation to a C Corporation, pro forma 
infonnation has been presented on the statements of operations. The tax provision was prepared as if the 
Company had a combined federal and state effective taX rate of 40% and giving effect for permanent 
differences {Note 14). · 

Advertising costs 

The Company's policy is to expense advertising costs in the period in which the expense is incurred. 
Advertising expense was $106,871, $30,500 and $8,278 for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 
2002, respectively. · 

Net loss per share 

The Company computes net loss per cc:>mmon share in accordance with Statement of Financial 
Accounting Standards No. 128, "Earnings per Share" (SFAS 128) and SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin No. 98 
(SAB 98). Under the provisions of SFAS 128 and SAB 98, basic and diluted net loss per common share is 
computed by dividing the_ net loss available to common stockholders for the period by the weighted average 
number of shares of common stock outstanding during the period. There are no potentially dilutive securities 
outstanding. Accordingly, the number of weighted average shares outstanding as well as the amount of net 
loss per share are the same for basic and diluted per share calculations for the periods reflected in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

Risks and uncertainties 

The Company operates in one industry and segment. A principal element of the Company's bus~ess 
strategy is to acquire wholesale security system cilann monitoring blisinesses. Acquisitions of monitoring call 
centers involve a number of special risks, including the possibility of unanticipated problems ·not discovered 
prior to the acquisition, account attrition (i.e. cancellation) and the diversion of management's attention from 
other business activities in order to focus on the assimilation of such acquisitions. 

The Company is subject to operational and regulatory risk. Liabilities may anse due 'io system failures 
and false alarms. New technologies may cause existing technologies to become obsolete. Future government 
or other organizational regulations and standards could have an adverse ·effect on the Company's financial 
position, results of operations or cash flow.· 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies- (Continued) 

Impairment of long-lived assets arid long-lived assets to be disposed of 

The Company accounted for long-lived assets in accordance with the provisions of Statement of 
Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 121, Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and 
Long-Lived Assets to Be Disposed of through December 31. 2001. SFAS No. 121 required that long-lived 
assets and certain identifiable intangibles be reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the canying amount of an asset IDI!Y not be recoverable. Recoverability of assets 
to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted 
net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If such assets are considered to be impaired, the 
impairment to be recognized is measured by the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds 
the fair value of the assets. The Company has identified no such impairment losses . 

In August 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued SFAS No. 144, Accounting 
for the Impairment or Disposa(of Long-Lived Assets, which supersedes SFAS No. 121. Accounting for the 
Impairment of Long-Lived Assets and for Long-Lived Assets to be Disposed of, and the accounting and 
reporting provisions of APB No. 30. SFAS No. 144 addresses fimi.ncial accounting and reporting for the 
impairment or disposal of long-lived assets and is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 
2001, and interim periods within those fiscal years. SFAS No. 144 requires that long-lived assets be reviewed 
for impairment whenever events or chimges m circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset 
may not be recoverable. Recoverability of the assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the 
carrying amount of an asset to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset Cash 
flows of dealer relationships are analyzed by acquisition, the lowest level for which independent cash flows 
are identifiable. All other long-lived assets are evaluated for impairment at the Company level, using one 
asset grouping. If such assets are considered to be impaired. the impairment. to be recognized is measured by 
the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the fair value of the assets. The Company has 
identified no such impainnent losses. 

Recent accounting pronouncements 

In June 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, which addresses financial 
accounting and reporting for business combinations and supercedes APB No. 16 Business Combinations, and 
SFAS No. 38, Accounting for Preacquisitions Contingencies of Purchased enterprises. Additionally, SFAS 

· No. 141 establishes that all business combinations in the scope of the statement are to be accounted for using 
the purchase method. The provisions of this statement apply to all business combinations initiated after 
June 30, 2001. · 

In August 2001, the FASB issued SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. SFAS 
No. 143 requires the fair value of a liability for an asset retireq~.ent obligation to be recognized in the period 
in which it is incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The associated asset retirement 
costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset SFAS No. 143 is effective for 
fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2002. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS 143 to have a 
material effect on its combined financial statements. · 

In April 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 145, Rescission of FASB Statements No. 4, 44, and 64, 
Amendment of FASB Statement No. 13, and Technical Corrections as of April2002. This Standard addresses 
a number of items related to leases and other matters and is effective for fiscal years beginning after May 15. 
2002. The Company does not ex.pect the adoption of SFAS No. 145 to have a material effect on its combined 
financial statements. · 

In June 2002, the FASB issued SFAS 146, Accounting for Costs Associated with Exit or Disposal 
Activities. This Standard addresses the recognition, measurement and reporting costs that are associated with 
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INTEGRA TED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSI_DIARIES 
(Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued) 

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies - (Continued) 

exit or disposal activities. SFAS No. 146 is effective for exit or disposal activities that are initiated after 
December 31, 2002. The Company does not expect the adoption of SFAS No. 146 to have a material effect 
on its combined financial statements. 

In November 2002, the FASB issued FASB interpretation No. 45 (F1N 45), "Guarantor's Accounting 
and Disclosure Requirements for Guarantees, Including Direct Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others" . FIN 
45 requires that upon issuance of a guarantee, the guarantor must recognize a liability for the fair value of the 
obligation it assumes under that guarantee. The interpretations provisions for initial recognition and 
measurement should be applied on a prospective basis to guarantees issued or modified after December 31, · 
2002. The disclosure requirements are effective for financial statements of both interim and annual periods· 
that end after Deceml?er 15, 2002. The Company has no guarantees and therefore believes the adoption of 
FIN 45 will not have a material impact on its combined financial statements. 

In December 2002, the FASB issued SFAS No. 148 "Accounling for Stock Based Compensation- . 
Transition and Disclosure-an amendment of FAS 123". This statement amends FASB Statement No. 123, 
Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation, to provide alternative methods of transition for a voluntary change 
to the fair value based method of accounting for stock-based eqtployee compensation. In addition, this 
Statement amends the disclosure requirements of Statement 123 to require prominent disclosures in both 
annual and interim financial statements about the methods of accounting for stock-based employee 
compensation and the effect ofthe method used on reporting results. The Statement has varying effective . 
dates commencing with interim periods beginning after December 15, 2002. 

In January 2003, the FASB issued FASB Interpretation No. 46 (FJN .46) "Consolidation of Variable 
Interest Entities-an interpretation of ARB No. 51". FIN 46 addresses consolidation of business entexprises of 
variable interest entities. FIN 46 is effective February 1, 2003. The Company believes the adoption of FlN 46 
will not_ have a material impact on its financial statements. 

Reclassifications 

Certain prior years amounts have been reclassified to confonn to the current year presentation. 

3. Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment consist of the following at: 

Furniture, leaseholds and equipment .. . .... . ....... . . . 
Building and building improvements ....... . .. . . . .... . 
Equipment under capital lease . ... . ... .. . . . .. . .. . . . . 
Computer software . . . . ... ... .. . . ... . .. ... .. . .. . . . . 
Land . . ........... ... . . ..... . .... • . : .. . . .. · .. . .. . . 

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization .. . .... . 

December 31, 
2001 

$ 1,857,267 
760,781 
371,503 
130,863 
124.418 

3,244,832 
(1,465,775) 

$ 1,779,057 

. :wo:z 
$ 3,534,191 

582,015 
479,593 
353,2l7 
124,418 

5,073,434 
(2,365,273) 

$ 2,708~161 

Depreciation expense was $502.410, $475,163 and $833,481 for the years ended Dec~mber 31, 2000, 
2001 and 2002, respectively. 

Unamortized computer software costs totaled $115,832 and $303,547, respectively, at December 31, 
2001 and 2002. Amortization expense related to computer software was $823, $14,206 _and $74,113 for the 
years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002, respectively. 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to.KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued) 

3. Property and Equipment - (Continued) 

Acc"QIIlulated amortization for equipment under capita.J. lease approximated $288,125 and $47,115 at 
December.31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. · 

4. Debt Issuance Costs 

Debt issuance costs consist of the following at: 
December 31, 

2001 2002 

Debt issuance costs ........................... . $ 3,790,982 $ 635,825 
Debt issuance costs - related party (Note 6) ....... . 454,000 745,000 
Accumulated amortization ..................... . {2,663,912) (333,604) 

$ 1,581,070 $1,047,221 

Amortization expense of debt issuance costs for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 2002 was 
$743,265, $794,357·and $1,619,086, respectively. Debt issuance costs approximate 9.2% of debt proceeds 
received by the Company. Included in amortization expense for the year ended December 31, 2002 is 
$831,717 of debt issuance costs related to· the bank refinancing which has been charged to earnings (Note 6). 

5. Intangible Assets 

Dealer relationships consist of the following at: 

Dealer relationships .................. , .......... . 
Accumulated amortization ....................... . 

December 31, 

2001 

$29,509,594 
(7,748,778) 

$21,760,816 

2002 

$ 39,958,089 
(12,397,177) 

$ 27,560,912 

Amortization expense related to dealer relationships for the years ended December 31, 2000, 2001 and 
2002 was $2,258,097, $2,490,358 and $4,673,391, respectively. 

Goodwill consists of the following at: 
December 31, 

2001 2002 

Goodwill ....................................... . $ 9,020;141 $ 9,020,141 
Accumulated amortization .................. ~ ...... . (1,801,398) (1,801,398) 

$ 7,218,743 $ 7,218,743 

Amortization expense related to goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001 was 
$508,855 and $601,343, respectively. 

The following table shows the effect on net (loss) income had SFAS No. 142 been adopted in years 
prior to 2002: 

For the Years Ended December 31, 

2000 2001 2002 

Net (loss) income as reported . . ...................... . 
Add back amortization of goodwill ................... . 

Adjusted net (loss) income ......................... . 

(Loss) income per share ............................. . 
Effect of accounting change , ........................ . 

Adjusted (loss} income per share •..................... 
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$287,813 $(2,333,526) $(5,647,212) 
508,855 601,343 

$796,668 $(1,732,183) 

$ 0.52 $ (421) 
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$ L44 $ (3.13) 

$(5,647,212) 
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. i INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued) 

5. Intangible Assets - (Continued) 

Estimated amortization expense of debt issuance costs and dealer relationships for the years ending · 
December 31, 2003 through 2007 is as follows: 

·Year 
2003 
2004 
2005 
2006 

.2007 

6. Long-term Debt 

Long-term debt consists of the following at: 

Related Party Promissory Notes: 
· A series of promissory notes payable to IASI in original amounts totaling 

$1,742,344, maturing from February 2001 to August 2005. Aggregate · 
monthly installments of principal' and interest approximates $56,000. Fixed 
interest rates range from 23% to 31 %; collateralized by financed accounts 
receivable. These notes are cross collateralized with each other. 

A series of promissory notes payable to IASI in original amotints totaling 
$2,325,000, maturing from August 2005 to April 2006. Aggregate monthly 
installments of principal and interest approximates $47,500. F.txed interest · 
rates ranging from 12.50% to 17.30%; collateralized by financed accounts 
receivable. The Company is required to maintain cash with the lender of · 
$50,000, which is restricted to be used to satisfy debt service requirements 
in the event the Company does not have the cash flow to service the debt. 
Such amount is included in restricted cash and cash equivalents. 

Promissory note payable to related party owned by stockholders of the 
Company in original amount of $5,800,000, maturing July 1, 2007. 
Aggregate monthly installments of principal and interest of approximately 
$129,200. Fixed interest rate of 14.31 %; collateralized by financed accounts 
receivable. The Company is required to maintain cash with the lender of 
$100,000, which is restricted to be used to satisfy debt service requirements 
in the event the Company · does not have the cash flow to service the debt. 
_At December 31, 2002 such amount was not on deposit with the lender. 

Promissory note payable to related party in the original amount of $~85,000 is 
at a fixed interest rate of 10%; $100,000 was paid on October 5, 2002, 
$585,000 is due in January 2004 with accrued interest 
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Annual 
Amortization 

$4,917,354 
4,148,027 
3,142,066 
2,599,293 
2,306,364 

DeCember 31, 
2001 200l 

$ 928,437 $ 673,113 

2,288,581 1,152,722 

5,377,357 

585,000 
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INTEGRA TED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued) 

6. Long-term Debt - (Continued) 

December 31, 

Promissory notes payable to IASI maturing from August 2003 to February 
2006. Aggregate monthly installments of principal and interest of 
approximately $63,587. Fixed interest rates range from 16.04% to 20.16%; 
collateralized by financed accounts receivable. The Company is required to 
maintain cash with the lender of $100,000, which is restricted to be used to 
satisfy debt service requirements in the event the Company does not have 
the cash flow to service the debt At December 31, 2002, such amount was 
not on deposit with the lender. 

Promissory note payable to related party maturing March 15, 2004, the 
maturity date was extended to April 30, 2004 in March 2003. Proceeds of 
$3,000,000 received in October 2002 (Note 2). Interest is payable monthly 
at Bear Stearn's Broker call rate plus 2.5%. Balloon payment of principal is 
due at maturity. 

Other Notes: 

Promissory notes payable to one bank in original amounts totaling 
$32,841,000 originil.lly maturing from March 2003 to May 2005. Aggregate 
monthly installments of principal and interest approximates $505,000. Fixed 
interest rates ranging from 8% to 12.5%. Balloon payments due of 
approximately $ll,125,000 in March 2003 (extended to June 2004), 
$1,750,000 in June 2004, and $6,412,000 in May 2005; collateralized by 
financed accounts receivable. The Company is required to maintain cash 
with the lender of $800,000, which is restricted to be used to satisfy debt 
service requirements in the event that the Company does not have the cash 
flow to service the debt. At December 31, 2002, $504,233 is on deposit 
with the lender. Such amount is included in restricted cash and.cash 
equivil.lents. The lender has required that certain amounts needed to fund 
the following month's debt service payment be accumulated in a reserve 
account At December 31, 2002, $527,556 was aceumulated in the reserve 
account and is classified as restricted cash and cash equivalents in these 
financiil.l statements. 

Promissory note payable to a bank in the original amount of $2,600,000 
originally maturing January 2005. Aggregate monthly installments of 
principil.l and interest approximated $21,125. Fixed interest rate of 9.75%; 
collateralized by financed accounts receivable. The Company was required 
to maintain cash with the lender of $266,391, which was restricted to be 
used to satisfy debt service requirements at December 31, 2001 in the event 
the Company did not have the cash flow to service the debt. Paid in full in 
September 2002. 

$5,500,000 convertible promissory notes payable to inves.tors maturing 
September 1, 2005. Aggregate monthly installments of principal and 
interest of approximately $41,250. Fixed interest rate of 9.0%; 
collateralized by financed accounts rer.eivable. 
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2001 2002 

1,647,069 

3,000,000 

28,393,223 25,877,281 

2,600,000 

5,500,000 
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I . INTEGRA TED ALARM SERVICES GROUP INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor t~ KC AcquiSition Corporatlon and Subsidiaries) 

NO}'ES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - (ContinU£d) 

6. Long-term Debt - (Continued) 

Note payable to Security Associates International (SAl), $1,500,000, 
originally due December 31, 2001 with .interest at 12.5%. In Apri12002, a 
portion of this note was forgiven (Note 10). The remaining obligation of 
$900,000 had no stated interest (interest imputed at 12.5%). Aggregate 
monthly installments of principal and interest approximated $20,000 · 
beginning April 2002 through December 2002 with final payment of 
$TiO,OOO due December 31, 2002. The note payable was paid in full in 
December 2002. 

Notes payable to a bank in original amounts totaling $1,506,888. Aggregate 
monthly installments of principal and interest approximates $53,000 
beginning October 1999 through November 2004 with final payments of 
$405,000 and $255,000 in November 2004 and December 2004, 
respectively. Frx:ed interest rate· of 8.75%. These notes payable are 
collateralized by financed accounts receivable. The Company is required to 
maintain cash with the lender of $36,300, which is restricted to be used to 
satisfy debt service requirements in the event the Company does not have 
the cash fiow to service the debt. Such amount is included in restricted cash 
and cash equivalents. The lender has required that certain amounts needed 
to fund the following month's debt service payment be accumulated in a 
reserve account. At December 31, 2002, $45,140 was accumulated in the 

. reserve account and is classified as restricted cash and cash equivalents in 
these financial statements. 

Less: current portion, related party . 
Less: current portion of long-term debt 

December 31, 

2001 2002 

1,500,000 

1,412,208 

37,122,449 
490,504 

5,340,059 

$ 31,291,886 

1,248,821 

45,061,363 
1,738,724 
3,059,879 

$ 40,262,760 

. . . wned primarilY by 
A series of promissory notes payable to related parties are held by ennnes 0 

000 
d $175.000 for 

stockholders of the Company. The Company paid related party issuance costs of $454• :designated 
the years ended December 31, 2001 and 2002, respectively. Cash receipts generated from e · 
recurring monthly revenue are deposited directly with the related parties. 

. $32 841 000 includes 
A series of promissory notes payable to a bank in original amounts totaling • 0 200 

OOO used to 
$12,641,000 used to finance the Monital Signal Corporation acquisition (Not~ 10) and.$2 ' 'te separate 
finance a 1998 acquisition. These promissory note agreements contain provistons that mcorpo:e bank. the 
monitoring receivable financing participation agreements (Monitoring Agreements) between ed the 
Company and a related party owned by stockholders of the Company. The related party arran~ ence and 
financing with the bank. Under these monitoring agreements the related party pe~onns due ts 'focuired by 
monitors the Company's compliance with the promissory note agreements. Debt tssuance co~r 31, 2002. 
the Company to the bank totaled $3,795,632, of which $3,380,395 was paid through Decem 

h ld by a bank where a 
Promissory note payable to a bank in the original amount of $2,600,000 was e . te agreement had 

10% owner of the Company iS the Chairman of the Board of Directors of the bank. 1bis no kh lders of the 
tenns similar to the $32,841,000 bank notes described above. A related party own<:d by:%~~~ $190,000. 
Company arranged the financing and received a fee of $379,000 and the bank recetved 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
· (Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued) 

6. Long-tenn Debt - (Continued) 

In September 2002, the Company's $5,800,000 related party promissory note with RTC Trust (an entity 
controlled by two principal stockholders of an affiliated entity controlled by the same shareholder who 
controls the Company) was amended. Aggregate monthly installments of principal and interest were reduced 
from apProximately $129,000 to approximately $49,000 in October 2002, $58,000 in November 2002, and 
$67,000 in December 2002. Monthly payments continue to escalate over the life of the loan up to $144,000 
beginning January 2003 until July 2007. · 

In September 2002, an affiliated entity which is controlled by the same shareholder who controls KC 
Acquisition borrowed $5,500,000 from investors in a private offering. The Company used the proceeds to 
extinguish a note payable of $2,600,000 to a bank to extinguish $900,000 in IASI promissory notes and to 
extinguish $740,000 of the SAI Note. The Company paid debt issuance costs of $495,000 to a related party. 
The promissory notes are convertible into IASG's common stock. In the event IASG has an initial public 
offering the conversion price would be 25% less than the offering price. If such offering takes place, the 
beneficial conversion of $1,833,333 will be charged to earnings as interest expense, over three years, the life 
of the debt. 

The Company paid other debt issuance costs totaling $220,587 related to promissory notes payable to a 
bank in original amounts totaling $1,506,888. 

In October 2002, the Company renegotiated approximately $26,380,000 of certain promissory notes 
payable to a bank. A balloon payment of approximately $11,125,000 originally due in March 2003 was 
extended to June 2004. In addition, monthly debt service payments were rescheduled but the interest rate on 
the debt remained unchanged. The Company's covenants were unchanged except for the addition of a 
quarterly cumulative earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation, amortization (EBITDA) requirement In 
connection with the renegotiation of the agreement, the bank required a $425,000 increase in the Company's 
debt service reserves held by the bank as well as the payment of an additional $415,237 in debt issuance 
costs. Payments to fund the additional debt service reserves and debt issuance costs was to commence in 
November 2002 and continue through April 2003. The Company paid $7~,000 to the bank in December 2002. 

The promissory notes payable to related parties and to the bank contain restrictive covenants some of 
which require the Company to: deposit financed accounts receivable collections in a lockbox; maintain the 
appropriate level of recurring monthly revenue as a percentage of monthly debt service; submit quarterly and 
annual financial reports; comply with credit and collection policies; achieve monthly EBITDA levels, and 
perform other periodic reporting requirements. In addition, the Company is prohibited from incurring 
additional debt in excess of $50,000, merging with other entities and purchasing fixed assets in excess of 
$150,000 in 2003. At December 31, 2001 and December 31, 2002, the Company had not complied with 
certain of these debt covenants. The related parties have permanentty·waived any past and future-covenant 
violations and accordingly the related party promissory notes are classified according to their amortization 
schedules. 

On November 8, 2002, the Company obtained a permanent waiver from its bank for all covenant 
violations and events of default occurring prior to that date. 'This waiver required the Company to meet 
agreed upon requirements in the future. The company has taken such action and has satisfied the requirements 
in the agreed upon time frame except for the monthly EBITDA requirement. The Company did not meet the 
EBITDA requirement as a result of incurring fees related to an initial public offering. On January 21, 2003, 
the bank modified the calculation of the EBITDA reqUirement to add back all fees related to the initial public 
offering through March 31, 2003 which enabled the Company to comply with the requirement. Based on 
management's 2003 EBITDA projections, management believes the Company will be in compliance with this 
covenant through 2003. 
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INTEGRATED ALARM SERVICES GROUP, INC. AND SUBSIDIARIES 
(Successor to KC Acquisition Corporation and Subsidiaries) 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS- (Continued) 

6. Long-term Debt - (Continued) 

On March 7, 2003, the Company requested that the bank permanently waive certain non financial. 
covenant violations including: incurring debt in excess of $50,000 in October 2002 and January 2004; not 
submitting the January and February 2003 monthly EBITDA reports within the required time frame; failing to 

make the required debt service and debt issuance cost payments to the bank in accordance. with the October 
2002 agreement; and merging with the IASI and affiliates (Note 14). The bank permanently waived these past 
covenant violations and accordingly the promissory notes are classified according to. their amortization 
schedule. 

Related party and bank debt are collateralized by financed accounts receivable. Financed accounts 
receivable are outstanding accounts receivable that arise from recurring monthly revenue earned· by providing 
alarm monitoring services for indept:ndent alarm dealers. Related parties and the bank require the Company 
to maintain a certain level of recurring revenue. Such required recurririg revenue approximated $1,643,000 
and $1,958,000 at December 31, 2001 and 2002; respectively. Substantially all accounts receivable in the 
accompanying combined balance sheets collateralize long-term debt. 

Maturities of long-term debt are as follows based on revised· agreements at: 

2003 ..... · .· .. ·.· .............................. . 
2004 ............ . ............................ . 
2005 · . . ....... . . .. ............................ . 
2006 ......... . . .... . .. .... . ................ .. . . 
2007 ..... . ................................... . 

Related 
Parties 

$ 1,738,724 
5,672,574 
2,389.051 
1,756,544 

878,368 

$12,435;261 

December 31, 2002 

Other 
Notes 

$ 3,059,879 
15,494,110 
14,072,113 

$32,626,102 

Total 

. $ 4,798,603 
21,166,684 
16,461,164 

1,756,544 
878,368 

$45,061,363 

On January 17, 2003, the Company borrowed $2,000,000 from IASl Interest is payable at 12%. The full 
amount of principal and interest was originally due January 17, 2004 and in March 2003 the maturity date 
was extended to June 15, 2005. · · 

7. Income Taxes 

The components of the provision (benefit) for income taxes are as follows: 

Current 
Federal ..... . ...... ...... ..... . .................. . 
State ............................................ . 

Total current. .. . ........ : .. .......... · .............. . 
Deferred tax (benefit) expense .... . .................. . 

Provision (benefit) for income taxes ................... . 
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For the Year$ Ended December 31, 
2000 2001 ·l002 

$ (240,332) 
(29.452) 

(269,784) 
(4,523,941) 

$(4,793;725) 

$ 
12,959 

12,959 
(716,743) 

$(703,784) 

$(267,055) 
(67,613) 

(334,668) 
(346,775) 

$(681,443) 
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